
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

January 25, 2022
Daniel M. Pope, Mayor
Steve Massengale, Mayor Pro Tem, District 4
Juan A. Chadis, Councilman, District 1
Shelia Patterson Harris, Councilwoman, District 2
Jeff Griffith, Councilman, District 3
Randy Christian, Councilman, District 5
Latrelle Joy, Councilwoman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Chad Weaver, City Attorney

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.

A quorum of the City Council will be physically present in City Council Chambers located in Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K,
Lubbock, Texas, as it is the intent of the City Council to have a quorum physically present at this location. One or more members
of the City Council, however, may participate in the meeting by video-conference call as permitted under Section 551.127 of the
Texas Government Code.

1:00 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items for
presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City
Council. No action will be taken by the City Council in Work Session.
           
1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in person before the meeting of the City Council, regarding Items 2.1, 2.3, and
2.4, on the Work Session Agenda, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 1:00 p.m. on January 25, 2022.  Citizen Comments is an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.
Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

  

 

2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as
appropriate.

  

 

2. 1. Discuss planning, goals, and budget priorities for the Lubbock City Council and the City of
Lubbock, and discuss the programs, expenditures and policies of the City Council and the
City of Lubbock, including but not limited to the Lubbock City Charter, municipal fees,
transportation, infrastructure, solid waste, streets, Gateway Fund, Civic Center, libraries,
community engagement, capital improvements, facilities, parks and recreation, legislative
agenda, public safety, public safety infrastructure, code enforcement, staffing levels, and
future needs. This discussion may include a wide range of topics related to the programs,
operation, and policies of the City Council and the City of Lubbock. Action may be taken
by the City Council to give direction to the City Manager in regard to determining the

  

http://www.mylubbock.us


priorities and goals discussed.
 

2. 2. Presentation and discussion by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, regarding
updates on potential for providing customer choice to LP&L customers, which may
include, but is not limited to, the following subtopics:

(a) the timing, process, and content of a potential irrevocable opt-in resolution and potential
future meetings on the subject of retail competition for LP&L customers;
(b) the need for a provider of last resort and any potential requirements or process for
same, including analysis of the process utilized by the Public Utility Commission of Texas;
(c) the option for LP&L to serve as the provider of last resort and business and operational
considerations for same;
(d) distribution projects necessary for opt-in;
(e) status of LP&L’s load that remains in the Southwest Power Pool, and
potential proceedings before the Public Utility Commission of Texas to transition that load
to the Electric Reliability Council of Texas;
(f) the impacts or benefits to customers, LP&L, and the City resulting from opt-in;
(g) the development of transmission and distribution rates, and progress of same;
(h) potential retail electric provider availability in the LP&L service territory and
comparison with other areas of the state open to competition;
(i) customer education on retail choice and communication plans on same, and discussion
of various services that assist customers in selecting a retail electric provider;
(j) opt-in requirements and ensuing changes in business processes, operations, and
potential organizational changes; and
(k) other related matters regarding the initiation of competition for retail electric service in
Lubbock Power & Light’s certificated retail service area.

  

 

2. 3. Continuing American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Discussion   

 

2. 4. City Council 2021 Street Bond Follow-up Discussion   

 

At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recesses into Executive Session.
 

Executive Session
 

3. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

3. 1. 1. Claim of Legal Aid of North West Texas   

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 



 

4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

4. Ceremonial Items   

 

4. 1. Invocation   

 

4. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

4. 3. Proclamations and Presentations   

 

4. 3. 1. Presentation of a Citizen Certificate of Commendation to Freddy Garcia, in
recognition of his bravery and selflessness in rescuing a fellow citizen during a recent
structure fire.

  

 

Call to Order
 

5. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided
at the meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on January 25, 2022. Citizen Comments is an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.
Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

  

 

6. Minutes   

 

6. 1. Minutes - December 14, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
 

7. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

7. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2022-O0001, Amendment 4, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Capital Fund to establish Capital Improvement Project 92754,
Cyber Security Infrastructure; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

7. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance



7. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
2022-O0002, Amendment 5, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the Civic Center and General Funds; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

 

7. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2022-O0003, Amendment 7, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Lake Alan Henry Fund to appropriate funding for the purchase of a
boat used for Parks and Recreation operations for Lake Alan Henry; providing for filing;
and providing for a savings clause.

 

7. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2022-O0004, Amendment 8, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Grant Fund to establish and appropriate funding for
Capital Improvements Project 92756 Civic Park; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

 

7. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2022-O0005, Amendment 9, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Lubbock Power & Light Operating and Capital Program;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

7. 6. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2022-O0006, Amendment 10, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the General Fund to appropriate funding for the purchase of fence
construction used in Solid Waste Landfill Operations; providing for filing; and providing
for a savings clause.

 

7. 7. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 6, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Capital Fund to establish Capital Improvement Project 8668, Diversion Center
Contribution, and Capital Improvement Project 92757, Housing Projects; providing for
filing; and providing for a savings clause.    

 

7. 8. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 11, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Grant Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the U.S. Department of Treasury for
Emergency Rental Assistance and the Texas Department of Housing and Community
Affairs (TDHCA) for the FY 2021 Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program (CEAP)
and American Rescue Plan Act Grant providing for filing; and providing for a savings
clause.   

 

7. 9. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the City



7. 9. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the City
Manager in purchasing, for and on behalf of Lubbock Power and Light, the City’s
municipal electric utility, property insurance coverage to include boiler and machinery
coverage. The subject insurers are AIG, Argenta, Munich RE, Travelers, Amlin, Guide
One, Kiln/Faraday, ARK, Aspen, Alcor, and Chubb as listed in the attachment along with
the terms and conditions.

 

7. 10. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0008,
abandoning and closing portions of 13th Street and Vernon Avenue within Block 72,
Overton Addition, west of 2201 Broadway, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

7. 11. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
amendment to Contract 16364, with Hub City Main Street Investment, LLC, for a
warehouse lease extension of time.

 

7. 12. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 16363, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for providing professional services for the
Unpaved Roads Improvements Project.

 

7. 13. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 16267, with Horseshoe Construction, Inc., for construction services associated
with the North University Sewer Line Relocation Project.

 

7. 14. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Cost
Sharing and Payment Agreement 16181, with Ford Development Corporation, for roadway
improvements along Ash Avenue from 66th Street to South Loop 289.

 

7. 15. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16221, with Green Dream International, LLC, to establish the annual
pricing for raw construction materials, for repair of streets, alleys, and utility installations.

 

7. 16. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16339, with Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC, to establish the annual
pricing for raw construction materials for construction and repair of streets, alleys, and
utility installations.

 

7. 17. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16215, with West Texas Paving, Inc., to establish the annual pricing of
asphalt materials to repair or replace degraded asphalt paving.

 

7. 18. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16300, with Ti-Zak Concrete, Inc., for Concrete Repair and Patching
Project in the 2022 Street Maintenance Program.

 

7. 19. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to



7. 19. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16298, with Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Ltd., for Asphalt Repair and
Patching Project in the 2022 Street Maintenance Program. 

 

7. 20. Resolution - Solid Waste: Consider a resolution authorizing the City of Lubbock Solid
Waste Services Department to request grant funding under the South Plains Association of
Governments Request for Applications of the Regional Solid Waste Grants Program, to
host an electronics waste regional collection event in 2022.

 

7. 21. Resolution - Solid Waste:Consider a resolution authorizing the City of Lubbock Solid
Waste Services Department to request grant funding under the South Plains Association of
Governments Request for Applications of the Regional Solid Waste Grants Program, to
host a household hazardous waste regional collection event in 2022.

 

7. 22. Resolution - Solid Waste: Consider a resolution authorizing the City of Lubbock Solid
Waste Services Department to request grant funding under the South Plains Association of
Governments Request for Applications of the Regional Solid Waste Grants Program, to
activate service with the Litterati Software Application.

 

7. 23. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute the Health and Human Services Commission Contract No. HHS000779500006,
under the Co-occurring Psychiatric and Substance Use Disorders (COPSD) Grant Program,
by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas' Health and Human Services
Commission, and all related documents.

 

7. 24. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16354, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock, and the
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), for the Home
Investment Partnerships Grant (HOME) American Rescue Plan (ARP) Grant Agreement.

 

7. 25. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16213, with Roofs, Inc., for roof replacement at the Fire Administration
Building, located at 1515 East Ursuline Street, Lubbock, Texas.

 

7. 26. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16198, with Roofs, Inc., for roof replacement at Groves Library, located
at 5520 19th Street, Lubbock, Texas.

 

7. 27. Resolution - Civic Center: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Lease Agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock, and Lubbock Moonlight Musicals
Inc., for use of the Lubbock Moonlight Musicals Amphitheatre, for five annual periods
ending November 30, 2026.

 

7. 28. Resolutions - Fleet Services: Consider two resolutions authorizing the Mayor to execute



7. 28. Resolutions - Fleet Services: Consider two resolutions authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 31064089, with DACO Fire Safety Equipment, for the purchase of one
Rosenbauer 101-foot Platform, Custom Cab, and Purchase Order 31064092, with
DACO Fire Safety Equipment, for two Rosenbauer 1250 GPM Custom Pumper Trucks.

 

7. 29. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 31064023, with YellowHouse Machinery Co., for the purchase of two
John Deere 310SL Backhoe Loaders, for the Water Distribution and Maintenance
Department.  

 

7. 30. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16183, with Fleetwash, Inc., of Fairfield, New Jersey, for mobile
car wash services for City vehicles.

 

7. 31. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor of
the City of Lubbock to execute that certain Second Amended and Restated Partial
Requirements Power Service Agreement Scheduling Protocol, by and between the City of
Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, and Southwestern Public Service
Company.

 

7. 32. Ordinance 2nd Reading - City Secretary: Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0009,
ordering the 2022 Regular Municipal Election of the City of Lubbock to be held May 7,
2022.

 

7. 33. Ordinance 1st Reading - City Secretary: Consider an ordinance amending Section
1.02.004 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, Texas, with regard to voting
precinct boundaries and the establishment of the same by the City Council; creating
additional and new voting precincts; and providing a map of the voting precincts and
districts of the City of Lubbock.

 

7. 34. Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City
Manager to pay in accordance with Article II, Subsection B, of Professional Services
Agreement, Contract No. 15708, with Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta LLP, an amount
up to $38,000 for redistricting services related to the City of Lubbock, as the City
increased the number of plans and other services.

 

7. 35. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Developer Participation Agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock and Rocket
Partners I, LLC, for public improvements for the construction of a multi-company fire
station at 142nd Street and Indiana.

 

7. 36. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0010,



7. 36. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0010,
for Zone Case 2538-X, a request of Tyson Rowin for Derek Cooper and Lee Mazurek, for
a zone change from Family Apartment District (A-1) to Local Retail District (C-2) with a
Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility at 6801 4th Street, located south of 4th Street and
east of Quincy Avenue on 2.139 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 10, and
consider an ordinance.

 

Regular Agenda - Zone Cases
 

8. 1. Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 2016-C, a
request of T & D Real Estate and Rentals, LLC, for a zone change from Family Apartment
District (A-1) to Garden Office District (GO) at 1306 Avenue R, located west of Avenue R
and south of 13th Street, Overton Addition, Block 13, the north 10 feet of Lot 4 and Lot 3,
less the west 67.5 feet of the north 10 feet, and consider an ordinance.

 

8. 2. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 3455, a request
of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Red Canyon Development, LLC, for a Specific Use
for a commercial athletic field, park, stadium, or arena on property zoned Transition
(T), generally located south of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue on 133.1 acres of
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6, and consider an ordinance. 

 

8. 3. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 3456, a request
of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for 146th and Quaker, LLC, for a zone change from
Transition District (T) to General Retail District (C-3), generally located west of Quaker
Avenue and south of 146th Street, on 8.00 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK,
Section 6, and consider an ordinance. 

 

8. 4. Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Consider a request for Zone Case 3457, a request
of Delta Land Surveying for Cotter Ranch, Ltd., for a zone change from Transition District
(T) to Local Retail District (C-2) at 6201 114th Street, located south of 114th Street and
east of Milwaukee Avenue, on 1.21 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 20,
and consider an ordinance.

 

8. 5. Public Hearing - Planning (District 6): Consider a request for Zone Case 3308-E, a
request of Delta Land Surveying and Engineering for BBA Homes Land Company, LLC,
for a zone change from High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to General Retail District
(C-3) and Two-Family District (R-2), generally located south of 19th Street and east of
Upland Avenue, on 13.7 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 43, and consider
an ordinance. 

 

8. 6. Public Hearing - Planning (District 6): Consider a request for Zone Case 3358-B, a
request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for BBA Homes Land Company, LLC, for a
Specific Use for Garden Homes on property zoned Reduced Setback Single-Family
District (R-1A) at 901 Inler Avenue, located east of Inler Avenue and south of 4th Street,
on 59.1 acres of unplatted land out of Block D6, Section 2, and consider an ordinance. 

 



Regular Agenda - Other Business
 

8. 7. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Municipal Services Agreement, with Ganatra Holdings, LLC, and Ganatra Investments,
LLC, for the requested annexation of an area of land generally described as a 3.18 acre
tract, located south of 106th Street and east of University Avenue.

 

8. 8. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution approving the Central Business District Tax
Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Annual Report, for October 1, 2020, through
September 30, 2021.

 

8. 9. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution approving the Lubbock Business Park Tax
Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Annual Report, for October 1, 2020, through
September 30, 2021.

 

8. 10. Resolution - City Council: Consider a resolution forming a Citizen Advisory Committee
to study and make recommendations regarding the street and roadway construction and
repair needs of the City of Lubbock, and for a possible future bond election in connection
therewith.

 



 AI# 10380 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Minutes - December 14, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting

Item Summary
December 14, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
12.14.2021 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

December 14, 2021
1:00 P. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 14th of December, 2021,
in City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 1:00 p.m.

  
1:00 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Juan A. Chadis; Council Member Randy
Christian; Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy; Council Member Shelia
Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca Garza; City
Attorney Chad Weaver 

Absent:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope 
 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
1.1-1.3; Executive Session; 3.1-3.4.1; Citizen Comments 4; 5.1; 6.1-6.2; 6.4-6.15; 6.17-6.31; 6.3;
6.16; 7.1-7.2; 7.7-7.8; 7.4-7.6; 7.9; 7.11-7.19; 7.10; 7.20.
Item No. 7.3 was deleted.
Item No.'s 6.3 and 7.2 were amended.
Item No.'s 7.4; 7.7; and 7.8 were postponed to January 11, 2022.

               
1. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as

appropriate.
 
1. 1. Presentation and discussion by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, regarding

updates on potential for providing customer choice to LP&L customers, the timing and content
of a potential irrevocable opt-in resolution, the need for a provider of last resort and any
potential process for same, distribution projects necessary for opt-in, proceedings before the
Public Utility Commission of Texas, customer education on retail choice, changes in business
processes and operations, and other related matters regarding the initiation of competition for
retail electric service in Lubbock Power & Light’s certificated retail service area.

David McCalla, director of electric utilities, introduced the item, gave comments, and answered
questions from City Council. Matt Rose, LP&L government relations & public affairs manager;
Luke Miller, engineering manager with LP&L; Jamie Wood, customer service manager for
LP&L; Jenny Smith, general counsel for LP&L; and David McCalla, director of electric utilities,
gave a presentation on the potential for providing customer choice to LP&L customers and
answered questions from City Council. Topics discussed included: the history of retail choice in
Lubbock and the state of Texas; the goals of LP&L's transition into ERCOT; capital distribution
projects related to the potential opt in to retail choice; the impacts that retail choice would have

  



on customer service and utility billing; necessary organizational changes; the draft resolution
related to the potential opt in to retail choice, and the conditions that would be included in the
resolution; and the advantages and disadvantages of opting in to retail choice. 

 
1. 2. City Council 2021 Street Bond Follow-up Discussion

Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale introduced the item and gave comments. 

City Council engaged in discussion on the 2021 Street Bond that failed at the November 2, 2021
Bond Election. Topics discussed included: the possibility of holding another election, and the
timing of that election; and the possible creation of a citizens advisory committee to study next
steps and future options. 

Rebecca Garza, city secretary, gave comments and answered questions from City Council. 

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale asked staff to add this topic to the January 11, 2022, work session
for further discussion. 
 

 
1. 3. Continuing American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Discussion

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation on American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds
as they relate to the City of Lubbock and answered questions from City Council. Topics
discussed included: an update on the ledger and current placeholders related to ARPA funds; and
remaining balances. 

Discussion ensued among City Council on potential placeholders that can be added to the ledger. 

There was consensus among City Council to add a $5 million placeholder for small business
assistance and a $3 million placeholder that will be used to obtain and match grants related to
parks and recreation. 

 
At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recessed into Executive Session.
 
2. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 2:48 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 4:34 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 5:09 p.m.

 
2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with

legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on
matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

 
2. 1. 1. City Council Rules and Procedures
 
2. 1. 2. Legal advice and counsel regarding matters identified in Section 2.4(a)-(f) of this Agenda

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 2 of 17



 
2. 1. 3. Legal issues regarding customer choice and Texas Utilities Code, Chapters 39 and 40
 
2. 1. 4. Downtown Civic Park
 
2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to

deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.
 
2. 2. 1. Lots 1 through 20, Block 130, Original Town of Lubbock
 
2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.076 to

discuss or deliberate the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of security
personnel or devices; or a security audit.

 
2. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.086, to discuss

and deliberate, on the following competitive matters of Lubbock Power & Light, reasonably
related to the following categories:

a. generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those 
....costs, capital improvement plans for generation units, and generation unit operating 
....characteristics and outage scheduling; 

• Discuss and deliberate generation matters.

b. bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation and fuel, and Electric 
....Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and strategies; 

• Discuss and deliberate issues regarding bidding and pricing for purchased power, 
...generation, and fuel, and Electric Reliability Council of Texas prices and related services 
...and strategies.

c. effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and 
....contracts; 

• Discuss and deliberate purchased power and fuel matters.

d. risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage; 
• Discuss and deliberate risk management strategies.

e. plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales (other
...than transmission and distribution system improvements inside the service area for which the 
....public power utility is the sole certificated retail provider); 

• Discuss and deliberate plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements,
..additions, or sales.

f. customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information, system
...load characteristics, and electric power marketing analyses and strategies. 

• Discuss and deliberate customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power
...pricing information, system load characteristics, and electric power marketing analyses 
...and strategies.

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 3 of 17



 
 
4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.

City Council reconvened at 4:34 p.m.
 
3. Ceremonial Items
 
3. 1. Lubbock High School Orchestra

The Lubbock High School Orchestra performed for City Council and those in attendance. Alejos
Anaya, Lubbock High School orchestra teacher, gave comments and thanked the City Council
for the opportunity to perform. 

 
3. 2. Invocation

Senior Minister Matthew Spitsberg, Raintree Christian Church, led the invocation.
 
3. 3. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Steve
Massengale.

 
3. 4. Proclamations and Presentations
 
3. 4. 1. Presentation by Lubbock Area United Way recognizing the City of Lubbock's Annual

Campaign

Mark Griffin, campaign chair with Lubbock Area United Way, presented a special
recognition in honor of the City of Lubbock's annual campaign that raised over $150,000.
Mr. Griffin gave special thanks to Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; Floyd Mitchell, police
chief; Shaun Fogerson, fire chief; and Lisa Thomason, civic center director/chair of the
City of Lubbock's United Way Campaign. Additionally, Glenn Cochran, president & CEO
of Lubbock Area United Way, presented Ms. Thomason with a plaque recognizing the City
of Lubbock's campaign and its success. 

 
Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 5:09 p.m.
 
4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on December 14, 2021.  Citizen Comments is an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. Any
comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 4 of 17



Sign ups: 

Thomas Payne appeared before City Council to speak in favor of item 7.20 (resolution
authorizing the Mayor to execute an Annexation Agreement for an area of land south of
146th Street and east of Avenue P).

 
5. Minutes
 
5. 1. October 19, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board

November 16, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
November 17, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Joint with Commissioner's Court

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy to

approve the October 19, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
minutes; the November 16, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting minutes; and the
November 17, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Joint Meeting with Commissioner's
Court minutes.  

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve items 6.1-6.2; 6.4-6.15; and 6.17-6.31.  
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
6. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0166,

Amendment 3, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Department of State Health Services for
the HIV Prevention Services Grant; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

  

 
6. 1. 1. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0482 ratifying the acts of the

Mayor in executing Amendment No. 3 to the Texas Department of State Health Services
Contract No. HHS000077800035, under the HIV Prevention Services Grant, and related
documents, by and between the City of Lubbock, and the State of Texas acting by and
through the Department of State Health Services (DSHS).

  

 
6. 2. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2021-O0167, abandoning and closing   

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 5 of 17



6. 2. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2021-O0167, abandoning and closing
a 20-foot underground utility easement, located in Tract L, West End Addition, Lubbock
County, Texas.

  

 
6. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Engineering: Ordinance No. 2021-O0168, amending Chapter 22 of

the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, Texas, amending Articles 22.03 "Water
Generally" and 22.04 "Wastewater System", in order to allow for certain utility contractors to tap
certain City of Lubbock utility mains for water and sewer.

This item was amended.

Mike Keenum, division director of engineering/city engineer, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Randy Christian to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0168 with the following amendment:
  

Replacement of the reference to "Class C Wastewater Operator license" with "Class II
Wastewater Operator license" in Section 22.04.045(a). 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
6. 4. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0483 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Change Order No. 1 to Contract 15477, with Garney Construction, for construction of the Low
Head C Supply Pipeline along 26th Street.

  

 
6. 5. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0484 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to Contract 14993, with Parkhill, for construction phase services related to the
Indiana Avenue Corridor Design.

  

 
6. 6. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0485 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Change Order No. 1 to Contract 15872, with Horseshoe Construction, Inc., for providing
construction services for the Low Pressure Supply Line Rehabilitation Project along Quaker
Avenue.

  

 
6. 7. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0486 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to Contract 15387, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for professional engineering
bid phase and construction phase services related to the Stormwater Master Plan evaluation of
future stormwater system improvement projects, including drainage issues in Vintage Township.

  

 
6. 8. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0487 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 2 to Contract 13870, with Plummer Associates, Inc., for professional
engineering construction phase services for the construction of a new 8-million gallon ground
storage tank at the North Water Treatment Plant.

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 6 of 17



 
6. 9. Resolution - Water System Operations: Resolution No. 2021-R0488 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 16042, with Erlys Janitorial Services, for mowing services at the South Water
Treatment Plant.

  

 
6. 10. Resolution - Solid Waste: Resolution No. 2021-R0489 accepting, for and on behalf of the City

of Lubbock, a donation of trash receptacle carts from Betenbough Quality Homes, Inc., to
provide trash and garbage collection and removal services for citizens of the City of Lubbock.

  

 
6. 11. Resolution - Solid Waste: Resolution No. 2021-R0490 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement 15866, with Parkhill, for Phase II of
professional services for the Solid Waste Transfer Station.

  

 
6. 12. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2021-O0170, reviewing

classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and
filing with the City Secretary the assessment role; levying 2022 assessments for the cost of
certain services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2022-23; fixing
charges and liens against the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and
providing for the collection of the assessment. 

  

 
6. 13. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0491 approving a Downtown

Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Reside
Lubbock, LLC, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of
Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

  

 
6. 14. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0492 approving a Downtown

Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Reside
Lubbock, LLC, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of
Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

  

 
6. 15. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0493 approving a program or

expenditure of the Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA), to be provided to
Bandera Ventures, LP, pursuant to Section 501.073 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

  

 
6. 16. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0509 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 16316, with The Broussard Group, Inc., dba TBG Partners, for professional
services for design development and construction documents, for a Civic Park in Downtown
Lubbock.

Brianna Gerardi, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council. Dan Williams, 2022 chair of the Central Business District Tax Increment
Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors, gave comments and answered questions from
City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Randy Christian to

approve Resolution No. 2021-R0509. 

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 7 of 17



  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
6. 17. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2021-R0494 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 2 to Contract 15038, with Webber LLC, to extend the contract term of the land
lease agreement at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

  

 
6. 18. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0495 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 27120983, with Creative Bus Sales, Inc., to purchase two Promaster
paratransit vans for Citibus.

  

 
6. 19. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0496 authorizing the Mayor to

execute an Interlocal Agreement, pursuant to the Texas Government Code 791, with Dallas Area
Rapid Transit, a regional transportation authority created under Chapter 452 of the Texas
Transportation Code, for a Subscription and License for the GoPass mobile application
for Citibus.

  

 
6. 20. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0497 authorizing the Mayor to

execute a Memorandum of Agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock and RATP Dev
USA, for the implementation of the Kronos payroll system for Citibus employees.

  

 
6. 21. Resolution - Health Benefits: Resolution No. 2021-R0498 authorizing the Mayor to execute

for, and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, the BlueCross BlueShield of Texas Administrative
Services Only Benefit Program Application, for the Employee Group Health Plan for Plan Year
January 1, 2022, to January 1, 2023.

  

 
6. 22. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2021-R0499 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 10024759, in accordance with BuyBoard Contract 579-19, by and
between the City of Lubbock and SHI Government Solutions, for a Rocket.Chat
Cloud-Managed support plan for Emergency Management.

  

 
6. 23. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0500 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 31063201, in accordance with HGAC Contract EF04-21, with Kustom Signals,
Inc., for the purchase of forty-one Raptor Radars to be installed on Police Patrol vehicles.

  

 
6. 24. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0501 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 31063374, in accordance with BuyBoard Contract 601-19, with Grapevine DCJ,
LLC, for the purchase of three (3) half-ton pickups for Police Investigations and one (1) half-ton
pickup for Police Patrol. 

  

 
6. 25. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0502 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 3163359, in accordance with TIPS Contract 200206, with Silsbee Ford, for the
purchase of two half-ton pickups for Lubbock Fire Rescue, and one half-ton pickup for Police
Special Operations.

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 8 of 17



6. 26.  Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0503 authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 16244, per RFP 21-16244-MA, with Pro Petroleum, LLC, for bulk motor unleaded and
diesel fuel services for City vehicles and Citibus.

  

 
6. 27. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Resolution No. 2021-R0504 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 6 to the Lease Agreement, with Joyland Amusement Park, to extend
the term until February 28, 2022.

  

 
6. 28. Resolution - City Secretary: Resolution No. 2021-R0505 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Service Agreement Contract 16250, with MCCi LLC, for document scanning services, software
licenses and annual support in accordance with Buy Board Contract 625-20, and in regard to the
City's Document Management System.

  

 
6. 29. Resolution - Lubbock Fire Rescue: Resolution No. 2021-R0506 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Professional Services Agreement Contract 16038, per RFQ 21-16038-MC, with
Brinkley Sargent Wiginton Architects, for architectural and engineering services for the
construction of Fire Station 20.

  

 
6. 30. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2021-R0507 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Developer Participation Agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock and Rocket Partners I,
LLC, for public improvements for the construction of a multi-company fire station at 142nd
Street and Indiana.

  

 
6. 31. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2021-R0508 authorizing the Mayor to execute the

13th Declaration of Disaster regarding the COVID-19 (Coronavirus) pandemic, which continues
this disaster declaration without any local restrictions on businesses or individuals in the City of
Lubbock.

  

 
7. Regular Agenda
 
7. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - City Secretary: Ordinance No. 2021-O0169, approving the

redistricting of the single-member City Council Districts and establishing new single-member
district boundary lines for City Council Elections based on 2020 Census Data, and providing for
an effective date.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0169. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 2. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Engineering: Ordinance No. 2021-O0171, amending Chapter 36 of

the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, by repealing Article 36.09, Utility Construction
in Public Rights-of-Way, and Article 36.10, Wireless Communication Facilities in the Public
Rights-of-Way; by adding Chapter 37, Infrastructure Construction, to provide clarification and
improve enforcement capabilities within established and future Rights-of-Way; providing a

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 9 of 17



penalty; providing a savings clause; and providing for publication.

This item was amended.

Mike Keenum, division director of engineering/city engineer, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council. 

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0171 with the following amendment:
  

to approve a substitute ordinance that makes minor clarifications to the original
ordinance and one substantive addition at the request of LP&L. The substantive
change is Section 37.01.034(g), requiring the permit holder to notify LP&L if they
will be lashing or attaching to any city owned electric utility pole.

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 3. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 763-C, a request of Frank

Hayward for Austin M. Carrizales, Tory Brueggeman, Anthony and Rebecca Guajardo, Glaytus
Lee Rumsey, Daniel and Sherri Henley, and John and Mary Jan Beakley, for a zone change
from Single-Family District (R-1) to Commercial-Apartment District (CA) at 5201, 5202, 5203,
5204 70th Street and 7004 Slide Road, located west of Slide Road and south of 69th Street,
Ranch Acres Addition, Lots 1, 2, and 16, and the east 116.12 feet of Lot 15, and consider an
ordinance.

This item was deleted (withdrawn by the applicant).

  

 
7. 4. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 2538-X, a request of Tyson

Rowin for Derek Cooper and Lee Mazurek, for a zone change from Family Apartment District
(A-1) to Local Retail District (C-2) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility at 6801 4th
Street, located south of 4th Street and east of Quincy Avenue on 2.139 acres of unplatted land
out of Block JS, Section 10, and consider an ordinance.

This item was postponed.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Chad Weaver, city attorney, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale opened the public hearing at 5:49 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale closed the public hearing at 6:01 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Shelia Patterson

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 10 of 17



  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Shelia Patterson
Harris to postpone this item to the January 11, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 5. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0182, for Zone Case 3096-G, a request of

Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Red Canyon Development, LLC, for a zone change from
Single-Family District (R-1) to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) Specific Use for
townhomes at 10601 Chicago Avenue, located east of Chicago Avenue and south of 106th
Street, on 12.1 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 25, and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale opened the public hearing at 5:49 p.m.

Terry Holeman, with Hugo Reed & Associates, appeared to speak in favor. 

No one appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale closed the public hearing at 6:01 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0182. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 6. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0183, for Zone Case 3309-B, a request of

AMD Engineering, LLC for Lubbock Land Company, for a zone change from Single-Family
District (R-1) Specific Use to Two-Family District (R-2), generally located south of 116th Street
and east of Louisville Avenue, on 8.99 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 22, and
consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale opened the public hearing at 5:49 p.m.

Westin McCowen, with AMD Engineering, appeared to speak in favor. 

No one appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale closed the public hearing at 6:01 p.m.

  

 
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 11 of 17



  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to
approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0183. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 7. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3448-A, a request of Centerline

Engineering & Consulting LLC for Fleet Pickup Accessories S2 Farms Feed and Firewood, for a
zone change from Transition District (T) to Local Retail District (C-2) Specific Use for a
Self-Storage Facility and Commercial District (C-4) at 3511 North Frankford Avenue, located
south of Kent Street and west of Frankford Avenue, on 4 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS,
Section 12, and consider an ordinance.

This item was postponed.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale opened the public hearing at 5:49 p.m.

Justin Cantwell, with Centerline Engineering; and Mike Schwartzkotf, the property owner,
appeared to speak in favor.

No one appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale closed the public hearing at 6:01 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Randy Christian to

postpone this item to the January 11, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 8. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3453, a request of Cita Lopez, for

a zone change from Transition District (T) to Local Retail District (C-2) with a Specific Use for
an Event Center at 5525 122nd Street, located south of 122nd Street and west of Chicago
Avenue, Frankford Farms Addition, the west 111 feet of the north 376 feet of Tract 18, and
consider an ordinance.

This item was postponed.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale opened the public hearing at 5:49 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 12 of 17



No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale closed the public hearing at 6:01 p.m.
 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Randy Christian to

postpone this item to the January 11, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 9. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No, 2021-O0184, for a request for the deannexation

of an area of approximately 14.8 acres inside the southwestern city limits of the City of
Lubbock, generally lying between 114th Street and 130th Street, and east of the Wolfforth City
limits.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale opened the public hearing at 6:15 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale closed the public hearing at 6:16 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0184. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 10. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0180, for Zone Case 1893-DD, a

request of McDougal Realtors for 4th Street Holdings, Ltd., for a zone change from General
Retail District (C-3) to Commercial District (C-4) at 6020 4th Street, located west of Homestead
Avenue and north of 4th Street, on 7.36 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 2.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Stephen Quisenberry, the proponent, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Randy Christian to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0180. 
  Vote: 4 - 2 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member Latrelle Joy 
  Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris 

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 13 of 17



Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0172, for Zone Case 2538-AA, a

request of Betenbough Homes, for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Reduced
Setback Single-Family District (R-1A), at 7111 26th Street, located south of 26th Street and east
of Upland Avenue, on 21.646 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 43.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0172. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 12. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0173, for Zone Case 2538-Z, a

request of AMD Engineering, LLC for MCP Enterprises, LLC, for a zone change from
Single-Family District (R-1) to General Retail District (C-3) at 7112, 7118, and 7120 19th
Street, located north of 19th Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 11.7 acres of unplatted land
out of Block JS, Section 10.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0173. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 13. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0174, for Zone Case 2556-D, a

request of Raymond Dale and Nannette Pectol, for a zone change from Garden Office District
(GO) to Two-Family District (R-2) at 2516 81st Street, located west of University Avenue and
north of 81st Street, Gatewood Addition, Lot 53.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0174. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 14 of 17



 
7. 14. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0175, for Zone Case 3132-A, a

request of R2M Engineering, LLC for Harvest Church Lubbock, Inc., for a zone change from
High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) with
a Specific Use for Garden Homes, generally located south of 58th Street and east of Wausau
Avenue, on 41.465 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 34.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0175. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 15. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0176, for Zone Case 3449, a

request of OJD Engineering, LLC for Toot' N Totum, for a zone change from Transition District
(T) to Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC), at 9711 Highway 87, located north of 98th
Street and east of Highway 87, on 2.26 acres of unplatted land out of Block E, Section 8.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0176. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 16. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0177, for Zone Case 3451, a

request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for NWP EB-5 Project, LLC, for a zone change from
Single-Family District (R-1), Two-Family District (R-2), Family Apartment District (A-1),
High-Density Apartment District (A-2), and Local Retail District (C-2) to Reduced Setback
Single-Family District (R-1A), High-Density Apartment District (A-2), Local Retail District
(C-2), and General Retail District (C-3) generally located east of Slide Road and south of
Ursuline Street, on 262.4 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 5.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0177. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 15 of 17



  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 17. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0178, for Zone Case 3452, a

request of Hugo Reed & Associates, Inc. for Red Canyon Development, LLC, for a zone change
from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use, Transition District (T), High-Density Apartment
District (A-2), and Garden Office (GO) to Local Retail District (C-2) and General Retail District
(C-3), at 11202 Indiana Avenue, located north of 114th Street and west of Indiana Avenue, on
17.6 acres of land out of Block E-2, Section 18, including Southern Pine Valley Golf Course
Addition, Lot 1.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0178. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 18. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0181, for Zone Case 3452-A, a

request of Hugo Reed & Associates, Inc. for Red Canyon Development, LLC, for a Specific Use
for an Event Center on property zoned Local Retail District (C-2), at 11202 Indiana Avenue,
located north of 114th Street and west of Indiana Avenue, on 4.2 acres of unplatted land out of
Block E-2, Section 18.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0181. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 19. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0179, for Zone Case 3454, a

request of Parkhill for Plains Capital Bank, for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1)
Specific Use to Local Retail District (C-2) at 5014 University Avenue, located west of
University Avenue and south of 50th Street, Caprock Addition, Tract C, Lot 2.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0179. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 16 of 17



  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 
7. 20. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2021-R0510 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

Annexation Agreement with Donald Macha, Raynard Macha, Felicia Macha Fillingim, Melvin
Macha, Joseph Macha, Marie Elizabeth Macha, as Trustee of The Marie Elizabeth Macha Trust,
Macha Holdings, LLC, and Fehleison Properties, Ltd., for an area of land generally described as
approximately 986.51 acres, adjacent to the southeastern city limits of the City of Lubbock,
south of 146th Street and east of Avenue P.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Resolution No. 2021-R0510. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (ABSENT) 

 

6:35 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pro Tem Massengale adjourned the
meeting.

 
The December 14, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
25th day of January, 2022.

  
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 14, 2021 Page 17 of 17



 AI# 10294 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 1. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2022-O0001, Amendment 4, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Capital Fund to establish Capital Improvement Project 92754, Cyber Security Infrastructure; providing
for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On January 11, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

I. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92754, Cyber Security Infrastructure, and appropriate funding
of $2,240,500, funded with American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds. Proposed critical infrastructure
improvements are:

  
1.  Backup and Recovery $   241,500
2.  Critical Infrastructure Security 1,413,000
3.  Cisco Phone System Security 21,000
4.  Radio System Security 165,000
5.  Fiber Optic Security/Capacity 400,000
 TOTAL $2,240,500

 
Annual recurring costs after implementation total $196,100.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 4 







 AI# 10342 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 2. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance 2022-O0002,
Amendment 5, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Civic Center
and General Funds; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On January 11, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.
  

 I.  Amend Civic Center Cost Center 4813, by adding one additional full-time position, Custodian.
II.  Amend Public Health Cost Center 5415, by adding one additional full-time position, Disease
Intervention Specialist.  The new position will be grant funded.  

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 5 







 AI# 10348 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 3. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2022-O0003, Amendment 7, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Lake Alan Henry Fund to appropriate funding for the purchase of a boat used for Parks and Recreation
operations for Lake Alan Henry; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On January 11, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

Amend the FY 2021-22 Lake Alan Henry Operating Budget by increasing the appropriation by $23,760,
from $637,639 to $661,399, for the purchase of a boat used for Parks and Recreation operations for Lake
Alan Henry. 

The operations conducted with the boat include but are not limited to: 
• Removing trash and debris from shoreline;
• Relocation and replacement of buoys;
• Inspecting and replacing cables on the boat dock;
• Traveling to and surveying archeological sites;
• The transportation of stranded or broken down patrons; and
• Any and all emergencies taking place on the water.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer.

Attachments
Budget Amendment 7 







 AI# 10353 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 4. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2022-O0004, Amendment 8, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Grant Fund to establish and appropriate funding for Capital Improvements Project 92756 Civic Park;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On January 11, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

Establish Capital Improvement Project 92756, Civic Park, and appropriate funding in the amount of
$1,000,000. The funding will be from a $500,000 CH Foundation Grant, and a $500,000 Helen Jones
Foundation Grant.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 8 







 AI# 10358 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 5. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2022-O0005, Amendment 9, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Lubbock Power & Light Operating and Capital Program; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

Item Summary
On January 11, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

Establish Capital Improvement Project 92755, Massengale Station Gas Turbine #8 Repairs and
appropriate funding in the amount of $4,500,000. The project will utilize FY 2021-22 cash funding. The
project scope and justification is as follows:           

Project Scope:
This project is to repair and restore Gas Turbine #8 at Massengale Station. The project includes costs
related to engineering and repairs of the gas turbine and auxiliary equipment.  

Project Justification:
In September of 2021, Gas Turbine #8 at Massengale Station suffered a forced outage and is out for
repairs. Returning this generation unit to service will provide capacity for LP&L to serve its native load
in the Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT).

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) Accounts: 343 

Estimated Useful Life: 10 years        

Amend Fund 211, “Electric Operating Fund”, by increasing the Transfer to the Capital Program in the
amount of $4,500,000, from $20,969,731 to $25,469,731.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer.

Attachments
Budget Amendment 9 
EUB Resolution 













 AI# 10364 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 6. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2022-O0006, Amendment 10, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund to appropriate funding for the purchase of fence construction used in Solid Waste Landfill
Operations; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On January 11, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

Amend the FY 2021-22 Solid Waste Landfill Operating Budget in the General Fund by increasing the
appropriation by $88,000, from $9,687,345 to $9,775,345, for fence construction.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer.

Attachments
Budget Amendment 10 







 AI# 10346 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 7. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 6,
amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the General Capital Fund to
establish Capital Improvement Project 8668, Diversion Center Contribution, and Capital Improvement
Project 92757, Housing Projects; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.    

Item Summary
I.  Establish Capital Improvement Project 8668, Diversion Center Contribution, and appropriate funding
of $3,500,000, funded with American Rescue Plan Act Grant funds. 
II. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92757, Housing Projects, and appropriate funding of
$2,500,000, funded with American Rescue Plan Act Grant funds.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer.

Attachments
Budget Amendment 6 







 AI# 10421 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 8. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 11,
amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant Fund to accept and
appropriate funding from the U.S. Department of Treasury for Emergency Rental Assistance and the
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) for the FY 2021 Comprehensive
Energy Assistance Program (CEAP) and American Rescue Plan Act Grant providing for filing; and
providing for a savings clause.   

Item Summary

Accept and appropriate additional $7,000,000 from the U.S. Department of the Treasury for the
Emergency Rental Assistance Program for a total appropriation of $14,821,802. Additional funding
will fund Direct services totaling $6,300,000 and Administration costs totaling $700,000.

1.

Accept and appropriate $1,525,972 from the TDHCA for the FY 2021 CEAP and American Rescue
Plan Act Grant. Direct services to include Household Crisis, Utility Assistance and Program
Services total $1,387,261; Administration costs total $138,711.

2.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 11 







 AI# 10352 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 9. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the City Manager in
purchasing, for and on behalf of Lubbock Power and Light, the City’s municipal electric utility, property
insurance coverage to include boiler and machinery coverage. The subject insurers are AIG, Argenta,
Munich RE, Travelers, Amlin, Guide One, Kiln/Faraday, ARK, Aspen, Alcor, and Chubb as listed in the
attachment along with the terms and conditions.

Item Summary
The City purchases property insurance on behalf of Lubbock Power and Light, the City’s municipal
electric utility, for its structures, contents, and equipment. The coverages include, but are not limited to:
  

Special Form Property Policy, formerly known as All Risk, covers direct physical loss up to
$552,526,095, which is the estimated total value of all electric utility structures, contents, and
equipment;
Flood and earthquake coverage to include high hazard zones; 
All property and contents;
Mobile equipment and vehicles;
Boiler and machinery insurance provides coverage for the mechanical failure and damage of
generating equipment, boilers, heating, ventilating, air conditioning equipment, pumps and other
mechanical equipment, excluding wear and tear; and
Business Interruption coverage.

The City, on behalf of LP&L, currently utilizes a layered coverage program including AEGIS, Axis
Surplus Insurance Company, Ren Re Synd. 1458, SCOR UK Company Limited, Syndicate 1221 –
Navigators, Inter Hannover, Syndicate 2001- MS Amlin, Syndicate 1200 – Argo, Syndicate 1301 –
StarStone, Arch Ins Co (Europe) Ltd., Syndicate 1686 – Axis, Ironshore Bermuda, and Helvetia. The
non-generating property deductible remains flat at $1,000,000 per occurrence. Generating property
deductibles range from $250,000 to $1,000,000 per occurrence. The current rate for this coverage is
$0.4746 per $100 valuation and a premium of $2,183,600.

Current year and proposed premium is a combination of property and boiler and machinery coverage.
Bundling both property and boiler and machinery coverages affords the electric utility greater coverage,
and allows access to loss prevention services that include state inspections for boilers, infrared
thermographic testing, oil analysis, and Doble testing, on electric generating and distribution equipment.

The City’s broker secured a layered coverage program with AIG, Argenta, Munich RE, Travelers,
Amlin, Guide One, Kiln/Faraday, ARK, Aspen, Alcor, and Chubb. Approving this insurance coverage
on a rate basis allows the City Manager the ability to add and remove properties, as necessary, to
maintain an accurate property valuation.

Carriers bind insurance coverage October 1, 2021, after notification of City Council approval. Insurance
policies are issued after premiums are received from the City. The policy for the insurance coverage is



approved by the Texas Department of Insurance as to content. Current insurance policies are available
for review in Risk Management.

Fiscal Impact
Funds are budgeted in the 2021-22 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - LPL Prop Ratification 
LP&L Property 





$360m

EWORP000121A EWORP000121C

Premium 2,073,424$    Premium 2,819,201$    

Argenta 7.50% Travelers 5.00%

Helvetia 7.50%

HDI 7.50%

SCOR 6%

$100M

Total 28.50% Total 5.00%

$15m

Premium for share Premium for share

Tower for share 590,925.84$  140,960.05$  

Tower Price 100% 2,073,424$    2,819,201$    



AIG Munich Munich Excess Layer

Premium 2,920,000$    Premium 1,407,817$    Premium 1,055,683$    

AIG 18.00% Munich 15.00% Munich (XS) 4.00%

Total 18.00% Total 15.00% Total 4.00%

Premium 1,852,586$    

Amlin 4.00%

Faraday 3.00%

Kiln 7.50%

Total 14.50%

Premium for share Premium for share Premium for share

525,600.00$  211,172.55$  310,852.29$  

2,920,000$    1,407,817$    2,908,269$    

EWORP000121D

Primary $15M



AIG Excess Layer

Premium 650,000$         Premium 1,810,400$    

Chubb (BDA) 12.50% AIG (XS) 17.00%

Total 81,250.00$     

Premium 691,891$         

Premium $735,135 Ark 7.50%

Alcor 5% Total 7.50%

Prorated Premium 659,041$         

Total 5% Aspen 5.00% Total 17.00%

Arch* 2.50%

*Annual Premium: $850,000

Total 7.50%

Premium 2,162,162$      Premium 2,035,000$    

ARK 4.50% Guide One 14.50%

Total 4.50% Total 14.50%

Premium for share Premium for share Premium for share

215,304.04$     279,867.19$    602,843.00$  

3,547,297$       4,163,094$      3,845,400$    

Primary $15M

EWORP000121D EWORP000121E EWORP000121D

$260M xs $100M

Primary $15MPrimary $15M

$85M xs $15M $35M xs $65M

$50M xs $15M



TOTALS

$360M 100.00%

$100M 100.00%

$65M 100.00%

$15M 100.00%

Composite Premium

2,140,752.41$           



l

10/4/2021

Policy Year

Description Values: Rates Premium Surplus Lines Tax & Fee

Property Damage including Business Interruption $558,729,452 $0.5536 $3,092,969 $100,861

Standalone Terrorism Policy $558,729,452 $0.0036 $20,250 $982

Loss Control Services $22,500 $0
Placement Service Fee $40,000 $0

APPA Marketing Fee $0 $0 NOT TO EXCEED Difference

Annual Property Premium Including: 

Taxes/Fees/Additional Services/Terrorism
$3,254,599 $22,962

All In Property Rate Per $100 Insured $0.5825 -0.0041

Carriers AIG Argenta Munich RE Travelers Amlin Guide One Kiln/Faraday ARK

*Aspen

$50M XS

Amlin ($15M)

*Alcor

$85M XS

Amlin ($15M)

*Ark

$35M XS

($65M)

*AIG 

XS

Amlin ($15M)

*Munich 

XS

Amlin ($15M)

*Chubb

 XS

$100M *Excess Layers added to complete LOL

Premium $2,920,000.00  $           2,073,424.00  $           1,407,817.00 2,819,201.00$           1,852,586.00$                 2,035,000.00$           1,852,586.00$           2,162,162.00$           659,041.00$              $735,135 691,891.00$              1,810,400.00$           1,055,683.00$           650,000.00$              

Loss Load 

based on Unit 8 loss reserved at $9.3M

Payable after loss settles  $          1,000,000.00  $             414,684.80  $             351,954.25 563,840.20$              370,517.20$                    -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           

Line Size 18.00% 28.50% 15.00% 5.00% 4.00% 14.50% 10.50% 4.50% 7.50% 5.00% 7.50% 17.00% 4.00% 12.50%

Line Premium (excl Loss Load)  $              525,600.00  $              590,925.84  $              211,172.55  $              140,960.05  $                      74,103.44  $              295,075.00  $              194,521.53  $                97,297.29  $                49,428.08  $                36,756.75  $                51,891.83  $              307,768.00  $                42,227.32  $                81,250.00 

Total Line Premium (incl Loss Load)  $                  705,600.00  $                  709,111.01  $                  263,965.69  $                  169,152.06  $                           88,924.13  $                  295,075.00  $                  194,521.53  $                    97,297.29  $                    49,428.08  $                    36,756.75  $                    51,891.83  $                  307,768.00  $                    42,227.32  $                    81,250.00 

Policy Limit

* Denotes Annual Aggregate
$360,000,000 $360,000,000 $360,000,000 $360,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $50,000,000 $50,000,000 $35,000,000 $345,000,000 $345,000,000 $260,000,000

Earth Movement
$250,000,000 $250,000,000 $360,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000

Earth Movement (High Hazard) Excludes CA EQ
No Coverage $20,000,000 $20,000,000

20,000,000.00$              
$20,000,000 $20,000,000 $20,000,000 $20,000,000 $20,000,000 $20,000,000 $20,000,000 No Coverage $20,000,000 $20,000,000

Flood $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000 $250,000,000

Flood Zone A or V (High Hazard) $5,000,000 $30,000,000 $30,000,000 $30,000,000 $30,000,000 $30,000,000 $30,000,000 $30,000,000 $30,000,000 $30,000,000 $30,000,000 $5,000,000 $30,000,000 $30,000,000

Named Windstorm (High Hazard) $250,000,000 $100,000,000 $100,000,000 $100,000,000 $100,000,000 $100,000,000 $100,000,000 $100,000,000 $100,000,000 $100,000,000 $100,000,000 $50,000,000 $100,000,000 $100,000,000

Newly Acquired Property $50,000,000 $50,000,000 $50,000,000 $10,000,000 $50,000,000 $50,000,000 $50,000,000 $50,000,000 $50,000,000 $50,000,000 $50,000,000 $25,000,000 $50,000,000 $50,000,000

Property in the Course of Construction $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $10,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $1,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000

Personal Property $1,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $1,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $5,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000

Valuable Papers and Records $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $1,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $10,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000

Accounts Receivable $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $1,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $25,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000

Debris Removal (25% or) $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $15,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $2,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000

Fire & Police Department Charges & Extinguishing 

Cost
$2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $5,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000

Expediting Expense $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $15,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000

Property in Transit $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 30 Days / 1 Mile $15,000,000 $15,000,000

Ingress/Egress and Prohibited Access
30 Days / 1 Mile / 

$10,000,000 max
30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 1 Mile limit 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days / 1 Mile 30 Days 30 Days 

Civil or Military Authority
30 Days / 1 Mile / 

$10,000,000 max
30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 1 Mile limit 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days $1,000,000 30 Days 30 Days 

Hazardous Substances or Contaminants - Property Insured $1,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $1,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $25,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000

Hazardous Substances or Contaminants -

 Land and Water (Annual Aggregate)
$25,000 Included Above

included above
Included Above Included Above Included Above Included Above $25,000,000 Included Above Included Above

Demolition and Increased Cost of Construction $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $15,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $10,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000

Errors and Omissions $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $1,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000

Miscellaneous Unnamed Locations $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $1,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 30 Days $10,000,000 $10,000,000

Impounded Water 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days  30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days $25,000 30 Days 30 Days 

Fine Arts $25,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $1,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $10,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000

Rental Transformers & Spare Equipment $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $1,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $500,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000

Professional Fees $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 No Coverage $500,000 $500,000

Recovery of Salvage No Coverage $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $10,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000

Pair & Set $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $1,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000

Electronic Data Processing Media Valuation $10,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $1,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000 $5,000,000 $25,000,000 $25,000,000

Extra Expense $5,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $5,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $1,000,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000

Contingent Time Element
$1,000,000 $2,500,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 No Coverage $1,100,000 $1,100,000

Rental & Leased Equipment No Coverage $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $6,500,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000

Business Interruption $6,500,000 $6,500,000 $6,500,000 $6,500,000 $6,500,000 $6,500,000 $6,500,000 $6,500,000 $6,500,000 $6,500,000 $6,500,000 $6,500,000 $6,500,000

Standalone Terrorism Policy

Deductible - Per Occurrence

Property Damage $1,000,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $1,000,000 $250,000 $250,000

Non-generating/Transmission locations $1,000,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $1,000,000 $250,000 $250,000

$100,000,000

Lubbock Power & Light, the City of Lubbock's  municipally owned electric utility

2021-2022

Services provided by AIG

Services provided by Wortham

-

$3,277,561

$0.5866



l

10/4/2021

Policy Year

Description Values: Rates Premium Surplus Lines Tax & Fee

Lubbock Power & Light, the City of Lubbock's  municipally owned electric utility

2021-2022

Steam Turbine Generators including Machinery 

Breakdown $1,000,000 $5,000,000 $500,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $1,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000
Combustion Turbine Generators including 

Machinery Breakdown $1,000,000 $5,000,000 $500,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $1,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000

Cooke #2 54.3MW Turbine or Generator including 

Machinery Breakdown $1,000,000 $5,000,000 $500,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $1,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000

LM6000 $1,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $1,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000
Massengale #8 43MW Turbine or Generator 

inlcuding Machinery Breakdown $1,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $1,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000

Transit $1,000,000 $250,000 $50,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $1,000,000 $250,000 $250,000

Electronic Data Processing Equipment $1,000,000 $250,000 $10,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $1,000,000 $250,000 $250,000

Contractor's Equipment $1,000,000 $250,000 $10,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $1,000,000 $250,000 $250,000

Flood (High Hazard) $1,000,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $500,000 and 

maximum of $5,000,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $500,000 and 

maximum of $5,000,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $500,000 and 

maximum of $5,000,000

2.50%, subject to minimum of 

$500,000 and maximum of 

$5,000,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $500,000 and 

maximum of $5,000,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $500,000 and 

maximum of $5,000,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $500,000 and 

maximum of $5,000,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $500,000 and 

maximum of $5,000,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $500,000 and 

maximum of $5,000,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $500,000 and 

maximum of $5,000,000 $1,000,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $500,000 and 

maximum of $5,000,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $500,000 and 

maximum of $5,000,000

Named Windstorm $1,000,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $250,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.50%, subject to minimum of 

$100,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000 $1,000,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.50%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

Earth Movement (High Hazard) $1,000,000

2.00%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.00%, subject to 

minimum of $250,000

2.00%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.00%, subject to minimum of 

$100,000

2.00%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.00%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.00%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.00%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.00%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.00%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000 $1,000,000

2.00%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

2.00%, subject to 

minimum of $100,000

Transformers $1,000,000

$1.50KVA, subject to a 

minimum of $100,000

$1.50KVA, subject to a 

minimum of $350,000

$1.50KVA, subject to a 

minimum of $100,000

$1.50KVA, subject to a 

minimum of $100,000

$1.50KVA, subject to a 

minimum of $100,000

$1.50KVA, subject to a 

minimum of $100,000

$1.50KVA, subject to a 

minimum of $100,000

$1.50KVA, subject to a 

minimum of $100,000

$1.50KVA, subject to a 

minimum of $100,000

$1.50KVA, subject to a 

minimum of $100,000 $1,000,000

$1.50KVA, subject to a 

minimum of $100,000

$1.50KVA, subject to a 

minimum of $100,000

Standalone Terrorism Policy

Time Element

Business Interruption 60 Days Waiting Period 45 Day 

45 Day 

90 Day - Massengale #8 45 Day 60 Days 60 Days 60 Days 60 Days 60 Days Waiting Period 60 Days 60 Days

Contingent Business Interruption 60 Days Waiting Period 45 Day 15 Days 45 Day 60 Days 60 Days 60 Days 60 Days 45 Day 45 Day 45 Day 60 Days Waiting Period 60 Days 60 Days

Actual Cash Value Restrictions N/A N/A

Actual Cash Value, with 

a maximum of USD 

15,000,000 including

Debris Removal on all 

turbine generators 

except Brandon 1 and 

Massengale 8

ACV with Max $15M 

Debris Removal

on all turbine generators 

except Brandon 1 and 

Massengale 8

ACV with Max $15M Debris 

Removal

on all turbine generators 

except Brandon 1 and 

Massengale 8

ACV with Max $15M 

Debris Removal

on all turbine generators 

except Brandon 1 and 

Massengale 8

ACV with Max $15M 

Debris Removal

on all turbine generators 

except Brandon 1 and 

Massengale 8

ACV with Max $15M 

Debris Removal

on all turbine generators 

except Brandon 1 and 

Massengale 8

45 Day 45 Day 45 Day 

N/A

ACV with Max $15M 

Debris Removal

on all turbine generators 

except Brandon 1 and 

Massengale 8

ACV with Max $15M 

Debris Removal

on all turbine generators 

except Brandon 1 and 

Massengale 8

LM6000 increased 

retentions - until 

satisfactory responses to 

TILs

$25,000



 AI# 10347 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 10. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0008, abandoning and
closing portions of 13th Street and Vernon Avenue within Block 72, Overton Addition, west of 2201
Broadway, Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
On January 11, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close portions of 13th Street and Vernon
Avenue, between Tracts A and B, Overton Addition, Lubbock County, Texas. 
 
The total area being closed is 28,769 square-feet, of which a 10,921 square-foot portion of Vernon
Avenue Right-of-Way was originally dedicated by the proponent, First Baptist Church; therefore, there
will be no charge for this portion of the closure. The remaining 17,848 square feet of the 13th Street
Right-of-Way is valued at $0.63 per square foot, based on adjacent property land values, for a total of
$11,244.24 due to City of Lubbock. An underground utility easement will be dedicated back to the City;
therefore, a 50% credit will be applied, resulting in a total due to the City of $5,622.12.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
Revenue of $5,622.12 to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Ord - ROW, 13th Street and Vernon Ave. 
Exhibit A - Abandon and Close two Streets - Blk 72 Overton 
Map - Abandon and Close two Streets - Blk 72 Overton 









21 22

2 1TR 10

1824

7

16 1414 20 15132319

6

17

2

16 17

1

19

16

18

15 16

TR 11

15

7

8

12

12

13

13

5

13

9 610 7

10

11

21

4

911

20

1914

14

5

17

6 5

2420

68

23

20

16

7

21

78

15

16

221914

15

12

17

23

22

3

23

249 15

24

3

1915

8

19 18

21

22

17

17

11

36 4

16

24

16

22

10

18
A

13

19 24

17

224

9

20 23

2321

21176 22

18

19

23

20

18

24

18

24

18

12

2120

1

8 9518
B

UNSUBDIVIDED

TR B

TR A

83

84

73

55

54

5671
85

72

As required by Chapter 2051, SUBCHAPTER D. GEOSPATIAL DATA PRODUCTS of the Government Code, the City of Lubbock hereby provides notice that the data
on this map was created by the City of Lubbock. Any data that appears to represent property boundaries is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Closure of Portions of 13th Street and Vernon Avenue
Located Within Block 72, Overton Addition

Portion of 13th Street Dedicated by Plat (V18 P610) to be Closed
17,848 sq ft

OVERTON

BROADWAY

15TH ST
OVERTON

LUBBOCK

HIGH

MRS E M

SOWELL

0 100 200 300
Feet

GLENNA GOODACRE BD

13TH ST

19TH ST

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
V

E

A
V

E 
S

A
V

E 
W

A
V

E 
X

OVERTON

PARK

SOUTHWELL

PLACE

OVERTON PARK

MCMCRUMMENS

SECOND

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

OVERTON PARK

HANKIN
S

ELLWOOD PLACE

L I S
 D

THE

CENTRE

A
V

E 
V

MAC DAVIS LN

BROADWAY

13TH ST 13TH ST

A
V

E 
W

A
V

E 
VA

V
E 

X

Portion of Vernon Ave Originally Dedicated by
First Baptist Church (V363 P159) to be Closed

10,921 sq ft



 AI# 10403 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 11. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an amendment to
Contract 16364, with Hub City Main Street Investment, LLC, for a warehouse lease extension of time.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock currently leases a warehouse from Hub City Main Street Investment, LLC.  This
agreement will extend the lease agreement from January 1, 2022, to December 31, 2026.

Fiscal Impact
The cost for the lease is $13,070.25 per month.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - 2021 Lease Amendment - Hub City 
2021 Lease Amendment - Hub City Main Street Investments, LLC 









 AI# 10411 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 12. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 16363, with
Freese and Nichols, Inc., for providing professional services for the Unpaved Roads Improvements
Project.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is contracting with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for performing engineering and design
for the Unpaved Roads Improvements Project. The work of the project will include preparation of plans,
specifications, and design, of asphalt pavement of various gravel and dirt roads in existing subdivisions
where the roads were never constructed by the developer. Additionally, the consultant will provide
recommendations for needed rights-of-way and easements, for the construction of the identified
roadways.

Staff conducted contract negotiations with Freese and Nichols, Inc., after establishing them as qualified
for providing engineering services for the Unpaved Roads Improvements Project. Fair and reasonable
hourly rates were agreed upon for a total contract amount of $250,000, with contract duration of 18
months. Staff recommends Freese and Nichols, Inc., of Lubbock, Texas, be awarded the contract that
will provide the plans, specifications, and estimate, for the Unpaved Roads Improvements Project.

Fiscal Impact
This contract in the amount of $250,000, is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92712,
Transportation Improvements/Unpaved, which is funded by the 2021 Tax Supported Certificates of
Obligation.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Professional Services Agreement 
Location Exhibit 
CIP Spreadsheet 
CIP Detail 













































A
V

E
 Q

P
E

A
C

H
A

V
E

E MARSHA
SHARP FWY

O
LI

V
E

A
V

E

G
U

A
V

A
 A

V
E

KEUKA ST

N
 U

N
IV

E
R

S
IT

Y
 A

V
E

REGIS ST
REGIS ST

50TH ST

SLATON RD

M
UNIC

IP
AL D

R

KENT ST

M
 L

K
IN

G
 J

R
B

LV
D

BLUEFIELD ST

IN
D

IA
N

A
A

V
E

FR
A

N
K

FO
R

D
 A

V
E

G
U

A
V

A
A

V
E

G
U

A
V

A
A

V
E

AV
E

A 
D

R
SO

U
TH

N
 O

LI
V

E
A

V
E

AVE Q

SOUTH DR

E 4TH ST

50TH ST

E 82ND ST

E URSULINE ST

114TH ST

E 34TH ST

A
S

H
 A

V
E

E FM 1294

E 19TH ST

R
E

S
E

A
R

C
H

 B
LV

D

N
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
A

V
E

S
LI

D
E

 R
D

N
 I

N
D

IA
N

A
A

V
E

66TH ST

N
 M

IL
W

A
U

K
E

E
A

V
E

SOUTHEAST DR

N
 A

VE
 Q

 D
R

N
 A

S
H

 A
V

E

U
S

 8
7

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 A
V

E

E BROADWAY

N
 A

V
E

 Q

BROADWAY

E 4TH ST

SPUR 327

E KENT ST

E 82ND ST

ID
ALO

U R
D

IN
LE

R
 A

V
E

PARKWAY DR

URSULINE ST

E 19TH ST

TEX
A

S TEC
H

 P
K

W
Y

N
 F

R
A

N
K

FO
R

D
 A

V
E

KENT ST

SE LOOP 289

N
 S

LI
D

E
 R

D

SOUTHEAST DR

A
V

E
 A

E 50TH ST

E REGIS ST

A
LC

O
V

E
 A

V
E

NE LOOP 289

N
 A

V
E

 P

E MUNICIPAL DR

E ERSKINE ST

N
 G

U
A

V
A

 A
V

E

19TH ST

N
 M

 L
 K

IN
G

 J
R

 B
LV

D

A
LC

O
V

E
 A

V
E

E SLATON RD

E
 L

O
O

P
 2

8
9

W
 LO

O
P

 289

M
 L

 K
IN

G
JR

 B
LV

D

Q
U

A
K

E
R

 A
V

E

50TH ST

34TH ST

CLOVIS RD

4TH ST

S LOOP 289

N LOOP 289

IN
T

E
R

S
T

A
T

E
 2

7

146TH ST

FR
A

N
K

FO
R

D
 A

V
E

114TH ST

MARSHA SHARP FWY

N
 I

N
T

E
R

S
T

A
T

E
 2

7

ERSKINE ST

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 A
V

E

IN
D

IA
N

A
 A

V
E

130TH ST

U
P

LA
N

D
 A

V
E

M
IL

W
A

U
K

E
E

 A
V

E

98TH ST

82ND ST

As required by SECTION 1. Chapter 2051, SUBCHAPTER D.
GEOSPATIAL DATA PRODUCTS of the Government Code, the City
of Lubbock hereby provides notice that the data on this map was
created by the City of Lubbock. Any data that appears to represent
property boundaries is for informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or
surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative location of property
boundaries.

Unpaved Road Improvements, C.O., Phase 2

0 6,000 12,000
Feet

Lubbock City Limits

Unpaved Road Improvements, C.O., Phase 2

Q
U

E
T

Z
E

L 
A

V

R
E

D
W

O
O

D
 A

V

E 60TH ST

E 61ST ST

E 62ND ST

U
T

E
 A

V

E 47TH ST

V
A

N
D

A
 A

V

E 48TH ST

19TH ST

R
E

S
E

A
R

C
H

 B
D

22ND ST

21ST ST

20TH ST

E RICE ST

E URSULINE ST

E
 R

IC
E

 D
R

N
 V

A
R

N
IS

H
 A

V

ID
ALO

U R
D

N
 U

P
A

S
 A

V

N
 T

W
IN

B
E

R
R

Y
 A

V

N
 T

U
R

M
E

R
IC

 A
V

N
 T

U
LI

P
 A

V

U
R

B
A

N
A

 P
L

Y
U

M
A

 A
V

Y
U

K
O

N
A

V

U
P

LA
N

D
 A

V

22ND
PL

W
A

U
S

A
U

 A
V

18TH ST

23RD ST

26TH ST

19TH ST

22ND ST

24TH ST

V
IO

LAA
V

W
A

V
E

R
LY

A
V

V
E

N
IT

A
 A

V

27TH ST

25TH ST

21ST ST

A A

B

C

C

B D

D

E

E



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

Construction Contract 16211, West Texas Paving, Inc., 1,297,081                 

-                                

Agenda Item  January 25, 2022

Cost Sharing and Payment Agreement 16181 358,210                    

Professional Service Agreement 16363 with Freese and Nichols 250,000                    

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,905,291                 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation

Unimproved Roadway Construction and Design 7,702,919                 

Remaining Appropriation 7,094,709                 

Total Appropriation 9,000,000$               

City of Lubbock

92712

Transportation Improvements/Unpaved Roads

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

January 25, 2022







 AI# 10412 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 13. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 16267, with
Horseshoe Construction, Inc., for construction services associated with the North University Sewer Line
Relocation Project.

Item Summary
The proposed project will relocate 1,140 feet of 18-inch sanitary sewer pipe, and 200 feet of 21-inch
sanitary sewer pipe, along North University Avenue between Auburn Street and Colgate Street.
 
On December 5, 2021, the City of Lubbock released a Request for Proposals (RFP) seeking qualified
contractors to perform construction services for the North University Sewer Line Relocation Project. In
response to RFP-22-16267-TF, the following three bids were received on December 22, 2021.
  

Contractor Bid Price
Horseshoe Construction, Inc., La Porte, Texas $644,880
Utility Contractors of America, Inc, Lubbock, Texas $764,825
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Amarillo, Texas $919,000

The proposals were evaluated using the following criteria: Price (65 points), Contractor Qualifications
(30 points), and Construction Time (5 points). A 4-member committee evaluated the proposals and the
following ranking was obtained:
  

Contractor Points
Horseshoe Construction, Inc., La Porte, Texas 359.04
Utility Contractors of America, Inc., Lubbock, Texas 347.16
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Amarillo, Texas 300.16

Staff and the Evaluation Committee recommend award of the contract to the highest ranked contractor,
Horseshoe Construction, Inc., of La Porte, Texas, in the amount of $644,880. The time for substantial
completion of the project is 100 consecutive calendar days. This contract is awarded by the unit price
and actual expenditures may be more or less, depending on field conditions.

Fiscal Impact
This contract in the amount of $644,880, is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92514, Sewer Lines
Ahead of Street Paving.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager



Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Construction Contract 
Location Exhibit 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary Report 







City of Lubbock, TX

Public Works

RFP 22-16267-TF

North University Sewer Line Change Out

Item Description

QTY

(+/-) UoM Unit Cost

Extended 

Cost

#1-1 Mobilization 1 LS  $ 50,000.00      50,000.00 

#1-2
SW3P, provide and maintain, including preparation, NOI, NOT, 

and all other work considered incidental to this item.
1 LS       1,000.00        1,000.00 

#1-3

Traffic Control, provide and maintain including approval from 

COL Traffic Engineering to all sites, and all other work considered 

incidental to this item.

4 MO       4,000.00      16,000.00 

#2-1

21" PVC ASTM F-679 PS-46, furnish and install approved Sewer 

pipe in 8"-10'' open cut trench, bedding, embedding and backfilled 

to 95% compaction, including trench safety

191 LF          240.00      45,840.00 

#2-2

18" PVC ASTM F-679 PS-46, furnish and install approved Sewer 

pipe in 8'-10' open cut trench, bedding, embedding and backfilled 

to 95% compaction, including trench safety

1,141 LF          215.00    245,315.00 

#2-3

8" PVC ASTM 3034 SDR-35, furnish and install approved Sewer 

pipe in 6'-8' open cut trench, bedding, embedding and backfilled to 

95% compaction, including trench safety

50 LF          155.00        7,750.00 

#2-4

48" Manhole, furnish and install, fiberglass, polymer composite or 

concrete as herein specified, including all equipment, tools, and 

labor to perform work.

1 EA       6,600.00        6,600.00 

#2-5

48" Manhole Extra Vertical Feet, furnish and install, fiberglass, 

polymer composite or concrete  as herein specified, including all 

equipment, tools, and labor to perform work.

3 VF          175.00           525.00 

#2-6

60" Manhole, furnish and install fiberglass, polymer composite or 

coated/lined concrete  as herein specified, including all equipment, 

tools, and labor to perform work.

7 EA       9,900.00      69,300.00 

#2-7

60" Manhole Extra Vertical Feet, furnish and install fiberglass, 

polymer concrete or coated/lined concrete, as herein specified, 

including all equipment, tools, and labor to perform work.

46 VF          300.00      13,800.00 

#2-8 Tie-in existing sewer line into new manhole 4 EA       3,500.00      14,000.00 

#2-9 Crossing existing water mains 4 EA       4,500.00      18,000.00 

#2-10 Crossing 60" storm water line 1 EA       5,500.00        5,500.00 

#2-11 Crossing existing storm water laterals 5 EA       3,800.00      19,000.00 

#2-12 Cut and Plug existing 15" sewer line 10 EA       3,200.00      32,000.00 

#2-13 Abandon and grout existing 15" sewer line 60 CY          350.00      21,000.00 

#2-14 Demolish/abandon existing manhole 3 EA       2,500.00        7,500.00 

#2-15 Flow fill (CLSM) as needed 50 CY          150.00        7,500.00 

Horseshoe Construction, Inc. of La Porte, TX

Sewer Improvements

General 



City of Lubbock, TX

Public Works

RFP 22-16267-TF

North University Sewer Line Change Out

#3-1

Saw cut and remove existing asphalt paving, including all material, 

equipment and labor to perform removal, disposal and all other 

work considered incidental to this item.

650 SY            25.00      16,250.00 

#3-2 24" flowable fill cap, full width, finish even with asphalt. 320 CY          150.00      48,000.00 

 $     644,880 

Paving Repair

Total (Items 1-1 through 3-2):













As required by SECTION 1. Chapter 2051, SUBCHAPTER D. GEOSPATIAL DATA PRODUCTS of the
Government Code, the City of Lubbock hereby provides notice that the data on this map was created
by the City of Lubbock. Any data that appears to represent property boundaries is for informational
purposes and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate

relative location of property boundaries.

North University Sewer Line Change Out ¯Proposed Manholes

North University Sewer Line Replacement

BAYLOR ST
BAYLOR ST

AUBURN ST

COLGATE ST

N
 U

N
IV

E
R

S
IT

Y
 A

V
E

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

Staff Time 48,468$              

Professional Services 24                       

Sewer systems improvements 463,648              

Agenda Item January 25, 2022

Horseshoe Constructors, Inc. Contract 16267 644,880              

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,157,020           

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation

392,980              

Remaining Appropriation 392,980              

Total Appropriation 1,550,000$         

Sewer Lines Ahead of Street Paving

City of Lubbock

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

January 25, 2022

92514



Project Name Sewer Lines Ahead of Street Paving Project Number 92514

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Public Works Engineering

Josh Kristinek

Upgrade/Major Maintenance

Approved

Installation of sewer lines ahead of municipal, county, and state paving projects including, but not limited to, Gateway Paving Projects.

Project Justification

Coordinating line change-outs with street paving projects reduces paving costs associated with line change-outs and minimizes 

customer inconvenience.

Project History

$250,000 was appropriated in the FY 2017-18 Budget, Ord. No. 2017-O0111, October 1, 2017.

$250,000 was appropriated in the FY 2018-19 Budget, Ord. No. 2018-O0109, October 1, 2018.

$250,000 was appropriated in the FY 2020-21 Budget, Ord. No. 2020-O0123, October 1, 2020.

$800,000 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  750,000  800,000  250,000  250,000  250,000  250,000  250,000  2,800,000 

Total Project Appropriation  750,000  800,000  250,000  250,000  250,000  250,000  250,000  2,800,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2018 Water/Wastewater Cash  250,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  250,000 

FY 2019 Water/Wastewater Cash  250,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  250,000 

FY 2021 Water/Wastewater Cash  250,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  250,000 

FY 2022 Water/Wastewater Cash  0  800,000  0  0  0  0  0  800,000 

FY 2023 Water/Wastewater Cash  0  0  250,000  0  0  0  0  250,000 

FY 2024 Water/Wastewater Cash  0  0  0  250,000  0  0  0  250,000 

FY 2025 Water/Wastewater Cash  0  0  0  0  250,000  0  0  250,000 

FY 2026 Water/Wastewater Cash  0  0  0  0  0  250,000  0  250,000 

FY 2027 Water/Wastewater Cash  0  0  0  0  0  0  250,000  250,000 

Total Funding Sources  750,000  800,000  250,000  250,000  250,000  250,000  250,000  2,800,000 



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 22-16267-TF 

North University Sewer Line Change Out 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on December 5 & December 12, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from December 5 to December 22, 2021. 

7 individuals attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

34 vendors viewed using Bonfire.com.  

34 vendors downloaded the documents. 

19 vendors were notified separately.  

3 vendors submitted a proposal. 

 



 AI# 10413 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 14. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Cost Sharing and
Payment Agreement 16181, with Ford Development Corporation, for roadway improvements along Ash
Avenue from 66th Street to South Loop 289.

Item Summary
The City Council established Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 92712, Unpaved Roadways, with
Budget Amendment Ordinance No. 2021-O0077, and CIP 92484, Substation Upgrades, through Budget
Ordinance No. 2021-O0126.  Ford Development Corporation is in the process of developing the area
adjacent to Ash Avenue. It is the intention that both parties can benefit from significant cost savings, by
utilizing the same engineering firm for design of both portions of this corridor. Likewise, the project can
expedite construction efforts and avoid duplicate costs, by utilizing a single contractor to complete the
project as a whole.

The engineering and construction costs will be divided between the City of Lubbock, LP&L, and Ford
Development Corporation, as stipulated in the agreement. The construction portion will follow the City's
procurement process and will be bid out and procured by the City. The project will include shared cost
for the roadway improvements along Ash Avenue from 66th Street to South Loop 289.

The City of Lubbock and LP&L's contribution will not exceed the appropriated amount of $492,329.

Fiscal Impact
This agreement in the amount of $492,329, will be funded by two sources through CIP 92712 Unpaved
Roadways, in the amount of $358,210 and CIP 92484, Substation Upgrades, in the amount of $134,119.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
EUB Signed Resolution 
Agreement 
Location Exhibit 
CIP Spreadsheet 
CIP Detail - 92484 
CIP Detail - 92712 



































���������
�����	�
���������

����������	�����������

����

������
����������

������	

�����

��
����

�
�
�
�
	

�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��
�
 
�
!
�
"
#
�
$
%

�&
'%
(
��
�
�!
)
*
*
�
&
+

,-
.
/
0
0
1
2
3
-4
1
5
6
7
-8
-.
9:
;
<

=
>?
@A
@B
CD



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended 92484 92712

Staff Time 169,841                    

Professional Services Advertisement 617                           

System Capital Improvements Constriction 1,880,188                 

Construction Contract 16211, West Texas Paving, Inc., -                                1,297,081            

Agenda Item  January 25, 2022

Cost Sharing and Payment Agreement 16181 134,119                    358,210               

Professional Service Agreement 16363 with Freese and Nichols 250,000               

Encumbered/Expended To Date 2,184,765                 1,905,291            

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation

3,165,235                 7,094,709            

Remaining Appropriation 3,165,235                 7,094,709            

Total Appropriation 5,350,000$               9,000,000$          

Project Cost Detail

Capital Project 

Transportation Improvements/Unpaved Roads

City of Lubbock

Budget

Unimproved Roadway Construction and Design & Electrical 

System Improvements

92712

Substation Upgrades

92484

January 25, 2022



�������������	
���������	��������������
��
�� ���



���������	
� ������������������ ����������
��� ��� �

!"#$$%&$%'#()*+,-#""'".+/)#%0

12"*'".+(&

3#()

4&(#-

12"*'".5�67869�:��	8;
1/+<=<>?<< @ABCDCCECF 1/+<=<G?<H 1/+<=<H?<I 1/+<=<I?<J 1/+<=<J?<K

1/+<=>K+G=?/)#%+L,ML+N)O)"2)+

P&"*0

+J>IQ===+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +J>IQ===+

1/+<=>R+G=?/)#%+L,ML+N)O)"2)+

P&"*0

+>Q>>=Q===+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +>Q>>=Q===+

1/+<=<>+G=?/)#%+L,ML+N)O)"2)+

P&"*0

+GQJ<IQ===+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +GQJ<IQ===+

S���T�U�����������V�� +IQGI=Q===+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +IQGI=Q===+

!"#$$%&$%'#()*+,-#""'".+/)#%0

4&(#-+WX$#Y(1/+<=<>?<< @ABCDCCECF 1/+<=<G?<H 1/+<=<H?<I 1/+<=<I?<J 1/+<=<J?<KZ[��	�869�\�79���]
[	��

+=+&̂+WX$#Y(+_"('Y'$#()* +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+

S���T�̀���������a������bc��V� +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+ +=+

dee fghdidejddhklmnopqrshtuvsmphorvhwolqpoxhynzsno{







 AI# 10391 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 15. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16221, with Green Dream International, LLC, to establish the annual pricing for raw construction
materials, for repair of streets, alleys, and utility installations.

Item Summary
This contract establishes the annual pricing of various sand, rock and gravel products used in the Public
Works Departments as raw material in the construction and repair of streets, allies and utility
installations. The original bid advertisement stipulates that the City can award this contract on an “Item
by Item” basis. In order to ensure the City gets the best pricing available on a product, the Staff
recommendation as outlined below will be to award item by item to multiple vendors.  The original
Invitation To Bid (ITB) included 8 bid items in the bid proposal.

In response to ITB 22-116221-SB, bids were received and opened on November 17, 2021, from the
following vendors:
  

Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC, of San Antonio, Texas
Green Dream International, LLC, of Erie, Pennsylvania
West Texas Paving Inc., of Wolfforth, Texas

This contract award is for Bid Items 1, 2, 3, and 6 of ITB 22-16221-SB, Raw Materials for Public Works
departments, as shown in the attached Bid Tab Form.

The contract is awarded by the unit price.  The total amount of the award is estimated based on expected
quantities and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on actual quantities.  The price per
unit will not change.

Staff is recommending award of Contract 16221 to Green Dream International, LLC, of Erie,
Pennsylvania, as vendor for Contract Items 1, 2, 3, and 6, for an approximate amount of $225,225.

Fiscal Impact
Funding is available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budgets of multiple Public Works cost
centers.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments



Resolution - Green Dream Contract 16221 
Contract 16221 - Green Dreamal pricing 2021\Copntract 16221 
10391_Bid_Tab_Form (r)_-_ITB_22-16221-SB,_Green_Dream (4) 
Project Summary Sheet - ITB 22-16221-SB 





















City of Lubbock - Public Works
ITB 22-16221-SB Raw Materials for Public Works

Bid Tabulation Sheet

Vendor Location Qty Required UOM Unit Price Extended Cost

#0-1 - "00" Backfill Gravel 
Green Dream International, LLC Erie, PA 500 Ton $31.35 $15,675.00
West Texas Paving, Inc Wolfforth, TX 500 Ton No Bid No Bid
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC San Antonio, TX 500 Ton No Bid No Bid

#0-2 - 1/2" Base Aggregate (1/2" Base Course Gravel)
Green Dream International, LLC Erie, PA 3000 Ton   25.85   77,550.00 
West Texas Paving, Inc Wolfforth, TX 3000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC San Antonio, TX 3000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

#0-3 - 3/4" Base Aggregate (3/4" Base Course Gravel)
Green Dream International, LLC Erie, PA 3000 Ton   35.20   105,600.00 
West Texas Paving, Inc Wolfforth, TX 3000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC San Antonio, TX 3000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

#0-4 - 1" Concrete Gravel (1" Concrete Rock)
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC San Antonio, TX 1000 Ton   35.50   35,500.00 
Green Dream International, LLC Erie, PA 1000 Ton   39.60   39,600.00 
West Texas Paving, Inc Wolfforth, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

#0-5 - Screenings (Crusher Fines)
West Texas Paving, Inc Wolfforth, TX 50 Ton   12.00   600.00 
Green Dream International, LLC Erie, PA 50 Ton   24.20   1,210.00 
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC San Antonio, TX 50 Ton   35.50   1,775.00 

#0-6 - Concrete Sand
Green Dream International, LLC Erie, PA 1000 Ton   26.40   26,400.00 
West Texas Paving, Inc Wolfforth, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC San Antonio, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

#0-7 - Flowable Backfill (2 Sack Concrete Blend)
Green Dream International, LLC Erie, PA 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
West Texas Paving, Inc Wolfforth, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC San Antonio, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

#0-8 - 1 3/4" Base Aggregate Flexible Base (Refer to City of 
Lubbock Engineering Minimum Design Standards and 
Specifications section 8.08.02)
West Texas Paving, Inc Wolfforth, TX 100 Ton   18.00   1,800.00 
Green Dream International, LLC Erie, PA 100 Ton   31.35   3,135.00 
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC San Antonio, TX 100 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

All or None
Green Dream International (Items 1, 2, 3, 6) $225,225.00
West Texas Paving, Inc. (Items 5 and 8)   2,400.00 
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC (Item 4)   35,500.00 

101631
Highlight

101631
Highlight

101631
Highlight

101631
Highlight

101631
Highlight

101631
Highlight

101631
Highlight

101631
Highlight

101631
Highlight



City of Lubbock - Public Works
ITB 22-16221-SB Raw Materials for Public Works

Bid Tabulation Sheet



 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
Project Summary 

ITB 22-16221-SB Raw Materials for Public Works Operations  
 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on October 24 and October 31, 2021. 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on Bonfire-hub.com from October 22, 2021 to November 9, 2021. 
17 vendors took documents from Bonfire-hub.com 
9 vendors were notified separately.  
3 vendors submitted a bids. 

 



 AI# 10389 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 16. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16339, with Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC, to establish the annual pricing for raw construction
materials for construction and repair of streets, alleys, and utility installations.

Item Summary
This contract is a part of an overall project to establish the annual pricing of certain raw materials. These
products are used in the Public Works departments as raw material in the construction and repair of
streets, alleys and utility installations. The advertised bid document stipulates that the City can award
this contract on an “Item by Item” basis. In order to ensure the City gets the best pricing available on a
product Staff recommendation as outlined below will be to award item by item to multiple vendors. The
original Invitation To Bid (ITB) included 8 bid items in the bid proposal.  

In response to ITB 22-116221-SB, bids were received and opened on November 17, 2021, from the
following vendors:
  

Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC, of San Antonio, Texas
Green Dream International, LLC, of Erie, Pennsylvania
West Texas Paving Inc., of Wolfforth, Texas

This contract award is for Bid Item 4, one-inch concrete rock, of ITB 22-1622-SB, Raw Materials for
Public Works departments, as shown in the attached Bid Tab Form.

The contract is awarded by the unit price.  The total amount of the award is estimated based on expected
quantities and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on actual quantities.  The price per
unit will not change.

Staff is recommending award of Contract 16339 to Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC, of San Antonio,
Texas, as vendor for Contract Item 4, for the approximate amount of $35,500.

Fiscal Impact
Funding is available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budgets of multiple Public Works cost
centers.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments



Resolution 
Contract 16221 - Vulcan Contruction 
Bid Tab - Contract 16221, Vulcan Contruction 
10389_Bid_Tab_Form (r)_-_Item_4 (1) 
Project Summary - Contract 16221 































City of Lubbock - Public Works
ITB 22-16221-SB Raw Materials for Public Works

Bid Tabulation Sheet

Vendor Location Qty Required UOM Unit Price Extended Cost

Erie, PA 500 Ton $31.35 $15,675.00
Wolfforth, TX 500 Ton No Bid No Bid
San Antonio, TX 500 Ton No Bid No Bid

Erie, PA 3000 Ton   25.85     77,550.00 
Wolfforth, TX 3000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
San Antonio, TX 3000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

Erie, PA 3000 Ton   35.20     105,600.00 
Wolfforth, TX 3000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
San Antonio, TX 3000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

San Antonio, TX 1000 Ton   35.50     35,500.00 
Erie, PA 1000 Ton   39.60   39,600.00 
Wolfforth, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

Wolfforth, TX 50 Ton   12.00   600.00 
Erie, PA 50 Ton   24.20   1,210.00 
San Antonio, TX 50 Ton   35.50   1,775.00 

Erie, PA 1000 Ton   26.40     26,400.00 
Wolfforth, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
San Antonio, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

Erie, PA 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
Wolfforth, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
San Antonio, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

Wolfforth, TX 100 Ton   18.00   1,800.00 
Erie, PA 100 Ton   31.35   3,135.00 
San Antonio, TX 100 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

$225,225.00
  2,400.00 

#0-1 - "00" Backfill Gravel 
Green Dream International, LLC
West Texas Paving, Inc
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC

#0-2 - 1/2" Base Aggregate (1/2" Base Course Gravel) 
Green Dream International, LLC
West Texas Paving, Inc
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC

#0-3 - 3/4" Base Aggregate (3/4" Base Course Gravel) 
Green Dream International, LLC
West Texas Paving, Inc
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC

#0-4 - 1" Concrete Gravel (1" Concrete Rock)
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC
Green Dream International, LLC
West Texas Paving, Inc

#0-5 - Screenings (Crusher Fines)
West Texas Paving, Inc
Green Dream International, LLC
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC

#0-6 - Concrete Sand
Green Dream International, LLC
West Texas Paving, Inc
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC

#0-7 - Flowable Backfill (2 Sack Concrete Blend)
Green Dream International, LLC
West Texas Paving, Inc
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC

#0-8 - 1 3/4" Base Aggregate Flexible Base (Refer to City of 
Lubbock Engineering Minimum Design Standards and 
Specifications section 8.08.02)
West Texas Paving, Inc
Green Dream International, LLC
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC

Green Dream International (Items 1, 2, 3, 6)
West Texas Paving, Inc. (Items 5 and 8)
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC (Item 4)   35,500.00 



City of Lubbock - Public Works
ITB 22-16221-SB Raw Materials for Public Works

Bid Tabulation Sheet



City of Lubbock - Public Works
ITB 22-16221-SB Raw Materials for Public Works

Bid Tabulation Sheet

Vendor Location Qty Required UOM Unit Price Extended Cost

Erie, PA 500 Ton $31.35 $15,675.00
Wolfforth, TX 500 Ton No Bid No Bid
San Antonio, TX 500 Ton No Bid No Bid

Erie, PA 3000 Ton   25.85     77,550.00 
Wolfforth, TX 3000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
San Antonio, TX 3000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

Erie, PA 3000 Ton   35.20     105,600.00 
Wolfforth, TX 3000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
San Antonio, TX 3000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

San Antonio, TX 1000 Ton   35.50     35,500.00 
Erie, PA 1000 Ton   39.60   39,600.00 
Wolfforth, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

Wolfforth, TX 50 Ton   12.00   600.00 
Erie, PA 50 Ton   24.20   1,210.00 
San Antonio, TX 50 Ton   35.50   1,775.00 

Erie, PA 1000 Ton   26.40     26,400.00 
Wolfforth, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
San Antonio, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

Erie, PA 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
Wolfforth, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 
San Antonio, TX 1000 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

Wolfforth, TX 100 Ton   18.00   1,800.00 
Erie, PA 100 Ton   31.35   3,135.00 
San Antonio, TX 100 Ton  No Bid  No Bid 

$225,225.00
  2,400.00 

#0-1 - "00" Backfill Gravel 
Green Dream International, LLC
West Texas Paving, Inc
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC

#0-2 - 1/2" Base Aggregate (1/2" Base Course Gravel) 
Green Dream International, LLC
West Texas Paving, Inc
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC

#0-3 - 3/4" Base Aggregate (3/4" Base Course Gravel) 
Green Dream International, LLC
West Texas Paving, Inc
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC

#0-4 - 1" Concrete Gravel (1" Concrete Rock)
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC
Green Dream International, LLC
West Texas Paving, Inc

#0-5 - Screenings (Crusher Fines)
West Texas Paving, Inc
Green Dream International, LLC
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC

#0-6 - Concrete Sand
Green Dream International, LLC
West Texas Paving, Inc
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC

#0-7 - Flowable Backfill (2 Sack Concrete Blend)
Green Dream International, LLC
West Texas Paving, Inc
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC

#0-8 - 1 3/4" Base Aggregate Flexible Base (Refer to City of 
Lubbock Engineering Minimum Design Standards and 
Specifications section 8.08.02)
West Texas Paving, Inc
Green Dream International, LLC
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC

Green Dream International (Items 1, 2, 3, 6)
West Texas Paving, Inc. (Items 5 and 8)
Vulcan Construction Materials, LLC (Item 4)   35,500.00 

101631
Highlight

101631
Highlight

101631
Highlight



City of Lubbock - Public Works
ITB 22-16221-SB Raw Materials for Public Works

Bid Tabulation Sheet



 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
Project Summary 

ITB 22-16221-SB Raw Materials for Public Works Operations  
 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on October 24 and October 31, 2021. 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on Bonfire-hub.com from October 22, 2021 to November 9, 2021. 
17 vendors took documents from Bonfire-hub.com 
9 vendors were notified separately.  
3 vendors submitted a bids. 

 



 AI# 10390 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 17. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 16215, with West Texas Paving, Inc., to establish the annual pricing of asphalt materials to
repair or replace degraded asphalt paving.

Item Summary
This contract for unit pricing, of various asphalt products used by the Street Maintenance Department,
establishes a term of one year, with the option of 4 one-year extensions.  These asphalt materials are
used to repair damaged asphalt paving caused by utility line maintenance or installation, and to repair
and replace failed and degraded asphalt paving.  The contract includes 8 items used in asphalt repair, and
the advertised bid document stipulates that the City can award this contract on an “Item by Item” basis.  
 
In response to ITB 22-16215-YB, one bid was received and opened on November 17, 2021, from the
following vendor: 

• West Texas Paving, Inc. of Wolfforth Texas, with a total estimated cost of $1,116,000
  
The contract is awarded by the unit price.  The total amount of the award is estimated based on proposed
quantities and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on actual quantities. The price per unit
will not change.
 
Staff recommends award of this contract to West Texas Paving, Inc., of Wolfforth, Texas, for the
assigned item pricing costs, with a total estimated cost of $1,116,000.

Fiscal Impact
Funding is available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Street Maintenance Operating Budget and the Capital
Improvement Project 92697, Street Maintenance.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution - Contract 16215, ITB 22-16215-YB 
Contract 16215 - ITB 22-16215-YBicing 2021 
Project Summary - ITB 22-16215-YB 





































 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

Project Summary 

 

 ITB 22-16215-YB Asphalt Materials 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on October 24 and October 31, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire-hub.com from October 22, 2021 to November 17, 2021. 

9 vendors were notified separately.  

1 vendor submitted a bid. 

 



 AI# 10409 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 18. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16300, with Ti-Zak Concrete, Inc., for Concrete Repair and Patching Project in the 2022 Street
Maintenance Program.

Item Summary
This project will provide for the repair of failed concrete curbs, ramps and valley gutters in the public
road system in targeted areas.  These targeted areas will then be ready for an overlay treatment the
following year, the final step towards having the road system in superior condition.

In response to ITB 22-163000-YB, bids were received and opened on December 28, 2021.  They were as
follows:
  

Contractor Amount
Ti-Zack Concrete, Inc., Le Center, Minnesota $1,583,000
Blackstone Concrete Ventures, Lubbock, Texas $1,586,550
M H Civil, Amarillo, Texas $1,710,000

Time for completion is 180 consecutive calendar days with liquidated damages of $1,204.28 per day for
each consecutive calendar day after substantial completion,  for completion of this project.

This contract is awarded by unit price. The total amount of the award is estimated based on estimated
quantities, actual expenditures may be more or less depending on actual needs the price per unit will not
change, and expenditures will not exceed appropriated funds.

Staff recommends award to the lowest bidder, Ti-Zack Concrete Inc. for the estimated amount of
$1,583,500.

Fiscal Impact
Funding for this project is established in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Capital Improvement Project 92697
Street Maintenance.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution - Ti-Zack Concrete 



Resolution - Ti-Zack Concrete 
Bid Form - Ti-Zack Concrete 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary ITB 16300-YB Concrete Patching 











Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

Contract 15647 2021 Asphalt Repair 1,543,596$                    
Contract 15648 2021 Concrete Repair 1,486,857                      
Contract 14517, Amendment Rejuvinator 2021 994,801                         
Contract 15772, 2021 MicroSurfacing 3,538,696                      

Contract  15778, Wausau Avenue (S. of 82nd St) Rebuild 337,471                         
Contract 15796, Nuisance Branches and Trees Service 
Contract- Asplundh Tree Expert LLC 33,506                            
Contract 15875, Brick Paving Project 13th and Texas-MH 
Civil Constructors Inc. 794,014                         
Contract 15964, MLK Ave. Rebuild 664,295                         
Contract 16027 Rebuild Frankford & Alcove Avenues 1,224,680                      
In-house Mill and Re-lay 474,488                         
Plotter 5,843                              
Bid Cost 933                                 
City of Lubbock Staff Time 3,137                              

Agenda Items, January 25, 2022
Contract 16298, Asphalt Patching 1,470,000                      
Contract 16300, Concrete Patching 1,583,500                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 14,155,816                    

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Street Maintenance 7,699,199                      

Remaining Appropriation 7,699,199                      

Total Appropriation 21,855,015$                  

Street Maintenance 2021

City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
January 25, 2022

92697



Project Name Street Maintenance 2021 Project Number 92697

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Streets

Mike Gilliland

Upgrade/Major Maintenance

Approved

Micro-surfacing, asphalt rejuvenation, asphalt milling, asphalt milling and overlay, full or partial depth pavement repair, total 

reconstruction, patching, crack sealing, concrete joint sealing, and brick street repair.

Project Justification

The project is a preventive maintenance program to help preserve and maintain our street infrastructure.  The maintenance program is 

an essential tool to help extend the useful life of the pavement.  Used early in a pavement's life, preventative maintenance corrects 

small problems before they become big problems, saves money, and improves safety and rideability.  At some point, all roads require 

total rehabilitation as they near the end of their useful life.  Total rehabilitation is completed when funding is available.

Project History

$10,000,000 was appropriated in the FY 2020-21 Budget, Ord. No. 2020-O0123, October 1, 2020.

$1,155,015 was appropriated in FY 2020-21, BCR# 2021-9, April 23, 2021.

Reduced appropriation by $300,000 in FY 2020-21, BCR# 2021-13,  May 17, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  10,855,015  11,000,000  12,000,000  13,000,000  14,000,000  15,000,000  0  75,855,015 

Total Project Appropriation  10,855,015  11,000,000  12,000,000  13,000,000  14,000,000  15,000,000  0  75,855,015 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2020 General Fund Cash  855,015  0  0  0  0  0  0  855,015 

FY 2021 General Fund Cash  10,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  10,000,000 

FY 2022 General Fund Cash  0  11,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  11,000,000 

FY 2023 General Fund Cash  0  0  12,000,000  0  0  0  0  12,000,000 

FY 2024 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  13,000,000  0  0  0  13,000,000 

FY 2025 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  14,000,000  0  0  14,000,000 

FY 2026 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  0  15,000,000  0  15,000,000 

Total Funding Sources  10,855,015  11,000,000  12,000,000  13,000,000  14,000,000  15,000,000  0  75,855,015 



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

Project Summary 

 

 ITB 22-16300-YB Concrete Patching 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on December 5 and December 12, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire-hub.com from December 3, 2021 to December 28, 2021. 

23 vendors took documents from Bonfire-hub.com 

9 vendors were notified separately.  

3 vendor submitted a bid. 

 



 AI# 10406 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 19. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16298, with Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Ltd., for Asphalt Repair and Patching Project in the 2022 Street
Maintenance Program. 

Item Summary
This project will provide for the repair of failed asphalt sections of public roads in targeted areas.  These
targeted areas will then be ready for an overlay treatment the following year, the final step towards
having the road system in superior condition.

In response to ITB 22-16298-YB, one bid proposal was received and opened on December 28,
2021 from the following contractor: 

• Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Lubbock, Texas in the amount of $1,470,000.
  
Time for completion is 120 consecutive calendar days with liquidated damages of $1,204.28 per day for
each consecutive calendar day after substantial completion set forth herein above for completion of this
project.

This contract is awarded by unit price. The total amount of the award is estimated based on estimated
quantities, actual expenditures may be more or less depending on actual needs the price per unit will not
change, and expenditures will not exceed appropriated funds.

Staff recommends award to Lone Star Dirt and Paving in the amount of $1,470,000.

Fiscal Impact
Funding for this project is established in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Capital Improvement Project 92697
Street Maintenance.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution - Lone Start Dirt and Paving 
Bid Form - Lone Start Dirt and Paving 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary ITB 22-16298-YB Asphalt Patching 













Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

Contract 15647 2021 Asphalt Repair 1,543,596$                    
Contract 15648 2021 Concrete Repair 1,486,857                      
Contract 14517, Amendment Rejuvinator 2021 994,801                         
Contract 15772, 2021 MicroSurfacing 3,538,696                      

Contract  15778, Wausau Avenue (S. of 82nd St) Rebuild 337,471                         
Contract 15796, Nuisance Branches and Trees Service 
Contract- Asplundh Tree Expert LLC 33,506                            
Contract 15875, Brick Paving Project 13th and Texas-MH 
Civil Constructors Inc. 794,014                         
Contract 15964, MLK Ave. Rebuild 664,295                         
Contract 16027 Rebuild Frankford & Alcove Avenues 1,224,680                      
In-house Mill and Re-lay 474,488                         
Plotter 5,843                              
Bid Cost 933                                 
City of Lubbock Staff Time 3,137                              

Agenda Items, January 25, 2022
Contract 16298, Asphalt Patching 1,470,000                      
Contract 16300, Concrete Patching 1,583,500                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 14,155,816                    

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Street Maintenance 7,699,199                      

Remaining Appropriation 7,699,199                      

Total Appropriation 21,855,015$                  

Street Maintenance 2021

City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
January 25, 2022

92697



Project Name Street Maintenance 2021 Project Number 92697

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Streets

Mike Gilliland

Upgrade/Major Maintenance

Approved

Micro-surfacing, asphalt rejuvenation, asphalt milling, asphalt milling and overlay, full or partial depth pavement repair, total 

reconstruction, patching, crack sealing, concrete joint sealing, and brick street repair.

Project Justification

The project is a preventive maintenance program to help preserve and maintain our street infrastructure.  The maintenance program is 

an essential tool to help extend the useful life of the pavement.  Used early in a pavement's life, preventative maintenance corrects 

small problems before they become big problems, saves money, and improves safety and rideability.  At some point, all roads require 

total rehabilitation as they near the end of their useful life.  Total rehabilitation is completed when funding is available.

Project History

$10,000,000 was appropriated in the FY 2020-21 Budget, Ord. No. 2020-O0123, October 1, 2020.

$1,155,015 was appropriated in FY 2020-21, BCR# 2021-9, April 23, 2021.

Reduced appropriation by $300,000 in FY 2020-21, BCR# 2021-13,  May 17, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  10,855,015  11,000,000  12,000,000  13,000,000  14,000,000  15,000,000  0  75,855,015 

Total Project Appropriation  10,855,015  11,000,000  12,000,000  13,000,000  14,000,000  15,000,000  0  75,855,015 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2020 General Fund Cash  855,015  0  0  0  0  0  0  855,015 

FY 2021 General Fund Cash  10,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  10,000,000 

FY 2022 General Fund Cash  0  11,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  11,000,000 

FY 2023 General Fund Cash  0  0  12,000,000  0  0  0  0  12,000,000 

FY 2024 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  13,000,000  0  0  0  13,000,000 

FY 2025 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  14,000,000  0  0  14,000,000 

FY 2026 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  0  15,000,000  0  15,000,000 

Total Funding Sources  10,855,015  11,000,000  12,000,000  13,000,000  14,000,000  15,000,000  0  75,855,015 



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

Project Summary 

 

 ITB 22-16298-YB Asphalt Patching 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on December 5 and December 28, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire-hub.com from December 3, 2021 to December 28, 2021. 

24 vendors took documents from Bonfire-hub.com 

9 vendors were notified separately.  

1 vendor submitted a bid. 

 



 AI# 10395 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 20. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Solid Waste: Consider a resolution authorizing the City of Lubbock Solid Waste Services
Department to request grant funding under the South Plains Association of Governments Request for
Applications of the Regional Solid Waste Grants Program, to host an electronics waste regional
collection event in 2022.

Item Summary
Grant Summary
Electronics are a rapidly growing source of waste across the country. Much of this material contains
valuable parts that can be recycled and heavy metals that should be kept out of landfills. In Lubbock
County there is not a free disposable or recycling option for residents. the City of Lubbock will seek
grant funding to host an electronics collection event.  By hosting such an event, the City of Lubbock
would lead this area in providing an option for the reuse and recycling of unwanted electronics while
also saving landfill space and promoting environmental sustainability. This aligns with Goal #2 of South
Plains Associations of Governments (SPAG) Regional Solid Waste Management Plan Goals and
Objectives for 2022-2042 which is to develop a regional plan to properly dispose of E-Waste from
households, to partner municipalities with local commercial electronic vendors to develop joint regional
E-Waste disposal and recycling plans, and to educate citizens on the hazards of disposing of electronics
in their local dumpsters.
 
Project Scope
The City of Lubbock will host a Collection Event in 2022 to take in the following material: 

Computers
Laptops/tablets
LCD computer monitors
Printers/fax/scanner etc., 
Mixed wire
Gaming consoles/DVD players/VCR/satellite receivers.
TV’s/ Computer Monitors

The City of Lubbock will utilize vendor STS Electronic Recycling to pick up the collected material and
haul to Jacksonville, TX. The vendor takes good electronics and refurbishes them for reuse and then
takes the unusable electronics apart for recycling.  These services comply with the Environmental
Protection Agency’s Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and ensures environmental responsible
practices.

Fiscal Impact
If approved, the grant will provide the City of Lubbock with $5,000 to promote the event and provide
education of sustainable electronic waste options. This will also include the hauling fee from the vendor
and offset the cost of taking in televisions and computer screens.

Staff/Board Recommending



Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
Proposal 



RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the South Plains Association of Governments is directed by the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality to administer solid waste grant funds for
implementation of the Council of Government’s adopted regional solid waste management
plan; and

WHEREAS, The City of Lubbock in the State of Texas is qualified to apply for grant funds
under the Request for Applications; NOW, ThEREFORE:

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the City of Lubbock, a home rule municipal corporation, acting through its City
Council hereby authorizes the City of Lubbock Solid Waste Services Department to request
grant funding under the South Plains Association of Governments Request for Applications of
the Regional Solid Waste Grants Program; and

THAT if the project is funded, the City of Lubbock, acting by and through the City of Lubbock
Solid Waste Services Department, will comply with the grant requirements of the South Plains
Association of Governments Texas Commission on Environmental Quality and the State of
Texas; and

THAT the grant funds and any grant-funded equipment or facilities will be used only for the
purposes for which they are intended under the grant; and

TI-hAT activities will comply with and support the adopted regional and local solid waste
management plans adopted for the geographical area in which the activities are performed; and

THAT the City Council finds it to be in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Lubbock
in order to expedite the performance of city business, to delegate authority to execute any
necessary or related documents associated with the South Plains Association of Governments
Request for Applications of the Regional Solid Waste Grants Program and the authority to act
on behalf of the City of Lubbock in all matters related to the grant application and any
subsequent grant contract and grant project that may result; to the City Manager of the City of
Lubbock, or his designee.

Passed by the City Council on

___________________________

1)ANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR



ATTEST:

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

A,2pc7ED AS TO C TENT:

• ood an , P.E., Division irector of Public Works

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Ryk Assistant city Attorney

RES.Solid Waste SPAG Grant Applications
1.14.22



2

Electronics Collection Grant

Grant Summary

Electronics are a rapidly growing source of waste across the country. Much of this material contains 
valuable parts that we can recycle, and heavy metals that we should try to keep out of landfills. In 
Lubbock County there is not a free disposable or recycling option for residents. By hosting a collection 
event the City of Lubbock would lead this area in providing an option for the reuse and recycling of 
unwanted electronics while also saving landfill space and promoting environmental sustainability. This 
aligns with the South Plains Associations of Governments Regional Solid Waste Management Plan Goals 
and Objectives for 2022-2042:

Goal #2 Develop a regional plan to properly dispose of E-Waste from households. 
Objective 2.A. Partner municipalities with local commercial electronic vendors to 
develop joint regional E-Waste disposal and recycling plan.
Objective 2.B. Educate citizens on the hazards of disposing of electronics in their local 
dumpsters.

Project Scope

Host a Collection Event in 2022 to take in the following material:

∑ Computers
∑ Laptops/tablets
∑ LCD computer monitors
∑ Printers/fax/scanner etc.,
∑ Mixed wire
∑ Gaming consoles/DVD players/VCR/satellite receivers.
∑ TV’s/ Computer Monitors 

Use STS Electronic Recycling to pick up the material and haul it to Jacksonville, TX. The asset recovery 
vendor takes good electronics and refurbishes them for reuse and then takes the unusable electronics 
apart for recycling.  These services comply with the Environmental Protection Agency’s Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act and ensures environmental responsible practices.

Grant Funds Request

$5,000 to promote the event and education of sustainable electronic waste options. This will also 
include the hauling fee from the vendor and offset the cost of taking in televisions and computer 
screens.



 AI# 10396 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 21. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Solid Waste:Consider a resolution authorizing the City of Lubbock Solid Waste Services
Department to request grant funding under the South Plains Association of Governments Request for
Applications of the Regional Solid Waste Grants Program, to host a household hazardous waste
regional collection event in 2022.

Item Summary
Grant Summary
The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) states that “leftover or unused household
products can contain chemicals that present safety concerns if not managed properly.” These products
such as corrosive cleaners, oil paints, varnishes, pesticides, herbicides, acids, and pool chemicals are
often called household hazardous waste (HHW). Improper disposal of these items through drains,
outdoors, and garbage receptacles creates health and environmental issues.
 
Currently, the City of Lubbock Solid Waste Department accepts HHW collection by appointment
exclusively. The City of Lubbock will seek grant funding to host a Household Hazardous Waste
Collection Event that would allow the City of Lubbock Solid Waste Department to host a large
collection opportunity. Prior to and during the event, education will be provided on choosing
environmentally sustainable household products as well as options for reuse of the materials through
donation to our Reuse Barn. Education and collection objectives for Household Hazardous Waste
support the South Plains Associations of Governments Regional Solid Waste Management Plan Goals
and Objectives for 2022-2042 in alignment with Goal #3 to encourage proper disposal of household
hazardous waste.This will allow the City of Lubbock to educate citizens on the potential hazards of
disposing household hazardous waste in local dumpsters or collection stations. Spread awareness on what
HHW is and where citizens can properly dispose, while increasing the number of community collection
days in the region. This also aligns with Goal #5 to assist joint education efforts on waste reduction and
reuse, and proper disposal methods while encouraging citizens to prioritize reuse and reduce.

Project Scope
The City of Lubbock Solid Waste Department will host a Household Hazardous Waste Collection Event.
The City will use the contracted services of Green Planet Incorporated to evaluate and collect HHW at
the event.  The vendor charges a standard flat fee of $2,000 to the City for an event plus an additional
cost for the type and quantity of HHW collected. Prior to and during the event, the City will educate the
public on ways to reduce and reuse HHW as well as future responsible disposal options.   

Fiscal Impact
This grant will provide the City of Lubbock with $5,000 to host a Household Hazardous Waste
collection event. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager



Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Diretor of Public Works 

Attachments
Resolution 
Proposal 



RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the South Plains Association of Governments is directed by the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality to administer solid waste grant funds for
implementation of the Council of Government’s adopted regional solid waste management
plan; and

WHEREAS, The City of Lubbock in the State of Texas is qualified to apply for grant funds
under the Request for Applications; NOW, THEREFORE:

BE IT RESOLVE1) BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the City of Lubbock, a home rule municipal corporation, acting through its City
Council hereby authorizes the City of Lubbock Solid Waste Services Department to request
grant funding under the South Plains Association of Governments Request for Applications of
the Regional Solid Waste Grants Program; and

THAT if the project is funded, the City of Lubbock, acting by and through the City of Lubbock
Solid Waste Services I)epartment, will comply with the grant requirements ofthe South Plains
Association of Governments Texas Commission on Environmental Quality and the State of
Texas; and

THAT the grant funds and any grant-funded equipment or facilities will be used only for the
purposes for which they are intended under the grant; and

TIIAT activities will comply with and support the adopted regional and local solid waste
management plans adopted for the geographical area in which the activities are performed; and

THAT the City Council finds it to be in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Lubbock
in order to expedite the performance of city business, to delegate authority to execute any
necessary or related documents associated with the South Plains Association of Governments
Request for Applications of the Regional Solid Waste Grants Program and the authority to act
on behalf of the City of Lubbock in all matters related to the grant application and any
subsequent grant contract and grant project that may result; to the City Manager of the City of
Lubbock, or his designee.

Passed by the City Council on

________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR



ATTEST:

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

APP VE1)ASTOCO TENT:

L. Wood nkli , P. ., Division Director of Public Works

APPROVEI) AS TO FORM:

$keAssistantityAttorney

RES.So lid Waste SPAG Grant Applications
1.14.22



2

Household Hazardous Waste Collection Grant

Grant Summary
The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) states “leftover or unused household 
products can contain chemicals that present safety concerns if not managed properly.”
These products such as corrosive cleaners, oil paints, varnishes, pesticides, herbicides, 
acids, and pool chemicals are often called household hazardous waste (HHW) 
Improper disposing of these items through drains, outdoors, and garbage receptacles
creates health and environmental issues. 

Currently the City of Lubbock Solid Waste Department accepts HHW collection by appointment 
exclusively and is only able to offer four appointments for residents per week. A Household Hazardous 
Waste Collection Event would allow a large collection opportunity. Prior to and during the event 
education will be provided on choosing environmentally sustainable household products, and options 
for reuse of the materials through donation to our Reuse Barn. Education and collection objectives for 
Household Hazardous Waste support the South Plains Associations of Governments Regional Solid 
Waste Management Plan Goals and Objectives for 2022-2042:

Goal #3 Encourage proper disposal of household hazardous waste.
∑ Objective 3.A. Educate citizens on the potential hazards of disposing household 

hazardous waste in their local dumpsters or collection stations. Spread awareness on 
what HHW is and where citizens can properly dispose.

∑ Objective 3.B. Increase the number of community collection days in the region.

Goal #5 Assist joint education efforts on waste reduction and reuse, and proper disposal 
methods.

∑ Objective 5.A. Encourage citizens to prioritize reuse and reduce.

Project Scope

Host a Household Hazardous Waste Collection Event.

Use the contracted services of Green Planet Incorporated to evaluated and collect HHW at the event. 
Prior to and during educate on ways to reduce, reuse HHW and future responsible disposal options. 

Grant Funds Request

$5,000 for the event service through Green Planet Inc. as well as funds for promotion and education 
materials. The vendor has a standard flat fee of $2,000 for an event plus additional cost for the type and 
quantity of HHW collected. 



 AI# 10402 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 22. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Solid Waste: Consider a resolution authorizing the City of Lubbock Solid Waste Services
Department to request grant funding under the South Plains Association of Governments Request for
Applications of the Regional Solid Waste Grants Program, to activate service with the Litterati Software
Application.

Item Summary
Grant Summary
Litter presents itself as a common problem across the region and the country at large. Understanding the
factors that lead to the decision to litter and where to litter is key to reducing its impact on our cities and
neighborhoods. The City of Lubbock will seek grant funding to activate a subscription to a litter tracking
and data software.  Utilizing a software application that catalogues the types, locations, and brands of the
trash that encompasses littered areas will help provide data that allows the City of Lubbock Solid Waste
education and enforcement efforts to be more efficacious to the community. This falls in line with Goal
#4 of the South Plains Associations of Governments (SPAG) Regional Solid Waste Management Plan
Goals and Objectives for 2022-2042 which is to help decrease illegal dumping to include improperly
disposed tires within the region while educating citizens on the proper collection areas within or near
local municipalities. This project also supports SPAG Goal #5 which is to assist joint education efforts
on waste reduction and reuse, and proper disposal methods, while encouraging citizens to prioritize reuse
and reduce.
 
Project Scope
The City of Lubbock will launch usage of Litterati Digital Application to do the following: 

Generate a map of litter/illegal dumping hot spots
Develop a working understanding of major contributors to the litter stream
Work with volunteers to build an information database of troubled areas requiring assistance
Utilize volunteer time more wisely through the community during cleanup events
Provide analytical data needed justification of equipment, drop off sites, and education to address
litter and dumping issues 

Activating service with Litterati Software Application will allow immediate access to already collected
data in the Lubbock area, and will permit further access to features for mapping and tracking.

Fiscal Impact
This grant will provide the City of Lubbock with $5,000 towards purchasing a subscription for digital
application and immediate access to regional specific mapping and tracking of litter. Any additional
funding needed for this project will come from the Donations Account for Keep Lubbock Beautiful.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager



Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
Proposal 



RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the South Plains Association of Governments is directed by the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality to administer solid waste grant funds foi
implementation of the Council of Government’s adopted regional solid waste management
plan; and

WhEREAS, The City of Lubbock in the State of Texas is qualified to apply for grant funds
under the Request for Applications; NOW, THEREFORE:

13E IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the City of Lubbock, a home rule municipal corporation, acting through its City
Council hereby authorizes the City of Lubbock Solid Waste Services Department to request
grant funding under the South Plains Association of Governments Request for Applications of
the Regional Solid Waste Grants Program; and

THAT ifthe project is funded, the City ofLubbock, acting by and through the City of Lubbock
Solid Waste Services Department, will comply with the grant requirements of the South Plains
Association of Governments Texas Commission on Environmental Quality and the State of
Texas; and

THAT the grant funds and any grant-funded equipment or facilities will be used only for the
purposes for which they are intended under the grant; and

THAT activities will comply with and support the adopted regional and local solid waste
management plans adopted for the geographical area in which the activities are performed; and

ThAT the City Council finds it to be in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Lubbock
in order to expedite the performance of city business, to delegate authority to execute any
necessary or related documents associated with the South Plains Association of Governments
Request for Applications of the Regional Solid Waste Grants Program and the authority to act
on behalf of the City of Lubbock in all matters related to the grant application and any
subsequent grant contract and grant project that may result; to the City Manager of the City of
Lubbock, or his designee.

Passed by the City Council on

___________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR



ATTEST:

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Rokc,Aistantity Attorney

RES.Solid Waste SPAG Grant Applications
1. 14.22

Works



2

Litterati Software Application Grant

Grant Summary

Litter presents itself as a common problem across the region and the country at large. 
Understanding the factors that lead to the decision to litter, and where to litter, is key to 
reducing its impact on our cities and neighborhoods. Utilizing a software application 
that catalogues the types, locations and brands of the trash that encompasses littered 
areas, helps to paint a picture that allows our education and enforcement efforts to be 
more efficacious to the community. This falls in line with the South Plains Associations of 
Governments Regional Solid Waste Management Plan Goals and Objectives for 2022-
2042:

Goal #4 Decrease illegal dumping to include improperly disposed tires within the 
region: Objective 4.C Educate citizens on the proper collection areas within or near local
Municipalities

Goal #5 Assist joint education efforts on waste reduction and reuse, and proper 
disposal methods: Objective 5.A. Encourage citizens to prioritize reuse and reduce.

Project Scope

Launch usage of Litterati Application in the City of Lubbock to do the following:

∑ Generate a map of litter/illegal dumping hot spots
∑ Develop a working understanding of major contributors to the litter stream
∑ Work with volunteers to build an information database of troubled areas requiring 

assistance
∑ Utilize volunteer time more wisely, and better distribute through the community during 

cleanup events
∑ Build justifications for needed equipment, drop off sites and education to address litter 

and dumping issues

Activating service with Litterati Software Application will allow immediate access 
to already collected data in the Lubbock area, and will permit further access to 
features for mapping and tracking. 

Grant Funds Request



3

$5,000 towards purchasing subscription for application, and immediate access to 
regional specific mapping and tracking. 



 AI# 10401 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 23. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the Health
and Human Services Commission Contract No. HHS000779500006, under the Co-occurring Psychiatric
and Substance Use Disorders (COPSD) Grant Program, by and between the City of Lubbock and the
State of Texas' Health and Human Services Commission, and all related documents.

Item Summary
This contract provides funding from the Texas Health and Human Services Commission to facilitate
substance use treatment services for Co-occuring Psychiatric and Substance Use Disorders (COPSD) in
the Lubbock area, as well as case management to help improve treatment outcomes

This is an existing contract that will add funds for 3 additional years from September 1, 2021, through
August 31, 2024. The total grant amount is $239,100.
  

Period 1, FY2022 (February 1, 2022, through August 31, 2022): $79,700
Period 2, FY2023 (September 1, 2022, through August 31, 2023): $79,700
Period 3, FY2024 (September 1, 2023, through August 31, 2024): $79,700

Fiscal Impact
The required match for FY 2022 through FY 2024, is $3,985 for each period.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health Services

Attachments
Resolution 
COPSD Contract 







































































































































































































































 AI# 10397 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 24. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 16354, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock, and the United States
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), for the Home Investment Partnerships Grant
(HOME) American Rescue Plan (ARP) Grant Agreement.

Item Summary
The HOME ARP Grant Agreement is from HUD to the City of Lubbock.
 
The HOME-ARP “Allocation Plan”, must be developed and approved by HUD, to address those
individuals or families that are at the greatest risk of housing instability.
 
The end date for this grant funding is September 30, 2030.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact to the general fund with this contract. The funds used originate from the U. S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The maximum allocation of this grant
agreement is $3,615,530.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Community Development Director

Attachments
Resolution 
HOME ARP HUD to City Agreement 





HOME ARP Grant Agreement 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Office of Community Planning and Development 

Title II of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act 
Assistance Listings #14.239- HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
1. Grantee Name and Address 2. Grant Number (Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 

Lubbock M21-MP480205 

Po Box 2000 3a Tax Identification Number 3b. Unique Entity Identifier (formerly DUNS) 

Lubbock, TX 79457-0001 756000590 058213893 

4. Appropriation Number 5. Budget Period Start and End Date 
861/50205 FY 2021 - 09/30/2030 

6. Previous Obligation (Enter "O" for initial FY allocation) $0 

a. Formula Funds $ 

7. Current Transaction (+ or-) $3,615,530.00 

a. Administrative and Planning Funds Available on Federal Award Date $180,776.50 

b. Balance of Administrative and Planning Funds $361,553.00 

C. Balance of Formula Funds $3,073,200.50 

8. Revised Obligation $ 

a. Formula Funds $ 

9. Special Conditions (check applicable box) 10. Federal Award Date (HUD Official's Signature Date) 

� Not applicable D Attached 09/20/2021 

11. Indirect Cost Rate* 12. Period of Performance 
Administering Agenc�/De12t. Indirect Cost Rate 

_% 

_% 

_% 

_% 

Direct Cost Base Date in Box #10 - 09/30/2030 

• If funding assistance will be used for payment of indirect costs pursuant to 2 CFR 
200, Subpart E-Cost Principles, provide the name of the departmenUagency, its 
indirect cost rate (including if the de minimis rate is charged per 2 § CFR 200.414), and 
the direct cost base to which the rate will be applied. Do not include cost rates for 
subrecipients. 

The HOME-ARP Grant Agreement (the "Agreement") between the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the Grantee is made pursuant to the authority 
of the HOME Investment Partnerships Act (42 U.S.C. 12701 et seq.) and Section 3205 of the American Rescue Plan (P.L. 117-2) (ARP). HUD regulations at 24 CFR part 92 (as 
may be amended from time to time), the CPD Notice entitled "Requirements for the Use of Funds in the HOME-American Rescue Plan Program" (HOME-ARP Implementation 
Notice), the Grantee's HOME-ARP allocation plan (as of the date of HUD's approval), and this HOME-ARP Grant Agreement, form HUD-40093a, including any special conditions 
(in accordance with 2 CFR 200.208), constitute part of this Agreement. HUD's payment of funds under this Agreement is subject to the Grantee's compliance with HU D's electronic 
funds transfer and information reporting procedures issued pursuant to 24 CFR 92.502 and the HOME-ARP Implementation Notice. To the extent authorized by HUD regulations 
at 24 CFR part 92, HUD may, by its execution of an amendment, deobligate funds previously awarded to the Grantee without the Grantee's execution of the amendment or other 
consent. The Grantee agrees that funds invested in HOME-ARP activities under the HOME-ARP Implementation Notice are repayable in accordance with the requirements of the 
HOME-ARP Implementation Notice. The Grantee agrees to assume all of the responsibility for environmental review, decision making, and actions, as specified and required in 
regulation at 24 CFR 92.352 and 24 CFR Part 58, as well as the HOME-ARP Implementation Notice. 

The Grantee must comply with the applicable requirements at 2 CFR part 200, as amended, that are incorporated by the program regulations and the HOME-ARP 
Implementation Notice, as may be amended from time to time. Where any previous or future amendments to 2 CFR part 200 replace or renumber sections of part 200 that are cited 
specifically in the program regulations or HOME-ARP Implementation Notice, activities carried out under the grant after the effective date of the 2 CFR part 200 amendments will 
be governed by the 2 CFR part 200 requirements, as replaced or renumbered by the part 200 amendments. 

The Grantee shall comply with requirements established by the Office of Management and Budget (0MB) concerning the Universal Numbering System and System for Award 
Management (SAM) requirements in Appendix I to 2 CFR part 200, and the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) in Appendix A to 2 CFR part 170. 

Funds remaining in the grantee's Treasury account after the end of the budget period will be cancelled and thereafter not available for obligation or expenditure for any purpose. 
Per 31 U SC 1552, the Grantee shall not incur any obligations to be paid with such assistance after the end of the Budget Period 
13. For the U.S. Department of HUD (Name and Title of Authorized Official) 14. �natYJ� c-J, 15. Date 

Shirley J. Henley, CPD Director (817) 978-5933 � � �� 09/20/2021

16. For the Grantee (Name and Title of Authorized Official) 17. Signature 

19. Check one: 1:8:J Initial Agreement 

20. Funding Information: HOME ARP 

Source of Funds A1212ro12riation Code 
2021 861/50205 

D Amendment# 

PAS Code 
HMX 

Amount 
$3,615,530.00 

Page 1form HUD-40093a 

18. Date 
I I Daniel M. Pope, Mayor 01/25/2022



21. Additional Requirements: These additional requirements are attached and incorporated into this Agreement. The

Grantee agrees to these additional requirements on the use of the funds in 7., as may be amended from time to time by 

the Secretary. 

a) As of the Federal Award Date, the Grantee may use up to the amount identified in 7.a. of this Agreement for eligible

administrative and planning costs in accordance with the HOME-ARP Implementation Notice.

b) Until the date of HU D's acceptance of the Grantee's HOME-ARP allocation plan, the Grantee agrees that it will not

obligate or expend any funds for non-administrative and planning costs, in accordance with the HOME-ARP

Implementation Notice.

c) In accordance with the HOME-ARP Implementation Notice, as of the date of acceptance by HUD of the Grantee's

HOME-ARP allocation plan, HUD shall make the amount identified in line 7. of this Agreement available to the

Grantee.

d) If the Grantee does not submit a HOME-ARP allocation plan or if the Grantee's HOME-ARP allocation plan is not

accepted within a reasonable period of time, as determined by HUD, the Grantee agrees that all costs incurred and

HOME-ARP funds expended by the Grantee will be ineligible costs and will be repaid with non-Federal funds.

22. Special Conditions

Page 1form HUD-40093a 



 AI# 10385 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 25. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16213, with Roofs, Inc., for roof replacement at the Fire Administration Building, located at 1515 East
Ursuline Street, Lubbock, Texas.

Item Summary
Scope of Work for this Project is as follows:   
• Power wash the existing roof surface and allow it to dry before any application of new roofing
materials. 
• Work shall include removal of any existing blisters or ridging in the exisitng modified bitumen roof
membrane. 
• Install new ½-inch per foot crickets, as shown on the roof plan. 
• Adhere specified ½-inch substrate board as specified. 
• Adhere one ply of thermoplastic single ply fleece-backed membrane as specified. 
• Install new miscellaneous carpentry and new pre-finished gutter assembly as specified. Install new
pre-finished metal coping cap and flashing metal as specified. 
• Provide new roller supports for existing piping above roof. 
• Provide new cast iron strainers on all drain bowls. 
• All work shall include all HVAC and electrical piping disconnects and reconnection as required to
complete the project. 
• All installation of new work shall be per NRCA, SMACNA, and ASNI/SPRI specifications, details and
manufacturer’s guidelines. 
• Provide a two (2) year contractors warranty and twenty (20) year manufacturer’s warranty.   

In response to RPF 22-16213-KM, six contractors submitted sealed proposals, but one proposal was
incomplete, leaving five contractors that were evaluated and ranked in relation to the published selection
criteria, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 2269. The proposals ranged in price from
$275,560 to $494,181.51, with construction time estimated between 40-90 days.

The proposals were evaluated using the following criteria: Price (60), Contractor Qualifications (30), and
Construction Time (10). The maximum point value is 100 points. After the proposals were evaluated, the
following ranking was obtained:
  

Contractor Points (Possible 100)
Roofs, Inc., Lubbock, Texas 93.59
Lydick-Hooks Roofing Co., Lubbock, Texas 91.00
Schrader Roofing Company, Lubbock, Texas 87.42
Tecta America, LLC, Lubbock, Texas 75.23
Trumble Construction, Texarkana, Texas 72.79



Texas Local Government Code, Section 2269 requires the City to select the offeror that offers the best
value based on the published selection criteria and on its ranking evaluation. In determining the best
value, the City is not restricted to considering price alone, and considers other factors stated in the
selection criteria. The City and its engineer or architect may discuss with the selected offeror options for
a scope or time modification and any price change associated with the modification.
 
Staff and Evaluation Committee recommends award to the most qualified proposer, Roofs Inc. of
Lubbock, Texas, for $308,500, with time duration of 40 days for final completion, and liquidated
damages are $250 per additional calendar day.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 16198 for $308,500.00 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92359, Facility Roof
Replacements.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary 













Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

COL Charges 1,935$                         

Armko Industries, Inc. 76,317                         

Electrical 414                              

Silent Wings Museum 515,270                       

Eddie Dixon Facility 63,180                         

Fire Station #4 50,400                         

Fire Station #9 46,992                         

Fire Station #12 77,000                         

Fire Station #14 53,500                         

Fire Station #8 43,170                         

Fire Station #13 51,850                         

Garden and Arts Center - Lydicks-Hooks Contract 14437 116,771                       

Fire Station #7 - Hamilton Roofing Contract 14401 58,200                         

  Advertising 1,351                           

Chapman Harvey - Contract 15640 38,789                         

Agenda Item January 25,2022

308,500                       

127,300                       

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,630,939                    

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Additional AE fees for project monitoring 125,681                       

Additional construction 55,795                         

Contingency 80,886                         

Remaining Appropriation 262,361                       

Total Appropriation 1,893,300$                  

Roof Inc.- Contract 16198 Groves

Facility Roof Replacements

January 25, 2022

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

92359

Roof Inc.- Contract 16213 Fire Admin



Project Name Facility Roof Replacements Project Number 92359

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Facilities Management

Wesley Everett

Infrastructure Improvements

Approved

This project incorporates major roof repairs and roof replacements for most City of Lubbock facility roofs. 

FY 2020-21 Groves Library

FY 2021-2022 Fire Administration Complex

FY 2022-23 Hodges Community 

FY 2023-24 Fire Station #10 and #3

FY 2024-25 Future Roofs

FY 2025-26 Future Roofs

FY 2026-27 Future Roofs

Start Date: Ongoing project

Bid Date - Design: N/A

Award Date for Bid - Design: N/A

Project Start Date - Design: 10/1/2021

Project End Date - Design: 11/1/2021

Bid Date - Construction: 11/15/2021

Award Date for Bid - Construction: 12/21/2021

Project Start Date - Construction: 01/03/2022

Project End Date - Construction: 02/14/2022

Ongoing project

Project Justification

Roof replacements can/will be rescheduled to address roofs that have deteriorated since their evaluation or other facilities can be 

included depending on individual circumstances Many City facilities have roofs that are nearing the end of their expected life. A 

typical roofing system should last 15-20 years.The wear and tear on these roof systems have compromised the facility's ability to 

remain watertight from the roof areas.Staff have evaluated many City roofs and have determined the above facilities will need to have 

roof replacements within the next 6 years.



Project Name Facility Roof Replacements Project Number 92359

Project History

The roofing systems scheduled for replacement have ages ranging from 15 to 30+ years.  Routine/standard maintenance of these 

systems are no longer efficient.

FY 2015-16 Roofs at the Silent Wings Museum started. Fire Station #9 & 4 were completed.  

FY 2016-17 Fire Station #12 & 14, and the Eddie Dixon Building roofs replaced and Silent Wings Museum roof replacement 

completed.

FY 2017-18 Fire Stations # 13 and #8.

FY 2018-19 Garden and Arts Center and Fire Station #7 roofs replaced.

FY 2019-20 Fire Station #15, and Fire Station #5

FY 2020-21

No capital spent due to COVID-19 spending restrictions. 

$172,000 was appropriated in the FY 2014-15 Budget, Ord. No. 2014-O0122, October 1, 2014.

$475,000 was appropriated in the FY 2015-16 Budget, Ord. No. 2015-O0094, October 1, 2015.

$440,000 was appropriated in the FY 2016-17 Budget, Ord. No. 2016-O0135, October 1, 2016.

$165,000 was appropriated in the FY 2018-19 Budget, Ord. No. 2018-O0109, October 1, 2018.

$106,000 was appropriated in the FY 2020-21 Budget, Ord. No. 2020-O0123, October 1, 2020.

$535,300 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  1,240,500  505,000  140,000  200,000  100,000  100,000  100,000  2,385,500 

Design and Engineering  117,500  30,300  8,400  12,000  6,000  6,000  0  180,200 

Total Project Appropriation  1,358,000  535,300  148,400  212,000  106,000  106,000  100,000  2,565,700 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Capital Project Fund  100,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  100,000 

FY 2015 General Fund Cash  172,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  172,000 

FY 2016 General Fund Cash  475,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  475,000 

FY 2017 General Fund Cash  440,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  440,000 

FY 2019 General Fund Cash  165,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  165,000 

FY 2021 General Fund Cash  6,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  6,000 

FY 2022 General Fund Cash  0  535,300  0  0  0  0  0  535,300 

FY 2023 General Fund Cash  0  0  148,400  0  0  0  0  148,400 

FY 2024 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  212,000  0  0  0  212,000 

FY 2025 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  106,000  0  0  106,000 

FY 2026 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  0  106,000  0  106,000 

FY 2027 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  0  0  100,000  100,000 

Total Funding Sources  1,358,000  535,300  148,400  212,000  106,000  106,000  100,000  2,565,700 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 500 Maintenance Savings Estimated  500  1,500  500  500  0  3,500 

Total Operating Budget Impact  500  500  1,500  500  500  0  3,500 



Purchasing and Contract Management  
Project Summary 

RFP 22-16213-KM Roofing Improvements for the Lubbock Fire 
Administration Building  

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on November 14 and November 21, 2021. 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on Bonfire-hub.com from November 12, 2021 to December 9, 2021. 
28 vendors took documents from Bonfire-hub.com 
24 vendors were notified separately.  
6 vendor submitted a proposal. 



 AI# 10384 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 26. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16198, with Roofs, Inc., for roof replacement at Groves Library, located at 5520 19th Street, Lubbock,
Texas.

Item Summary
Scope of Work for this Project is as follows:
• Power wash the existing roof surface and allow to dry before any application of new roofing materials. 
• Work shall include removal of any existing blisters or ridging in the existing modified bitumen roof
membrane. 
• Install new ½” per foot crickets as shown on the roof plan. 
• Adhere specified ½” substrate board as specified. 
• Adhere one ply of thermoplastic single ply fleece-backed membrane as specified. 
• new miscellaneous carpentry and new prefinished gutter assembly as specified.  Install new prefinished
metal coping cap and flashing metal as specified. 
• Provide new roller supports for existing piping above roof. 
• Provide new cast iron strainers on all drain bowls. 
• All work shall include all HVAC and electrical piping disconnects and reconnection as required to
complete the project. 
• All installation of new work shall be per NRCA, SMACNA, ASNI/SPRI, specifications, details and
manufacturer’s guidelines. 
• Provide a 2-year contractors warranty and 20-year manufacturer’s warranty.   
 
In response ro RFP 22-16198-KM, six contractors submitted sealed proposals, but one proposal was
incomplete, leaving five proposals that were evaluated and ranked in relation to the published selection
criteria, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 2269. The proposals ranged in price from
$127,300 to $216,763.29, with construction time estimated between 20-45 days. The proposals were
evaluated using the following criteria: Price (60), Contractor Qualifications (30), and Construction Time
(10). The maximum point value is 100 points.
  
After the proposals were evaluated, the following ranking was obtained:

Contractor Points (Possible 100)
Roofs, Inc., Lubbock, Texas 100.00
Schrader Roofing Company, Lubbock, Texas 96.15
Lydick-Hooks Roofing Co., Lubbock, Texas 90.52
Tecta America, LLC, Lubbock, Texas 78.11
Trumble Construction, Texarkana, Texas 65.17



Texas Local Government Code, Section 2269 requires the City to select the offeror that offers the best
value based on the published selection criteria and on its ranking evaluation. In determining the best
value, the City is not restricted to considering price alone, and considers other factors stated in the
selection criteria. The City and its engineer or architect may discuss with the selected offeror options for
a scope or time modification and any price change associated with the modification.
 
Staff and Evaluation Committee recommends award to the most qualified proposer, Roofs Inc. of
Lubbock, Texas, for $127,300, with time duration of 20 days for final completion, and liquidated
damages of $250 per additional calendar day.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 16198, for $127,300, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92359, Facility Roof
Replacements.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary 











Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

COL Charges 1,935$                         

Armko Industries, Inc. 76,317                         

Electrical 414                              

Silent Wings Museum 515,270                       

Eddie Dixon Facility 63,180                         

Fire Station #4 50,400                         

Fire Station #9 46,992                         

Fire Station #12 77,000                         

Fire Station #14 53,500                         

Fire Station #8 43,170                         

Fire Station #13 51,850                         

Garden and Arts Center - Lydicks-Hooks Contract 14437 116,771                       

Fire Station #7 - Hamilton Roofing Contract 14401 58,200                         

  Advertising 1,351                           

Chapman Harvey - Contract 15640 38,789                         

Agenda Item January 25,2022

308,500                       

127,300                       

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,630,939                    

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Additional AE fees for project monitoring 125,681                       

Additional construction 55,795                         

Contingency 80,886                         

Remaining Appropriation 262,361                       

Total Appropriation 1,893,300$                  

Roof Inc.- Contract 16198 Groves

Facility Roof Replacements

January 25, 2022

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

92359

Roof Inc.- Contract 16213 Fire Admin



Project Name Facility Roof Replacements Project Number 92359

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Facilities Management

Wesley Everett

Infrastructure Improvements

Approved

This project incorporates major roof repairs and roof replacements for most City of Lubbock facility roofs. 

FY 2020-21 Groves Library

FY 2021-2022 Fire Administration Complex

FY 2022-23 Hodges Community 

FY 2023-24 Fire Station #10 and #3

FY 2024-25 Future Roofs

FY 2025-26 Future Roofs

FY 2026-27 Future Roofs

Start Date: Ongoing project

Bid Date - Design: N/A

Award Date for Bid - Design: N/A

Project Start Date - Design: 10/1/2021

Project End Date - Design: 11/1/2021

Bid Date - Construction: 11/15/2021

Award Date for Bid - Construction: 12/21/2021

Project Start Date - Construction: 01/03/2022

Project End Date - Construction: 02/14/2022

Ongoing project

Project Justification

Roof replacements can/will be rescheduled to address roofs that have deteriorated since their evaluation or other facilities can be 

included depending on individual circumstances Many City facilities have roofs that are nearing the end of their expected life. A 

typical roofing system should last 15-20 years.The wear and tear on these roof systems have compromised the facility's ability to 

remain watertight from the roof areas.Staff have evaluated many City roofs and have determined the above facilities will need to have 

roof replacements within the next 6 years.



Project Name Facility Roof Replacements Project Number 92359

Project History

The roofing systems scheduled for replacement have ages ranging from 15 to 30+ years.  Routine/standard maintenance of these 

systems are no longer efficient.

FY 2015-16 Roofs at the Silent Wings Museum started. Fire Station #9 & 4 were completed.  

FY 2016-17 Fire Station #12 & 14, and the Eddie Dixon Building roofs replaced and Silent Wings Museum roof replacement 

completed.

FY 2017-18 Fire Stations # 13 and #8.

FY 2018-19 Garden and Arts Center and Fire Station #7 roofs replaced.

FY 2019-20 Fire Station #15, and Fire Station #5

FY 2020-21

No capital spent due to COVID-19 spending restrictions. 

$172,000 was appropriated in the FY 2014-15 Budget, Ord. No. 2014-O0122, October 1, 2014.

$475,000 was appropriated in the FY 2015-16 Budget, Ord. No. 2015-O0094, October 1, 2015.

$440,000 was appropriated in the FY 2016-17 Budget, Ord. No. 2016-O0135, October 1, 2016.

$165,000 was appropriated in the FY 2018-19 Budget, Ord. No. 2018-O0109, October 1, 2018.

$106,000 was appropriated in the FY 2020-21 Budget, Ord. No. 2020-O0123, October 1, 2020.

$535,300 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  1,240,500  505,000  140,000  200,000  100,000  100,000  100,000  2,385,500 

Design and Engineering  117,500  30,300  8,400  12,000  6,000  6,000  0  180,200 

Total Project Appropriation  1,358,000  535,300  148,400  212,000  106,000  106,000  100,000  2,565,700 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Capital Project Fund  100,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  100,000 

FY 2015 General Fund Cash  172,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  172,000 

FY 2016 General Fund Cash  475,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  475,000 

FY 2017 General Fund Cash  440,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  440,000 

FY 2019 General Fund Cash  165,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  165,000 

FY 2021 General Fund Cash  6,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  6,000 

FY 2022 General Fund Cash  0  535,300  0  0  0  0  0  535,300 

FY 2023 General Fund Cash  0  0  148,400  0  0  0  0  148,400 

FY 2024 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  212,000  0  0  0  212,000 

FY 2025 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  106,000  0  0  106,000 

FY 2026 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  0  106,000  0  106,000 

FY 2027 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  0  0  100,000  100,000 

Total Funding Sources  1,358,000  535,300  148,400  212,000  106,000  106,000  100,000  2,565,700 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 500 Maintenance Savings Estimated  500  1,500  500  500  0  3,500 

Total Operating Budget Impact  500  500  1,500  500  500  0  3,500 



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

Project Summary 

RFP 22-16198-KM Roof Improvements at Groves Library  
 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on November 14 and November 21, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire-hub.com from November 12, 2021 to December 9, 2021. 

28 vendors took documents from Bonfire-hub.com 

24 vendors were notified separately.  

6 vendor submitted a proposal. 

 



 AI# 10361 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 27. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Civic Center: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Lease Agreement,
by and between the City of Lubbock, and Lubbock Moonlight Musicals Inc., for use of the Lubbock
Moonlight Musicals Amphitheatre, for five annual periods ending November 30, 2026.

Item Summary
Lubbock Moonlight Musicals Inc. (LMMI) desires the use of the Amphitheatre to conduct theatrical
productions and rehearsals which will provide economic development benefit by attracting visitors to the
City and the surrounding area. It is the City's desire to have regularly scheduled events for the public at
the Amphitheatre, and in consideration of the over $1,500,000 of improvements made to date to the
Amphitheatre by Moonlight Musicals Inc., staff recommends continuing this mutually beneficial
partnership.

The term of this Agreement will be for a period beginning upon execution of the Agreement, and ending
November 30, 2026. There will be five(5) seasons beginning February 1st and running through
November 30th of each year during the Term of this Agreement. LMMI agrees to pay the City for the
use of the Amphitheatre for each of the five (5) seasons according to the following payment schedule:
  

Season  Fee
2022 $7,500
2023 $8.000
2024 $8,500
2025 $9,000
2026 $9,500

Fiscal Impact
LMMI agrees to pay an annual rental fee to the City of Lubbock for use of the Amphitheatre. The fee
will be $7,500 for the 2022 season, and escalate annually by $500, for a total revenue of $42,500 over 5
seasons.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Lease Agreement 



































 AI# 10404 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 28. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolutions - Fleet Services: Consider two resolutions authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase
Order 31064089, with DACO Fire Safety Equipment, for the purchase of one Rosenbauer 101-foot
Platform, Custom Cab, and Purchase Order 31064092, with DACO Fire Safety Equipment, for two
Rosenbauer 1250 GPM Custom Pumper Trucks.

Item Summary
This purchase order is for 3 apparatus to be utilized in Lubbock Fire Rescue.  One unit is a Rosenbauer
101-foot Platform Ladder Truck, including equipment which will replace a 2008 E1-95' platform.  The
other two units are Rosenbauer 1250 GPM Custom Ppumpers, that include equipment as well. These
will replace two 2008 E-1 Pumpers. 

The two pumpers will be used for fire suppression, medical response, and other emergency response
activities. The ladder truck will be used for elevated fire suppression, elevated rescue, vehicle
extrication, and other emergency response activities.

The purchase valued at $3,073,528 will be acquired from DACO Fire Safety Equipment of Lubbock,
Texas through the Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) contract FS12-17, product code
FS19YC04. The H-GAC is a regional planning commission created under Acts of the 59th Legislature,
Regular Session, 1965, recodified as a Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 391. The H-GAC
program was established through the Texas Inter- Local Cooperation Act allowing governments and
qualifying governments and qualifying non-profit entities to use the Act to obtain commonly needed
products and services. The H-GAC purchases conform to the requirements of Texas competitive bid
statutes.

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of $3,073,528 is funded in Capital Project 92722, General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY
21-22 American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). The total cost of 1 Rosenbauer 101-foot Platform Custom
Cab is $1,394,490, and $839,519 each for the Rosenbauer 1250 GPM Custom Pumpers.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 
Dominic Esperat, Interim Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution - DACO Fire Safety Equipment, Rosenbauer 101-Ft Platform 
PO 31064089 - Daco 101-ft. Platform Custom Cab 
Resolution - PO 31064092 DACO, Rosenbauer 1250 GMP Custom Pumper 
PO 31064092 - DACO Rosenbauer 1250 GPM Custom Pumpers 



PO 31064092 - DACO Rosenbauer 1250 GPM Custom Pumpers 
PO 31064089 - Proposal Documents 
PO 31064092 - Proposal Documents 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 



















      P a g e  1 | 171 

 
 

                                                               

       

     

 
 

LUBBOCK FIRE RESCUE 

 

101’ REAR MOUNT PLATFORM 
 

Rosenbauer Fire Apparatus Proposal 



      P a g e  2 | 171 

 
 

                                                                              

LOCATIONS 

201 AVENUE R – LUBBOCK, TX 79415 
6000 HUDDLESTON ST. – FORT WORTH, TX 76137 

 

 ROSENBAUER FIRE APPARATUS PROPOSAL  

DATE: January 1,2022 
 

This proposal has been prepared for:  
 

LUBBOCK FIRE RESCUE 
 

LUBBOCK, TEXAS 794035 
 
We hereby propose to furnish to you, subject to proper execution of the attached agreement by 
you and by a representative of this Company in Lubbock, Texas the following Rosenbauer built 
in accordance with the attached specifications: 
 

MODEL AND DESCRIPTION 

 
ONE (1) ROSENBAUER 101 FT PLATFORM, CUSTOM CAB 
 EXT SERIES BODY WITH ROBINSON ROLLUP DOORS 
 WHELEN LED WARNING LIGHT PACKAGE 
 COMMANDER CAB CHASSIS WITH ALUMINUM WHEELS 
 SEATING FOR FIVE (5) 
 505 HP CUMMINS ISX15 ENGINE WITH ALLISON AUTOMATIC TRANSMISSION 

 
BID PRICE, EA.     $  1,462,224.00 
PRE-PAY SAVINGS, CHASSIS   $     (14,432.00) 
PRE-PAY AERIAL     $       (6,414.00) 
MULTI TRUCK ORDER DISCOUNT, EA. $     (46,888.00) 
ADJUSTED PRICE, EA    $  1,394,490.00 
TOTAL FOR 1 AERIAL    $  1,394,490.00 
 



      P a g e  3 | 171 

 
 

 
DELIVERY –  

Delivery will be made approximately 425 calendar days after order date. 

 

Terms of payment are NET ON DELIVERY, unless otherwise stated.    

This proposal shall expire unless accepted within 30 days after the date first set above. This 
expiration date may be extended, in writing, at the discretion of the Company. 

  

DACO FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. 

  

By: Mike Henricks          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



      P a g e  1 | 174 

 
 

 

                                                               

 

     

 

LUBBOCK FIRE RESCUE 
1250 GPM TOP MOUNT 

CUSTOM 4 DOOR CHASSIS 

Rosenbauer Fire Apparatus Proposal 



      P a g e  2 | 174 

 
 

 

                                                                              

LOCATIONS 

201 AVENUE R – LUBBOCK, TX 79415 
6000 HUDDLESTON ST. – FORT WORTH, TX 76137 

 

 ROSENBAUER FIRE APPARATUS PROPOSAL  

DATE: January 1, 2022 
 

This proposal has been prepared for:  
 

LUBBOCK FIRE RESCUE 
 

LUBBOCK, TX. 
 
We hereby propose to furnish to you, subject to proper execution of the attached agreement by 
you and by a representative of this Company in Lubbock, Texas the following Rosenbauer built 
in accordance with the attached specifications: 
 

MODEL AND DESCRIPTION 

 
ONE (1) ROSENBAUER 1250 GPM CUSTOM PUMPER 
 COMMANDER 4 DOOR CAB & CHASSIS 
 SEATING FOR FIVE 
 EXT ALUMINUM BODY WITH ROBINSON ROLLUP DOORS 
 WHELEN LED WARNING LIGHT PACKAGE 
 HALE 1250 GPM PUMP 
 500 GALLON POLY TANK 
 450 HP X12L CUMMINS ENGINE WITH ALLISON AUTOMATIC TRANSMISSION 
  

BID PRICE, Ea.      $       895,144.00 
PRE-PAY SAVINGS, Ea.    $        (12,464.00) 
MULTI TRUCK ORDER DISCOUNT, Ea. $        (43,161.00) 
ADJUSTED PRICE, Ea.    $       839,519.00 
TOTAL FOR 2 PUMPERS    $    1,679,038.00 



      P a g e  3 | 174 

 
 

 

 
DELIVERY –  

Delivery will be made approximately 425 calendar days. 

 

Terms of payment are NET ON DELIVERY, unless otherwise stated.    

This proposal shall expire unless accepted within 30 days after the date first set above. This 
expiration date may be extended, in writing, at the discretion of the Company. 

  

DACO FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. 

  

By: Mike Henricks          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

203,669$                     

1,573,334                    

542,659                       

41 Units Raptor Radars (5735) 73,895                      

113,772                    

40,215                      

33,392                      

Agenda Item January 25, 2022

1,394,490                    

1,679,038                    

Encumbered/Expended To Date 5,654,464                    

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Vehicles and Equipment 273,536                       

Remaining Appropriation 273,536                       

Total Appropriation 5,928,000$                  

4 Units Half Ton Pick Up (5731)

1 Unit Half Ton SSV Pick Up (5735)

1 Unit Half Ton Pick Up (5719)

1 Unit Rosenbauer101' Platform Ladder (5615)

2 Unit Rosenbauer 1250 GPM Custom Pumpers (5615)

41 Units 2022 Ford Explorer (5735)

GT Distributors Lighting and Accessories (5735)

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

January 25, 2022

92722

General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 - ARPA

6 Units 2022 Ford Explorer (5 - 5731, 1 - 5713)



Project Name General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 - ARPA Project Number 92722

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Fleet Maintenance

Billy Taylor

Replacement Equipment/Fleet

Approved

This project is for the annual vehicle replacement for the General Fund.

5615 Lubbock Fire Rescue

(1) E1- 95' Platform (replacing 82008178) - $1,400,000

(2) E-1 Pumper (replacing 82008175 and 82008176) - $1,680,000

5713 Police Training

(1) Mid-size SUV (replacing 12009308) - $35,000

5719 Police Special Operations

(1) 1/2 ton, extended cab, 4x4 PU (replacing 12013061) - $32,000

5731 Police Investigations

(3) 1/2 ton, extended cab PU (replacing 12011117, 12006129 and 12006130) - $96,000

(5) Mid-size SUV (replacing 12008018, 12008067, 12009009, 12010077, and 12010088) - $175,000

5735 Police Patrol

(41) Patrol SUV (replacing 12008055, 12009033, 12009046, 12009056, 12009058, 12009063, 12009079, 12009087, 12009101, 

12009106, 12009122, 12009123, 12009141, 12010101, 12010110, 12011045, 12011051, 12011053, 12011054, 12011057, 

12011063, 12011067, 12011070, 12011072, 12011078, 12011084, 12011086, 12011089, 12011099, 12011102, 12011103, 

12011138, 12012013, 12012017, 12012023, 12012027, 12012034, 12012038, 12012042, 12013016, 12013039, and 12011069) - 

$2,460,000

(1) 1/2 ton, crew cab, 4x4 pickup (replacing 12011138) - $50,000

Replacement of vehicles and equipment that are at the end of their useful life.

Project Justification

Project History

$5,928,000 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Other Activities  0  5,928,000  0  0  0  0  0  5,928,000 

Total Project Appropriation  0  5,928,000  0  0  0  0  0  5,928,000 



Project Name General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 - ARPA Project Number 92722

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

American Rescue Plan Act 

Funding

 0  5,928,000  0  0  0  0  0  5,928,000 

Total Funding Sources  0  5,928,000  0  0  0  0  0  5,928,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



 AI# 10414 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 29. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
31064023, with YellowHouse Machinery Co., for the purchase of two John Deere 310SL Backhoe
Loaders, for the Water Distribution and Maintenance Department.  

Item Summary
This purchase order is for two John Deere 310SL Backhoe Loaders, at a cost of $115,000 each, which
will replace two 2009 Case 580SM Backhoes in the Water Distribution and Maintenance Department.
These backhoes will be utilized for pipeline maintenance related to water utilities including making
repairs to water and sewer pipelines.
 
The purchase valued at $230,000.00 will be acquired from YellowHouse Machinery Co., of Amarillo,
Texas, in accordance with Sourcewell Contract 03211-JDC, and will be used in the Water Distribution
and Maintenance Department.  Sourcewell has a cooperative purchasing program that manages the
solicitation requirements and offers an established network of awarded contracts that have been
competitively bid. Cooperative purchasing is authorized in Chapter 271 of the Local Government Code
and allows a local government to participate in a cooperative purchasing program. Sourcewell purchases
conform to the requirements of Texas competitive bid statues.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 31064023 for $230,000.00, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92724, General
Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 2021-22.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Dominic Esperat, Interim Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 





























Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

Concrete Truck (6331) 208,153$                  

Agenda Item  January 25, 2022

2 Units John Deere Backhoes (6331) 230,000                    

Encumbered/Expended To Date 438,153                    

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation

Vehicles and Equipment 300,847                    

Remaining Appropriation 300,847                    

Total Appropriation 739,000$                  

City of Lubbock

92724

Water Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

January 25, 2022



Project Name Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92724

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Fleet Maintenance

Billy Taylor

Replacement Equipment/Fleet

Approved

This project is for the annual vehicle replacement for the Water/Wastewater Fund.

6311 Water Meter and Customer Service

(3) 3/4 Ton, Extended Cab, 4x4, Service Body (replacing 22009014, 22008134, and 22013015) - $114,000

6331 Water Distribution & Maintenance

(1) Concrete Truck (replacing 82011007) - $185,000

(2) Backhoe (replacing 92009249 and 92009182) - $240,000

(1) Crew Truck W/ Flatbed (replacing 72010005) - $110,000

6349 Water Reservoir

(1) Land Pride RC2684 3 Point Shredder

(replacing 02012010) - $5,000

6413 Wastewater Collection

(1) 8" trailer mounted pump (replacing 02000178) - $50,000

6417 Industrial Monitoring

(1) 1/2 ton, extended cab, 4x4 with crane (replacing 22006237) - $35,000

Replacement of vehicles and equipment that are at the end of their useful life.

Project Justification

Project History

$739,000 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Other Activities  0  739,000  0  0  0  0  0  739,000 

Total Project Appropriation  0  739,000  0  0  0  0  0  739,000 



Project Name Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92724

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2022 Water/Wastewater Cash  0  739,000  0  0  0  0  0  739,000 

Total Funding Sources  0  739,000  0  0  0  0  0  739,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



 AI# 10416 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 30. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16183, with Fleetwash, Inc., of Fairfield, New Jersey, for mobile car wash services for City vehicles.

Item Summary
In response to ITB-22-16183-SB, for mobile car wash services, the following proposals were received,
per the detailed Bid Tab Form attached:
  

Bid Tab Items Vendor Total
1-1, 1-3, 3-1, 3-2 Fleetwash, Inc. $78.50
1-1, 1-3, 3-1, 3-2 Erlys Janitorial Services, Lubbock, Texas $141.00
1-1, 1-3, 3-1, 3-2 Raider Mobile Wash and Detailing, Idalou, Texas $220.00

  
Bid Tab Items Vendor Total
2-1, 2-2, 2-3 Fleetwash, Inc. $103.50
2-1, 2-2, 2-3 Erlys Janitorial Services, Lubbock, Texas $195.00

2-1, 2-2, 2-3 Raider Mobile Wash and Detailing, Idalou, Texas No Bid

After a review of all the bid submittals, Fleet Staff recommends that the City award this contract to the
lowest bidder who met all specifications, Fleetwash, Inc., of Fairfield, New Jersey. This contract will be
for $50,000 per year, with the option to renew 2 additional years, for a total of $150,000 during the life
of the contract. 

The contract term will be one year with 2 one-year extensions, said date of term beginning upon formal
approval. The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract
including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that valid insurance is on file
with the Purchasing and Contract Management Department, as required by the contract, or the contract
may be terminated for non-compliance.

Fiscal Impact
A total of $50,000 was appropriated in the Fleet Maintenance and Repairs FY 2021-22 Operating
Budget.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Dominic Esperat, Interim Director of Fleet Operations



Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Bid Tabulation Sheet - ITB 22-6183-SB 
Project Summary 























City of Lubbock - Fleet Department
ITB 22-16183-SB Mobile Car Wash Services

Bid Tabulation Sheet

Location UOM Unit Price 

Fairfield, NJ EA $13.50
Lubbock, TX EA 21.00
Idalou, TX EA 35.00

Fairfield, NJ EA 27.50
Lubbock, TX EA 45.00
Idalou, TX EA 50.00

Fairfield, NJ EA 32.50
Idalou, TX EA 50.00
Lubbock, TX EA 65.00

Fairfield, NJ EA 23.50
Lubbock, TX EA 45.00
Idalou, TX EA no bid

Fairfield, NJ EA 37.50
Lubbock, TX EA 65.00
Idalou, TX EA no bid

Fairfield, NJ EA 42.50
Lubbock, TX EA 85.00
Idalou, TX EA no bid

Fairfield, NJ EA 5.00
Idalou, TX EA 15.00
Lubbock, TX EA 20.00

Fairfield, NJ EA 0.00
Idalou, TX EA 15.00
Lubbock, TX EA 50.00

Vendor
#1-1 - Light Duty Cars, Pickups, Vans, Sport Utility Vehicles, 1 
Ton and Below, per specifications
Fleetwash, Inc
Erlys Janitorial Services
Raider Mobile Wash and Detailing

#1-2 - Heavy Duty Trucks, 1 Ton with Aerial Units up to 42' 
(including refuse trucks), per specifications
Fleetwash, Inc
Erlys Janitorial Services
Raider Mobile Wash and Detailing

#1-3 - Heavy Duty Trucks above 1 Ton with Aerial Units 42' to 
125', per specifications
Fleetwash, Inc
Raider Mobile Wash and Detailing
Erlys Janitorial Services

#2-1 - Light Duty Cars, Pickups, Vans, Sport Utility Vehicles, 1 
Ton and Below, per specifications
Fleetwash, Inc
Erlys Janitorial Services
Raider Mobile Wash and Detailing

#2-2 - Heavy Duty Trucks, 1 Ton with Aerial Units up to 42' 
(including refuse trucks), per specifications
Fleetwash, Inc
Erlys Janitorial Services
Raider Mobile Wash and Detailing

#2-3 - Heavy Duty Trucks above 1 Ton with Aerial Units 42' to 
125', per specifications
Fleetwash, Inc
Erlys Janitorial Services
Raider Mobile Wash and Detailing

#3-1 - Additional Charge for Extra Muddy Vehicles 
Fleetwash, Inc
Raider Mobile Wash and Detailing
Erlys Janitorial Services

#3-2 - Additional Charge for Degreasing (Oil or Hydraulic) 
Fleetwash, Inc
Raider Mobile Wash and Detailing
Erlys Janitorial Services



 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
Project Summary 

ITB 22-16183-SB Mobile Car Wash Services  
 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on October 10 and October 17, 2021. 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on Bonfire-hub.com from October 8, 2021 to November 2, 2021. 
14 vendors took documents from Bonfire-hub.com 
8 vendors were notified separately.  
3 vendors submitted a bids. 

 



 AI# 10377 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 31. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor of the City of
Lubbock to execute that certain Second Amended and Restated Partial Requirements Power Service
Agreement Scheduling Protocol, by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock
Power & Light, and Southwestern Public Service Company.

Item Summary
The Scheduling Protocol was initially approved in 2017 to memorialize an understanding regarding
scheduling of all energy purchased and sold between Southwestern Public Service Company (SPS) and
Lubbock Power & Light (LP&L). The Scheduling Protocol was amended in May 2021, to account for
changes that occurred in transactions between SPS & LP&L at that time. The second amendment is
necessary to confirm that SPS will continue its role as the Load Responsible Entity and Market
Participant in the Southwest Power Pool Integrated Marketplace, on LP&L’s behalf. The second
amendment to the Scheduling Protocol is consistent with terms in the Settlement Agreement between
SPS and LP&L, approved on May 27, 2021.

Fiscal Impact
SPS will charge a $12,000 per month fee, for SPS’s labor costs to provide this service.

Staff/Board Recommending
David McCalla, Director of Electric Utilities
Electric Utility Board

Attachments
Resolution - SPS, Amended Partial Power Service Agreement 
SPS Agreement 
EUB Resolution - SPS Amended Partial Power Service Agmt. 

























 AI# 10369 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 32. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - City Secretary: Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0009, ordering the 2022
Regular Municipal Election of the City of Lubbock to be held May 7, 2022.

Item Summary
On January 11, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The Lubbock City Council deems it to be in the best interest of the citizens of Lubbock to order a
Regular City Election for electing municipal officers.  The election is to be held May 7, 2022, pursuant
to the Texas Election Code, the Lubbock City Charter, and City ordinances.  Said election shall be for
the purpose of electing the following officers of the City of Lubbock: Mayor (At Large), 2-year term;
Council Members, Districts 1, 3, and 5, 4-year terms.

Fiscal Impact
$400,000 is appropriated in the Adopted FY 2021-22 Operating Budget for general, runoff, and any
special elections this fiscal year.

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
Election Ordinance 
Ex. A - Election Day Locations and Judges & Alternates 
Ex. B - Early Voting Locations 
Exhibit C - Notice of Election 









Exhibit A (Anexo A) 
 

May 7, 2022 Cities and Schools General and Special Elections 
(Elecciones General y Especial de Ciudades y Escuelas el 7 de mayo de 2022) 

Election Day Vote Center Locations 
(Lugares de Centros de Votación) 

Saturday, May 7, 2022 
(Sábado, 7 de mayo de 2022) 

7:00 A.M. – 7:00 P.M. 
 

***American Sign Language Interpreters available ***Intérpretes de Lenguaje de Señas disponible 

Abernathy City Hall – 811 Avenue D (Community Room), Abernathy, 79311 
(Municipalidad de Abernathy – 811 avenida D, salón comunitario, Abernathy) Bacon 
Heights Baptist Church – 5110 54th St (2 Commons Room), Lubbock, 79414 (Iglesia 
Bautista Bacon Heights – 5110 calle 54, salón comunal 2) 

Broadview Baptist Church – 1302 N Frankford Ave (Fellowship Hall), Lubbock, 79416 
(Iglesia Bautista Broadview – 1302 avenida Frankford Norte, sala de compañerismo) 
Broadway Church of Christ – 1924 Broadway (Foyer) Lubbock, 79401 
(Iglesia de Cristo Broadway – 1924 calle Broadway, vestíbulo) 
Byron Martin ATC – 3201 Avenue Q (Entry Hall), Lubbock, 79411*** 
(Byron Martin ATC – 3201 avenida Q, vestíbulo de entrada) *** 
Calvary Baptist Church – 5301 82nd St (Mall Area), Lubbock, 79424*** 
(Iglesia Bautista Calvario – 5301 calle 82, área de la plaza) *** 
Carmona-Harrison Elementary – 1910 Cesar E. Chavez Drive (Fitness Room), Lubbock, 79415 
(Escuela Primaria Carmona-Harrison – 1910 avenida Cesar E. Chavez, sala de fitness)  
Casey Administration Building – 501 7th St (Room No. 104), Wolfforth, 79382 
(Edificio de Administración Casey – 501 calle 7, salón núm. 104, Wolfforth) 

Catholic Diocese of Lubbock – 4620 4th St (Archbishop Michael J Sheehan Hall), Lubbock, 79416 
(Diócesis Católica de Lubbock – 4620 calle 4, salón del Arzobispo Michael J Sheehan) 
Cavazos Middle School – 210 N University Ave (Gym), Lubbock, 79415 
(Escuela Intermedia Cavazos – 210 avenida Universidad Norte, gimnasio)  
Celebration Christian Center – 8001 Upland Ave (Sanctuary), Lubbock, 79424 
(Centro Cristiano de Celebración – 8001 avenida Upland, santuario) 

Church on the Rock – 10503 Slide Rd (Café Area), Lubbock, 79424 
(Iglesia Sobre la Roca – 10503 Camino Slide, área del café) 
Copper Rawlings Senior Center – 213 40th St (Social Hall), Lubbock, 79404 
(Centro para personas mayores de Copper Rawlings – 213 calle 40, salón social) 
Elks Lodge No. 1348 – 3409 Milwaukee Ave (Lodge Hall), Lubbock, 79407 
(Elks Lodge Núm. 1348 – 3409 avenida Milwaukee, vestíbulo) 
First Assembly of God Church – 3801 98th St (Classroom), Lubbock, 79423 
(Primera Iglesia Asambleas de Dios – 3801 calle 98, salón de clase) 
Green Lawn Church of Christ – 5701 19th St (Entry Hall), Lubbock, 79407 
(Iglesia de Cristo Green Lawn – 5701 calle 19, vestíbulo de entrada) 
Heritage Middle School – 6110 73rd St (Library), Lubbock, 79424 
(Escuela Intermedio Heritage – 6110 calle 73, biblioteca) 



Exhibit A (Anexo A) 
 

 

Hodges Community Center – 4011 University Ave (Social Hall), Lubbock, 79413 
(Centro Social Hodges – 4011 avenida Universidad, salón social) 
Idalou Community Center – 202 W 7th St, Idalou, 79329 
(Centro Social de Idalou – 202 calle 7 oeste, Idalou) 

  Lubbock – Cooper Middle School (Conference Room) –16310 TX-493, Lubbock, 79423  

 (Escuela secundaria Lubbock-Cooper Middle School - 16310 TX-493, sala de conferencias) 
Lubbock-Cooper North Elementary School – 3202 108th St (Gym), Lubbock, 79423 
(Escuela Primaria Lubbock-Cooper North – 3202 calle 108, gimnasio) 
Mae Simmons Community Center – 2004 Oak Ave (Activity Room), Lubbock, 79403  
(Centro Social Mae Simmons – 2004 avenida Oak, salón de actividades) 
Maggie Trejo Supercenter – 3200 Amherst Street (Rodgers Community Center Social Hall), 
Lubbock, 79415  
(Supercentro Maggie Trejo – 3200 calle Amherst, salon social del Centro comunitario Rodgers ) 
Mattress Firm – 6707 Slide Rd (Breakroom), Lubbock, 79424 

(Mattress Firm – 6707 camino Slide, salón de descanso) 
New Deal Community Clubhouse – 309 S Monroe Ave, New Deal, 79350 
(Centro Social de New Deal – 309 avenida Monroe sur, New Deal) 
Parsons Elementary School – 2811 58th St (Gym), Lubbock, 79413 
(Escuela Primaria Parsons – 2811 calle 58, gimnasio) 
Patterson Library – 1836 Parkway Dr (Community Room), Lubbock, 79403 
(Biblioteca Patterson – 1836 avenida Parkway, salón comunitario) 
Ransom Canyon City Hall – 24 Lee Kitchens Dr, Ransom Canyon, 79366 
(Oficina Municipal de Ransom Canyon – 24 calle Lee Kitchens Dr, Ransom Canyon) 
Roberts Elementary School – 7901 Avenue P (Gym), Lubbock, 79423 
(Escuela Primaria Roberts – 7901 avenida P, gimnasio) 
Roscoe Wilson Elementary School – 2807 25th St (Gym), Lubbock, 79410 
(Escuela Primaria Roscoe Wilson – 2807 calle 25, gimnasio) 
Shallowater Community Center – 902 Avenue H, Shallowater, 79363 
(Centro Social de Shallowater – 902 avenida H, Shallowater) 
Slaton Community Clubhouse – 750 W Garza St, Slaton, 79364 
(Centro Comunitario de Slaton, 750 calle Garza oeste, Slaton) 
South Plains Church of Christ – 6802 Elkhart Ave (Gym Area), Lubbock, 79424 
(Iglesia de Cristo South Plains – 6802 avenida Elkhart, área del gimnasio) 
Sunset Church of Christ, (Powerhouse) – 3625 34th St, Lubbock, 79410 
(Iglesia de Cristo Sunset, powerhouse – 3625 calle 34) 
Sutherlands HomeBase – 3701 50th St (Near Lighting Section), Lubbock, 79413 
(Sutherlands HomeBase – 3701 calle 50, cerca de la sección de iluminación  
Terra Vista Middle School – 1111 Upland Ave (Library), Lubbock, 79416 
(Escuela Intermedia Terra Vista – 1111 avenida Upland, biblioteca) 
Texas Tech University Student Union Building – 15th street and Akron Avenue –Student Union 
Building, Lubbock, 79409 
(Edificio de la Unión de Estudiantes de la Universidad Texas Tech - calle 15 y avenida Akron) 



Exhibit A (Anexo A)

ELECTION DAY CENTER LOCATIONS WITH WORKERS

7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.

ABERNATHY CITY HALL, 811 Avenue D, Abernathy                                                                            

Judge Jan Denzer

Alternate Judge

BACON HEIGHTS BAPTIST CHURCH, 5110 54th St                                                           

Judge Mel Sanchez

Alternate Judge Alicia Parra

BROADVIEW BAPTIST CHURCH, 1302 N Frankford Ave                                                                     

Judge Deborah Minnick

Alternate Judge

BROADWAY CHURCH OF CHRIST

Judge Beth Bender

Alternate Judge Ellen Abreo

BYRON MARTIN ATC, 3201 Avenue Q                                                                                                    

Judge Brenda Davis

Alternate Judge Charla Harrison

CALVARY BAPTIST CHURCH, 5301 82nd St                                                                 

Judge Tina Overman

Alternate Judge Mona Mojica

CARMONA‐HARRISON ELEMENTARY

Judge Delmira Lopez

Alternate Judge

CASEY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING ‐ 501 7th Street, Wolfforth

Judge Randy Whitson

Alternate Judge Hilda Griffin



Exhibit A (Anexo A)

CATHOLIC DIOCESE ‐ 4620 4th Street                                                                                                     

Judge  Delia Garcia

Alternate Judge Sandy Howard

CAVAZOS MIDDLE SCHOOL, 210 N University Ave                                                                            

Judge Penny Morin

Alternate Judge Charly Boley

CELEBRATION CHRISTIAN CENTER, 8001 Upland Ave                                                                        

Judge Lynn Acton

Alternate Judge

CHURCH ON THE ROCK, 10503 Slide Rd                                                                           

Judge Tina Mendez

Alternate Judge Ortencia Saldivar

COPPER RAWLINGS SENIOR CENTER

Judge Jayme Mowery

Alternate Judge Robert Chapman

ELKS LODGE NO. 1348, 3409 Milwaukee Ave                                                                                       

Judge Victor Griffin

Alternate Judge Davy Davison

FIRST ASSEMBLY OF GOD CHURCH, 3801 98th St                                                                                

Judge Julia Soccio

Alternate Judge Cindy Stinson

GREEN LAWN CHURCH OF CHRIST, 5701 19th St                                                              

Judge Sheila Hall

Alternate Judge Gloria Reyes

HERITAGE MIDDLE SCHOOL ‐ 6110 73rd Street 

Judge Jim Brown



Exhibit A (Anexo A)

Alternate Judge

HODGES COMMUNITY CENTER, 4011 University Avenue   Lubbock, TX 79413                            

Judge Christina Hughes

Alternate Judge Daniel Lewis

IDALOU COMMUNITY CENTER, 202 W 7th St  Idalou, TX 79329                                                      

Judge Eddie Nathan Payne

Alternate Judge

LUBBOCK‐COOPER NORTH ELEMENTARY, 3202 108th St  Lubbock, TX 79423                             

Judge Penny Pierce

Alternate Judge

Judge Justin Lopez

Alternate Judge

MAE SIMMONS COMMUNITY CENTER, 2004 Oak Ave  Lubbock, TX 79403                                  

Judge Mark Moore

Alternate Judge Debbie Christenson

MAGGIE TREJO SUPERCENTER, 3200 Amherst St  Lubbock, TX 79424                                            

Judge

Alternate Judge

MATTRESS FIRM, 6707 Slide Rd   Lubbock, TX 79424                                                                         

Judge Lela Tackitt

Alternate Judge Joann Vandergriff

NEW DEAL COMMUNITY CLUBHOUSE, 309 S Monroe Ave New Deal, TX 79350                         

Judge Nancy Obenhaus

Alternate Judge Barbara St Croix

LUBBOCK COOPER PERFORMING ARTS CENTER (PAC), 910 Woodrow Rd Lubbock, TX 

79423



Exhibit A (Anexo A)

PARSONS ELEMENTARY, 2811 58th St   Lubbock, TX 79413                                                              

Judge Janet Stephens

Alternate Judge Mark Sanders

PATTERSON LIBRARY, 1836 Parkway Dr   Lubbock, TX 79403                                                          

Judge Connie Adams

Alternate Judge

RANSOM CANYON CITY HALL, 24 Lee Kitchens Dr Ransom Canyon, TX 79366

Judge

Alternate Judge

ROBERTS ELEMENTARY, 7901 Avenue P  Lubbock, TX 79423                                                           

Judge Melanie Barnes

Alternate Judge

ROSCOE WILSON ELEMENTARY, 2807 25th St   Lubbock, TX 79410      

Judge Hedy Coffman

Alternate Judge

SHALLOWATER COMMUNITY CENTER, 902 Avenue H Shallowater, TX 79363                             

Judge Robert Hobgood

Alternate Judge Jenny Bustillos

SLATON COMMUNITY CLUBHOUSE, 750 W Garza St Slaton, TX 79364                                          

Judge Glenn Mullins

Alternate Judge Diana Stubblefield

SOUTH PLAINS CHURCH OF CHRIST, 6802 Elkhart Ave  Lubbock, TX 79424                                  

Judge Megan Taylor

Alternate Judge Mary Ann Waymack

SUNSET CHURCH OF CHRIST, Powerhouse, 3651 34th St  Lubbock, TX 79410                              

Judge Lisa Hiracheta

Alternate Judge Ramona Mathis‐Phillips



Exhibit A (Anexo A)

SUTHERLANDS HOME BASE                                                                                                                     

Judge Sharon Kirkwood

Alternate Judge Remington Griffin

TERRA VISTA MIDDLE SCHOOL, 1111 Upland Ave. Lubbock, TX 79416                                          

Judge Judy Curry

Alternate Judge Betty Zamora

TTU STUDENT UNION BUILDING, 15th St and Akron Ave Lubbock TX 79409                                

Judge Rachel Buck

Alternate Judge Sarah Looten



Sections 85.067 and 85.068 

V.T.C.A., Election Code 
Exhibit B Anexo B 

 

 

May 7, 2022  Cities and Schools General and Special Elections 
(Elecciones General y Especial de Ciudades y Escuelas el 7 de mayo de 2022) 

NOTICE OF EARLY VOTING 
AVISO DE VOTACIÓN ANTICIPADA 

Early Voting by personal appearance for the May 7, 2022 
Cities and Schools General and Special Elections 

ALL EARLY POLLING LOCATIONS ON THE DATES, TIMES, AND LOCATIONS LISTED BELOW: 

Votación Adelantada para las Elecciones General y Especial de Ciudades y Escuelas el 7 de mayo, 

2022 serán conducidas en LAS FECHAS, HORARIOS Y SITIOS LISTADOS ABAJO: 

EARLY VOTING DATES:  Monday, April 25 – Tuesday, May 3, 2022 

(Fechas de Votación Adelantada:  lunes, 25 de abril– martes, 3 de mayo del 2022) 

 
Main Early Voting Polling Place 
Lugar principal de la votación anticipada 

 

Dates: 

Fechas: 

 

Mon, April 25 – Tues, May 3 

lunes, 25 de abril - martes, 3 de mayo 

Lubbock County Elections Office 
Oficina de Elecciones del Condado de Lubbock 

Times: 

horas: 

 

8:00 AM - 8:00 PM 

1308 Crickets Ave, Lubbock, TX 79401 

1308 avenida Crickets 
 EXCEPT Sunday, May 1 

MENOS el domingo, 1 de mayo 

Room: Public Room 

Sala: salón público 
 1:00 PM - 7:00 PM 

 

*******************************************************************************************************  

Early Voting Branch Polling Places 
*******************************************************************************************************  

United Supermarkets 
All Locations listed below: 

United - 2630 Parkway Dr., Lubbock, TX 79403 (Parkway & Beech Ave) 
Dates: 

Fechas: 

Mon, April 25 – Tues, May 3 

lunes, 25 de abril - martes, 3 de mayo 

United - 401 Slide Road, Lubbock, TX 79416  (4th & Slide) 
Times: 

horas: 
8:00 AM - 8:00 PM 

United - 6313 4th St., Lubbock, TX 79416  (4th & Milwaukee) 
 EXCEPT Sunday, May 1 

MENOS el domingo, 1 de mayo 

United - 1701 50th St., Lubbock, TX 79412 (50th & Avenue Q)  1:00 PM - 7:00 PM 

United - 2703 82nd St., Lubbock, TX 79423 (82nd & Boston Ave) 

United - 8010 Frankford Ave., Lubbock, TX 79424 (82nd & Frankford) 

United - 12815 Indiana Ave., Lubbock, TX 79423  (130th & Indiana) 

United - 11310 Slide Rd, Lubbock, TX 79424  (114th & Slide) 

Amigos - 112 N University Ave., Lubbock, TX 79415 (University & Auburn) 

Market Street - 4425 19th St., Lubbock, TX 79407  (19th & Quaker) 

Market Street - 3405 50th St., Lubbock, TX 79413   (50th & Indiana) 

Market Street - 4205 98th St., Lubbock, TX 79423   (98th & Quaker) 



Sections 85.067 and 85.068 

V.T.C.A., Election Code 
Exhibit B Anexo B 

 

 

Abernathy City Hall 
Municipalidad de Abernathy 

Dates: 

Fechas: 

Mon, April 25 – Tues, May 3 

lunes, 25 de abril - martes, 3 de mayo 

811 Avenue D, Abernathy 

811 avenida D 

Times: 

horas: 
8:00 AM - 8:00 PM 

Room: Community Room 

Sala:  Salón comunitario 
 EXCEPT Sunday, May 1 

MENOS el domingo, 1 de mayo 

Abernathy, TX 79311  1:00 PM - 7:00 PM 

 

Casey Administration Building 
Edificio de Administración Casey 

 

Dates: 

Fechas: 

 

Mon, April 25 – Tues, May 3 

lunes, 25 de abril - martes, 3 de mayo 

501 7th Street, Wolfforth 

501 calle 7 

Times: 

horas: 

 

8:00 AM - 8:00 PM 

Room: Room No. 104 

Sala: Salón No. 104 
 EXCEPT Sunday, May 1 

MENOS el domingo, 1 de mayo 

Wolfforth, TX 79382  1:00 PM - 7:00 PM 

 

Citizens Tower 
Citizens Tower 

 

Dates: 

Fechas: 

 

Mon, April 25 – Tues, May 3 

lunes, 25 de abril - martes, 3 de mayo 

1314 Avenue K (1st Floor) Lubbock, TX 79401 

1314 avenida k 

Times: 

horas: 

 

8:00 AM - 5:00 PM 

Room: Lobby 

Sala: vestíbulo 

  Closed Saturday and Sunday  

  

Idalou Community Center 
Centro de Comunidad Idalou 

 

Dates: 

Fechas: 

 

Mon, April 25 – Tues, May 3 

lunes, 25 de abril - martes, 3 de mayo 

202 W. 7th Street, Idalou 

202 calle 7 oeste 

Times: 

horas: 

 

8:00 AM - 8:00 PM 

Room: Community Room 
Sala:  Salón comunitario 

 EXCEPT Sunday, May 1 

MENOS el domingo, 1 de mayo 

Idalou, TX 79329  1:00 PM - 7:00 PM 

 
Lubbock ISD Administration Office 
Officina de Administratíon de Lubbock ISD 

 

Dates: 

Fechas: 

 

Mon, April 25 – Tues, May 3 

lunes, 25 de abril - martes, 3 de mayo 

1628 19th Street, Lubbock, TX 79401 

1628 calle 19 

Times: 

horas: 
8:00 AM - 5:00 PM 

Room: Breezeway 
Sala: Breezeway 

 
 Closed Saturday and Sunday 

New Deal Community Clubhouse 
Centro Social de New Deal 

 

Dates: 

Fechas: 

 

Mon, April 25 – Tues, May 3 

lunes, 25 de abril - martes, 3 de mayo 

309 S. Monroe Avenue, New Deal 

309 avenida Monroe sur 

Times: 

horas: 

 

8:00 AM - 8:00 PM 

Room: Community Room 
Sala:  Salón comunitario 

 EXCEPT Sunday, May 1 

MENOS el domingo, 1 de mayo 

New Deal, TX 79350  1:00 PM - 7:00 PM 



Sections 85.067 and 85.068 

V.T.C.A., Election Code 
Exhibit B Anexo B 

 

Ransom Canyon City Hall 
Oficina Municipal de Ransom Canyon 

24 Lee Kitchens Dr 

24 calle Lee Kitchens Dr 
Room: 

Sala: 

Dates:  Mon, April 25 – Tues, May 3 

Fechas:  lunes, 25 de abril - martes, 3 de mayo 

Times: 
8:00 AM - 5:00 PM 

horas: 

EXCEPT Sunday, May 1 

MENOS el domingo, 1 de mayo 

1:00 PM - 7:00 PM 
 

 

 

Shallowater Community Center 
Centro de Comunidad Shallowater 

900 Avenue H, Shallowater 

900 avenida H 
Room: Community Room 

Sala:  Salón comunitario 

Dates:  Mon, April 25 – Tues, May 3 

Fechas:  lunes, 25 de abril - martes, 3 de mayo 

Times: 
8:00 AM - 8:00 PM 

horas: 

EXCEPT Sunday, May 1 

MENOS el domingo, 1 de mayo 

Shallowater, TX 79363 1:00 PM - 7:00 PM 

 
 

 

Slaton Community Clubhouse 
Centro Comunitario de Slaton 

750 W Garza St, Slaton 

750 calle Garza oeste 

Room: Community Room 

Sala:  Salón comunitario 

Dates:  Mon, April 25 – Tues, May 3 

Fechas:  lunes, 25 de abril - martes, 3 de mayo 

Times: 
8:00 AM - 8:00 PM 

horas: 

EXCEPT Sunday, May 1 

MENOS el domingo, 1 de mayo 

Slaton, TX 79364 1:00 PM - 7:00 PM 

 
 

 

Texas Tech University Student Recreation Center 
Universidad de Texas Tech Centro de Recreación para Estudiantes 

Texas Tech Campus 

Campus de Texas Tech 
3219 Main Street, Lubbock, TX 79409 

3219 calle Main 

Dates:  Mon, April 25 – Tues, May 3 

Fechas:  lunes, 25 de abril - martes, 3 de mayo 

Times: 
8:00 AM - 8:00 PM 

horas: 

EXCEPT Sunday, May 1 

MENOS el domingo, 1 de mayo 

Lubbock, TX 79409 1:00 PM - 7:00 PM 





 AI# 10407 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 33. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - City Secretary: Consider an ordinance amending Section 1.02.004 of the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, Texas, with regard to voting precinct boundaries and the
establishment of the same by the City Council; creating additional and new voting precincts; and
providing a map of the voting precincts and districts of the City of Lubbock.

Item Summary
The Lubbock City Council received the results of the 2020 Federal Census and engaged the law firm of
Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta, LLP, to act as its redistricting consultant.

On December 14, 2020, the City Council adopted the final plan regarding redistricting of the 6 City
Council single-member districts.

On December 27, 2021, the Lubbock County Commissioner's Court adopted reconfigured voting
precincts within the City and the County of Lubbock. The City Council deems it to be in the best interest
of the citizens of the City of Lubbock to amend the boundaries of existing voting precincts, and to create
additional and new voting precincts.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
Ord.- Precincts 
Precinct Map 









2

35

65

41

34

39

46

51

44

43

151

26

103

1
4

20

76

33

6

121

409

7

111

138 56

32

110

5

92 57

36

53

135

29

52

112

3
59

11

129

154

152

67

109

27

17

113

37

58 153

66

15

5478

22

62

72

14

8

19

140

30

47

28

21 24

50

104

10

75 119

139

63

141 142

127

25

12

23

60
118122

123

13

125 124

108

128

126

49

114

178

102

19TH ST

34TH ST

4TH ST

82ND ST

98TH ST

S
L

ID
E

 R
D

130TH ST

Q
U

A
K

E
R

 A
V

E

114TH ST

U
P

L
A

N
D

 A
V

E

146TH ST

IN
D

IA
N

A
 A

V
E

50TH ST

ERSKINE ST

A
V

E
 Q

N
 A

V
E

 P

M
IL

W
A

U
K

E
E

 A
V

E

A
V

E
 A

S LOOP 289

MARSHA S
HARP FW

Y

CLOVIS RD

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 A
V

E

N LOOP 289

N
 IN

T
E

R
S

TA
T

E
 2

7

ID
ALOU R

D

E
 L

O
O

P
 2

89

IN
T

E
R

S
TA

T
E

 2
7

W
 L

O
O

P
 2

89

A
L

C
O

V
E

 A
V

E

E SLATON RD

KENT ST

E 50TH ST

E ERSKINE ST

N
 G

U
A

V
A

 A
V

EE REGIS ST

M
 L

 K
IN

G
 J

R
 B

LV
D

E 19TH ST

U
S

 8
7

E 4TH ST

SPUR 327

IN
L

E
R

 A
V

E

E 82ND ST

E KENT ST

SE LOOP 289

N
 M

 L
 K

IN
G

 J
R

 B
LV

D

SO
UTHEAST DR

URSULINE ST

66TH ST

R
E

S
E

A
R

C
H

 B
LV

D

N
 A

S
H

 A
V

E

N
 A

V
E

 Q
 D

R

E FM 1294

UTAH ST

N
 M

IL
W

A
U

K
E

E
 A

V
E

REGIS ST

KENT ST

114TH ST

A
L

C
O

V
E

 A
V

E

E 4TH ST

Shallowater

Idalou

Wolfforth
Buffalo
Springs

Ransom
Canyon

New
Deal

LUBBOCK CITY COUNCIL
DISTRICTS & VOTING PRECINCTS

Effective: January 1, 2022

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the
Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal,
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate

relative location of property boundaries.

±

Council District 1

Council District 2

Council District 3

Council District 4

Council District 5

Council District 6

Voting Precincts

Lubbock City Limits

0 1 2 3 40.5

Miles

155

120

31



 AI# 10408 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 34. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to pay in
accordance with Article II, Subsection B, of Professional Services Agreement, Contract No. 15708,
with Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta LLP, an amount up to $38,000 for redistricting services related
to the City of Lubbock, as the City increased the number of plans and other services.

Item Summary
Payment for redistricting services due to increase in plans and services to the City.

Fiscal Impact
Up to $38,000

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
Resolution - Bickerstaff Contract 
Article II Section B 





Resolution No. 202 l-R0232 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

STATE OF TEXAS§ 

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK § 

This Professional Service Agreement ("Agreement") Contract No.15708 is entered into 

Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta LLP (the" Consultant"), a Texas limited liability partnership, and the 

political subdivisions of the State of Texas, consisting of the City of Lubbock (the "City), Lubbock 

County (the "County") and Lubbock Independent School District (the "LISD") hereafter referred to 

collectively as the "Political Subdivisions". 

WITNESS ETH 

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Consultant to provide professional services for 

Redistricting Services for and on behalf of the Political Subdivisions (the "Activities") as awarded in 

RFQ 21-15708-MA; and 

WHEREAS, the Consultant has a professional staff experienced and is qualified to provide 

professional Consulting services related to the Activities, and will provide the services, as defined below, 

for the price provided herein, said price stipulated by the City and the Consultant to be a fair and 

reasonable price; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Consultant to provide professional 

services related to the Activities, and Consultant desires to provide the Services related to same; 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in 

this Agreement, the City, for itself and on behalf of the other Political Subdivisions, and the Consultant 

hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. TERM 

22nd June 
The initial term of this Agreement commences on the day of ------- ---------
2021 and continues without interruption until the Activities are complete. 

Per RFQ 21-15708-MA (Exhibit "B"), Consultant must represent the County in odd years from 

2023-2029 to update voting precincts as needed. The County must obtain a Scope of Work and current 

pricing from the Consultant in each odd numbered year as needed. 

01333114;3 Page 1 ofll 



ARTICLE II. SERVICES AND COMPENSATION 

A. The Consultant shall conduct all activities, and within such timeframes, as set forth in 

the Consultants response to RFQ 21-15708-MA, attached hereto as Exhibit "C" (the "Services"), or 

as otherwise agreed. 

B. The Consultant shall receive as consideration to be paid for the performance of the Services 

identified in the Political Subdivisions' respective estimated budgets, in an amount not to exceed 

$114,810.00, as set forth in Exhibit "A". Each of those estimated budgets provides for a limited number 

of plans to be developed, meetings and public meetings to be held, and of other related services; 

increases in the number of plans, meetings, public meetings, or other services would increase the total 

price. Reconfigurations of County election precincts in subsequent years is not included in the 

estimated budget for the County. 

ARTICLE III. TERMINATION 

A. General. The City may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or convenience, upon thirty 

(30) days written notice to the Consultant. In the event this Agreement is so terminated, the City shall 

only pay the Consultant for services actually performed by the Consultant up to the date the Consultant is 

deemed to have received notice of termination, as provided herein. 

B. Termination and Remedies. In the event the Consultant breaches any term and/or provision 

of this Agreement, the City shall be entitled to exercise any right or remedy available to it by this 

Agreement, at law, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement 

and assertion of an action for damages and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any right or remedy 

shall not preclude the concurrent or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy and all rights and 

remedies shall be cumulative. 

C. Termination by Consultant. The Consultant may terminate this Agreement as to any one or 

more of the Political Subdivisions upon thirty (30) days' written notice for failure of the applicable 

Political Subdivision to timely pay any invoice for Services; or for a Political Subdivision's refusal to 

accept the Consultant's legal advice regarding the Services. 

ARTICLE IV. NON - ARBITRATION 

The Political Subdivisions reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to them by 

law, contract, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief 

01333114;3 Page 2 ofll 



in a court of competent jurisdiction. Further, the Political Subdivisions shall not be subject to any 

arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth 

herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict 

between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this Agreement, this provision shall control. 

ARTICLE V. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

A. Existence. The Consultant is a limited liability partnership duly organized, validly existing, and 

in good standing under the laws of the State of Texas and is qualified to carry on its business in the State of 

Texas. 

B. Corporate Power. The Consultant has the legal power and authority to enter into and perform 

this Agreement and all other activities contemplated hereby. 

C. Authorization. Execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the activities 

contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all the requisite corporate action on the 

part of the Consultant. This Agreement constitutes legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Consultant 

and is enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof. 

D. Consultant. The Consultant maintains a professional staff and employs, as needed, other 

qualified specialists experienced in providing the Services, and is familiar with all laws, rules, and 

regulations, both state and federal, including, without limitation the applicable laws, regarding the 

Activities contemplated hereby. 

E. Performance. The Consultant will and shall conduct all activities contemplated by this 

Agreement in accordance with the standard of care, skill and diligence normally provided by a 

professional person in performance of similar professional services, and comply with all applicable laws, 

rules, and regulations, both state and federal, relating to professional services, as contemplated hereby. 

F. Use of Copyrighted Material. The Consultant warrants that any materials provided by the 

Consultant for use by the Political Subdivisions pursuant to this Agreement shall not contain any 

proprietary material owned by any third party that is protected under the Copyright Act or any other law, 

statute, rule, order, regulation, ordinance or contractual obligation relating to the use or reproduction of 

materials; or that Consultant has consent or other authorization to use and provide such third-party 

materials. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring that any materials provided by the 

Consultant pursuant to this Agreement satisfy this requirement and the Consultant agrees to indemnify 

01333114;3 Page3 ofll 



and hold"the Political Subdivisions harmless from all liability or loss caused to the Political Subdivisions 

or to which the Political Subdivisions are exposed on account of the Consultant's failure to perform this 

duty; except, however, if the Political Subdivisions ( or any one or more of them) violate any limitations 

on use or dissemination stated by Consultant. 

ARTICLE VI. SCOPE OF WORK 

The Consultant shall accomplish the following: Professional Services related to the Services, as 

provided in Exhibit "A-C", attached hereto and made a part hereof for each Political Subdivision 

ARTICLE VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS 

The Consultant and the Political Subdivisions agree that the Consultant shall perform the duties 

under this Agreement as an independent contractor and shall be considered as independent contractor 

under this Agreement and/or in its activities hereunder for all purposes. The Consultant has the sole 

discretion to determine the manner in which the Services are to be performed. During the performance of 

the Services under this Agreement, the Consultant and the Consultant's employees and/or sub

consultants, will not be considered, for any purpose, employees or agents of the Political Subdivisions 

within the meaning or the application of any federal, state or local law or regulation, including without 

limitation, laws, rules or regulations regarding or related to unemployment insurance, old age benefits, 

workers compensation, labor, personal injury or taxes of any kind. 

ARTICLE VIII. INSURANCE 

The Consultant shall procure and carry, at its sole cost and expense through the life of this 

Agreement, except as otherwise provided herein, insurance protection as hereinafter specified, in form 

and substance satisfactory to the Political Subdivisions, carried with an insurance company authorized to 

transact business in the state of Texas, covering all aspects and risks of loss of all operations in 

connection with this Agreement, including without limitation, the indemnity obligations set forth herein. 

The Consultant shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, and 

shall cause each approved subcontractor or sub-consultant of the Consultant to obtain and maintain in full 

force and effect during the term of this Agreement, commercial general liability, professional liability and 

automobile liability coverage for non-owned and hired vehicles with insurance carriers admitted to do 

business in the state of Texas. The insurance companies must carry a Best's Rating of A-VII or better. 

Except for Professional Liability, the policies will be written on an occurrence basis, subject to the 

following minimum limits of liability: 

01333114;3 Page4 ofll 



Commercial General Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000 

General Aggregate Limit: $2,000,000 

Professional Liability: 

Combined Single Limit: $2,000,000 

Automobile Liability: 

Combined Single Limit for any auto: $1,000,000 Per Occurrence 

Employer's Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000 

Worker's Compensation 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $500,000 

The Consultant shall further cause any approved subcontractor or sub-consultant to procure and 

carry, during the term of this Agreement, the insurance coverage required of Consultant herein, including 

without limitation, Professional Liability coverage, protecting the Political Subdivisions against losses 

caused by the professional negligence of the approved subcontractor or sub-consultant. The Political 

Subdivisions shall be listed as a primary and noncontributory additional insured with respect to the 

Automobile Liability and Commercial General Liability and shall be granted a waiver of subrogation 

under those policies. The Consultant shall provide a Certificate of Insurance to the Political Subdivisions 

as evidence of coverage. 

The Certificate shall provide 30 day's notice of cancellation. A copy of the additional insured 

endorsement and waiver of subrogation attached to the policy shall be included in the Certificate. The 

Consultant shall elect to obtain worker's compensation coverage pursuant to Section 406.002 of the Texas 

Labor Code. Further, the Consultant shall maintain said coverage throughout the term of this Agreement 

and shall comply with all provisions of Title 5 of the Texas Labor Code to ensure that the Consultant 

maintains said coverage. The Consultant may maintain Occupational Accident and Disability Insurance in 

lieu of Worker's Compensation. In either event, the policy must be endorsed to include a waiver of 

subrogation in favor of the Political Subdivisions. If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any 

extension hereof, the Consultant fails to maintain the required insurance in full force and effect, the 

Consultant shall be in breach hereof and all work under the Agreement shall be discontinued immediately. 

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the professional liability policy shall 

be maintained at the Consultant's sole cost and expense. The retroactive date shall be no later than the 

commencement of the performance of this Agreement and the discovery period (possibly through tail 

01333ll4;3 PageS ofll 



coverage) shall be no less than 10 years after the completion of the Services provided for in this 

Agreement. The provisions of this Article VIII shall survive the termination or expiration of this 

Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX. EMPLOYMENT OF AGENTS/RETAINING OF CONSULTANTS 

The Consultant may employ or retain consultants, contractors, or third parties (any of which are 

referred to herein as "Sub-consultant"), to perform certain duties of Consultant, as set forth on Exhibit "A", 

attached hereto, under this Agreement. The Consultant is at all times responsible to the Political 

Subdivisions to perform the Services as provided in this Agreement and the Consultant is in no event 

relieved of any obligation under this Agreement upon retainage of any approved Sub-consultant. Any agent 

and/or Sub-consultant retained and/or employed by the Consultant shall be required by the Consultant to 

carry, for the protection and benefit of the Political Subdivisions and the Consultant and naming said third 

parties as additional insureds, insurance as described above required to be carried by the Consultant in this 

Agreement. 

The Consultant represents that such services are either under applicable value thresholds or are 

otherwise exempt from notice and/or bid requirements under Texas Law. 

ARTICLE X. CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Consultant shall retain all information received from or concerning the Political Subdivisions 

and the Political Subdivisions' business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to 

third parties without prior written consent of the Political Subdivisions, unless otherwise required by law, 

except for information deemed public under the Texas Public Information Act. 

ARTICLE XI. INDEMNITY 

THE CONSULT ANT SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE POLITICAL 

SUBDIVISIONS AND ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES 

FROM ALL SUITS, ACTIONS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND, 

CHARACTER, TYPE, OR DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY 

OF THE FOREGOING, ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY'S 

FEES, FOR INJURY OR DEATH TO ANY PERSON, OR INJURY TO ANY PROPERTY, RECEIVED 

OR SUSTAINED BY ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR PROPERTY, TO THE EXTENT 

PROXIMATELY CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF THE CONSULTANT, ITS AGENTS, 

01333114;3 Page 6 ofll 



EMPLOYEES, AND/OR SUBCONSULTANTS, RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE, 

OPERATIONS OR OMISSIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE USE OR 

OCCUPATION OF POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS OWNED PROPERTY. THE INDEMNITY 

OBLIGATION PROVIDED HEREIN SHALL SURVIVE THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF 

THIS AGREEMENT. 

TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS (OR THE 

APPLICABLE POLITICAL SUBDIVISION(S)) SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE 

CONSULTANT AND ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, AND SUB-CONSULTANTS FROM 

ALL SUITS, ACTIONS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND, 

CHARACTER, TYPE, OR DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY 

OF THE FOREGOING, ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY'S 

FEES, FOR: (A) INJURY OR DEATH TO ANY PERSON, OR INJURY TO ANY PROPERTY, 

RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR PROPERTY, TO THE EXTENT 

PROXIMATELY CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF THE CONSULTANT, ITS AGENTS, 

EMPLOYEES, AND/OR SUBCONSULTANTS, RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE, 

OPERATIONS OR OMISSIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE USE OR 

OCCUPATION OF POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS OWNED PROPERTY; AND (B) ANY CLAIM BY 

A THIRD PARTY OF INFRINGEMENT OF THE THIRD PARTY'S INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

OR PROPRIETARY INFORMATION BASED IN WHOLE OR PART ON ASSERTIONS OF 

UNAUTHORIZED USE, DISSEMINATION, OR OTHER INFRINGEMENT ("INFRINGING USE") 

BY THE RESPECTIVE POLITICAL SUBDIVISION(S), WHERE THE POLITICAL SUBDIVISION 

WAS INFORMED BY CONSULTANT THAT SUCH INFRINGING USE WAS PROSCRIBED. 

ARTICLE XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 

The Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, 

rules and regulations relating, in any way, manner or form, to the activities under this Agreement, and any 

amendments thereto. 

ARTICLE XIII. NOTICE 

A. General. Whenever notice from the Consultant to the Political Subdivisions or the Political 

Subdivisions to the Consultant is required or permitted by this Agreement and no other method of notice 

is provided, such notice shall be given by (1) actual delivery of the written notice to the other party by 

hand (in which case such notice shall be effective upon delivery); (2) facsimile (in which case such notice 

01333114;3 Page 7 ofll 



shall be effective upon delivery); or (3) by depositing the written notice in the United States mail, 

properly addressed to the other party at the address provided in this article, registered or certified mail, 

return receipt requested, in which case such notice shall be effective on the third business day after such 

notice is so deposited. 

B. Consultant's Address. The Consultant's address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Bickerstaff, Heath, Delgado, Acosta, LLP. 

A TIN :David Mendez 
3711 S. MoPac Expressway 
Building One, Suite 300 
Austin, TX 78746 
Telephone: 512-472-8021 

C. Political Subdivisions' Address. The Political Subdivisions' address and numbers for 

the purposes of notice are: 

City of Lubbock 
Attn: Becky Garza 
P.O. Box 2000 
1314 Avenue K 
Lubbock, Texas79457 
Email:bgarza@mylubbock.us 
Telephone: 806-775-2061 

Lubbock County 
Attn: Curtis Parrish 
P.O. Box 10536 
916 Main Street 
Lubbock, TX 79408 
Email:cparrish@lubbockcounty.gov 
Telephone: 806-775-1687 

LubbockISD 
Attn: Sheri Dahl 
1628 191h Street 
Lubbock, TX 79401 
Email:sherri.dahl@lubbockisd.org 
Telephone: 806-219-0233 

D. Change of Address. Either party may change its address or numbers for purposes of notice by 

giving written notice to the other party as provided herein, referring specifically to this Agreement, and 

setting forth such new address or numbers. The address or numbers shall become effective on the 15th 

day after such notice is effective. 

ARTICLE XIV. POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS-PROVIDED DATA AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Provision of Data. The Political Subdivisions shall furnish the Consultant non-confidential 

studies, reports and other available data in the possession of the Political Subdivisions pertinent to the 

Consultant's Services (the "Provided Data). The Consultant shall be entitled to use and rely, so long as 

such reliance is reasonable, upon all such Provided Data. 

01333114;3 Page8ofll 



ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Captions. The captions for the articles and sections in this Agreement are inserted in this 

Agreement strictly for the parties' convenience in identifying the provisions to this Agreement and shall 

not be given any effect in construing this Agreement. 

B. Records. The Consultant shall maintain records that are necessary to substantiate the services 

provided by the Consultant. 

D. Assignability. The Consultant may not assign this Agreement without the prior written 

approval of the City. 

E. Successor and Assigns. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the Political 

Subdivisions and the Consultant, and in the case of the Political Subdivisions, its respective successors, 

legal representatives, and assigns, and in the case of the Consultant, its pennitted successors and assigns. 

F. Construction and Venue. 

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THIS AGREEMENT IS PERFORMABLE IN PART IN 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENT TO 

THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE COURTS OF COMPETENT 

JURISDICTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF LUBBOCK, FOR THE PURPOSES OF 

ALL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE 

ACTIONS THAT ARE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. 

G. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is ever held to be invalid or ineffective by any 

court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any person or circumstance, the remainder of this 

Agreement and the application of such provision to persons and/or circumstances other than those with 

respect to which it is held invalid or ineffective shall not be affected thereby. 

H. Amendment. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this Agreement shall 

be binding unless such amendment, modification, or alteration is in writing, dated subsequent to this 

Agreement, and duly authorized and executed by the Consultant and the City. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits "A" through "C" attached hereto, 

contains the entire agreement between the City and the Consultant, and there are no other written or oral 

013331l4;3 Page 9 of 11 



promises, conditions, warranties, or representations relating to or affecting the matters contemplated 

herein. 

J. No Joint Enterprise. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to imply a joint venture,joint 

enterprise, partnership or principal - agent relationship between the Consultant and the Political 

Subdivisions. 

K. Documents Owned by Political Subdivisions. Any and all physical documents, drawings and 

specifications prepared by Consultant as part of the Services hereunder, shall become the property of the 

Political Subdivisions when the Consultant has been compensated as set forth in Article II, above. The 

Consultant shall make copies of any and all work products for its files. No copyrights or other rights in or 

to the work product of Consultant are transferred by this Agreement; provided, that the applicable 

Political Subdivision shall have the right to use in the ordinary course of its business, including 

reproducing and disseminating, all work product of Consultant provided by Consultant to the Political 

Subdivision. 

L. Notice of Waiver. A waiver by either a Political Subdivision or the Consultant of a breach of 

this Agreement must be in writing and duly authorized to be effective. In the event either party shall 

execute and deliver such waiver, such waiver shall not affect the waiving party's rights with respect to 

any other or subsequent breach. 

M. No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to provide any 

rights or benefits whatsoever to any party other than the Political Subdivisions and the Consultant. 

N. Non-Appropriation. All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the 

availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of 

funds by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the services provided under the Agreement, the City 

will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then

current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the services covered by 

this Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first (the "Non-Appropriation Date"); and Consultant 

shall have no further obligation or liability under the Agreement; provided, that payment for services 

provided in whole or party by Consultant prior to termination shall be promptly paid, subject to limits of 

the remaining current appropriation. If at any time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this 

Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Consultant on thirty (30) days prior written notice,. 

01333114;3 Page 10 ofll 



0. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist 
Organization Prohibited. Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City 
from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to 
have contracts with or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization. 

P. No Boycott of Israel. Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, 

Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does 

not boycott Israel and will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this 

solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its 

Response. 

Q. Texas Public Information Act. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if 

the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees 

to: (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records retention 

requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to 

the governmental body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or 

possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, 

either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to the contract 

that is in the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the 

contract as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 

EXECUTED by each Parties on the dates indicted below. 

CITY~ 

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR 

DATE: June 22, 2021 
---------

01333114;3 Page 11 ofll 



BICKERSTAFF, HEATH, DELGADO, ACOSTA LLP 

or I 
By: ;__J 111 J 
[Firm Signature] 

DATE: 6/15/2021 

01333114;3 Page 12 ofll 



 AI# 10329 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 35. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Developer
Participation Agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock and Rocket Partners I, LLC, for public
improvements for the construction of a multi-company fire station at 142nd Street and Indiana.

Item Summary
On September 14, 2021, the City of Lubbock was gifted 2.401 acres in Section 1, Block AK, Lubbock
County, located east of Indiana Avenue and south of 140th Street, from Rocket Partners I, LLC, for the
construction of Fire Station No. 20.  The site will require the City to construct one-half of 142nd Street
and one-half of Geneva Avenue, as well as the required utilities which abut the property in order to plat
the property and begin construction.  Rocket Partners I, LLC also plans to construct the adjacent half of
both of these streets in order to serve the development of the adjacent land.  It is beneficial to join the
projects in order to construct 142nd Street and Geneva Avenue at one time instead of separately.  Thus,
this Developer Participation Agreement provides that the City will reimburse Rocket Partners I, LLC for
the portion of construction for the City's one-half of the infrastructure.

Fiscal Impact
The estimated cost to the City for the required public infrastructure adjacent to the future site of Fire
Station No. 20 is funded in CIP 92711 Fire Station 20.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 
Deed from Rocket Partners I, LLC 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 















170156
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 'A'















170156
Typewritten Text
   EXHIBIT 'A'















COL COL 1585 Dev. 1585 Dev.
Item 

No. Item Description Quantity / Units Unit Cost Total Item Cost
Cost Share 

Percentage 

Total Item 

Cost

Cost Share 

Percentage 

Total Item 

Cost

WATER DISTRIBUTION

W-1 6" C-900 PVC pipe 20 L.F. $25.00 $500.00 50% $250.00 50% $250.00

W-2 8" C-900 PVC pipe 789 L.F. $35.00 $27,615.00 50% $13,807.50 50% $13,807.50

W-3 10" C-900 PVC pipe 564 L.F. $42.00 $23,688.00 50% $11,844.00 50% $11,844.00

W-4 6" gate valves and valve box 1 Each $1,400.00 $1,400.00 50% $700.00 50% $700.00

W-5 8" gate valves and valve box 4 Each $1,800.00 $7,200.00 50% $3,600.00 50% $3,600.00

W-6 10" gate valves and valve box 1 Each $2,800.00 $2,800.00 50% $1,400.00 50% $1,400.00

W-7 Valve box adjustment (paved areas only) 6 Each $900.00 $5,400.00 50% $2,700.00 50% $2,700.00

W-8 Fire hydrant 1 Each $3,800.00 $3,800.00 50% $1,900.00 50% $1,900.00

W-9 Fittings 760 Lbs. $6.00 $4,560.00 50% $2,280.00 50% $2,280.00

W-10 Domestic water taps by contractor 5 Each $1,000.00 $5,000.00 50% $2,500.00 50% $2,500.00

W-11 Corporation stop for testing/tapping 3 Each $550.00 $1,650.00 50% $825.00 50% $825.00

$83,613.00 $41,806.50 $41,806.50

COL COL 1585 Dev. 1585 Dev.
Item 

No. Item Description Quantity / Units Unit Cost Total Item Cost
Cost Share 

Percentage 

Total Item 

Cost

Cost Share 

Percentage 

Total Item 

Cost

SANITARY SEWER

S-1 8" Sewer at 4'-6' cut 450 L.F. $28.50 $12,825.00 50% $6,412.50 50% $6,412.50

S-2 8" Sewer at 6'-8' cut 325 L.F. $31.50 $10,237.50 50% $5,118.75 50% $5,118.75

S-3 10" Sewer at 6'-8' cut 194 L.F. $36.00 $6,984.00 50% $3,492.00 50% $3,492.00

S-4 10" Sewer at 8'-10' cut 390 L.F. $39.00 $15,210.00 50% $7,605.00 50% $7,605.00

S-5 Standard Manhole 48" I.D. 5 EACH $5,500.00 $27,500.00 50% $13,750.00 50% $13,750.00

S-6 Extra Vertical Feet (std. 48" mh.) 13 E.V.F. $180.00 $2,340.00 50% $1,170.00 50% $1,170.00

S-7 8" x 4" Service Tee w/plug 5 EACH $250.00 $1,250.00 50% $625.00 50% $625.00

S-8 4" Service/riser Pipe 65 L.F. $18.00 $1,170.00 50% $585.00 50% $585.00

S-9 10" Plug 1 EACH $400.00 $400.00 50% $200.00 50% $200.00

S-10 Trench Protection (4'-10') 1,359 L.F. $2.50 $3,397.50 50% $1,698.75 50% $1,698.75

S-11 Manhole Adjustment (paved areas only) 5 Each $1,000.00 $5,000.00 50% $2,500.00 50% $2,500.00

$86,314.00 0% $43,157.00 0% $43,157.00

COL COL 1585 Dev. 1585 Dev.

Item 

No.
Item Description Quantity / Units Unit Cost Total Item Cost

Cost Share 

Percentage 

Total Item 

Cost

Cost Share 

Percentage 

Total Item 

Cost

PAVING

P-1 HMAC Type "C" 2" and caliche base 3,472 S.Y. $30.00 $104,160.00 50% $52,080.00 50% $52,080.00

P-2 24" curb and gutter 1,485 L.F. $20.00 $29,700.00 50% $14,850.00 50% $14,850.00

P-3 6" conc.fillets and valley gutters 93 S.Y. $65.00 $6,045.00 50% $3,022.50 50% $3,022.50

P-4 6" thick concrete alley returns 26 S.Y. $65.00 $1,690.00 50% $845.00 50% $845.00

P-5 Concrete alley paving 637 S.Y. $65.00 $41,405.00 50% $20,702.50 50% $20,702.50

P-6 Lump Sum lot cuts and fills 1 L.S. $30,000.00 $30,000.00 50% $15,000.00 50% $15,000.00

P-7 Curb & Gutter Removal 86 L.F. $8.00 $688.00 50% $344.00 50% $344.00

P-8 Rip-rap Removal 121 S.Y. $15.00 $1,815.00 50% $907.50 50% $907.50

P-9 Dry Stone rip-rap 220 S.Y. $65.00 $14,300.00 50% $7,150.00 50% $7,150.00

$229,803.00 $114,901.50 $114,901.50

ESTIMATED COST OF CONSTRUCTION $399,730.00 $199,865.00 $199,865.00

MUNICIPAL FEES

City of Lubbock plan review and construction inspection fees $2,320.00 50% $1,160.00 50% $1,160.00

ENGINEERING AND RELATED SERVICES $0.00 $0.00

Topographic survey for in-house use only $4,000.00 50% $2,000.00 50% $2,000.00

Engineering design, City submittals, construction documents, and record documentation $32,000.00 50% $16,000.00 50% $16,000.00

Construction staking as required by Code $16,000.00 50% $8,000.00 50% $8,000.00

MISCELLANEOUS $0.00 $0.00

10% CONTINGENCY $50,600.00 50% $25,300.00 50% $25,300.00

TOTAL

CITY OF LUBBOCK COST SHARE TOTAL $252,325.00

1585 DEVELOPMENT INC. COST SHARE TOTAL $252,325.00

TOTAL PROJECT COST $504,650.00

December 13, 2021
City of Lubbock/1585 Development, Inc.

PRELIMINARY OPINION OF PROBABLE COSTS
Viridian Tract F
Shared Cost Estimate

Copyright Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc.

170156
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 'B'



Resolution No. 2021- R0351

Item No. 7. 44

September 14, 2021

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to accept for and
on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Special Warranty Deed associated with certain property
in Lubbock County, Texas, owned by Rocket Partners I, LLC, and all related documents. 
Said Special Warranty Deed is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully
set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council; and

THAT the City Council finds it to be in the best interest of the citizens of the City of
Lubbock in order to expedite the performance of city business, to delegate authority to
execute any necessary or related documents associated with this conveyance to the City
Manager of the City of Lubbock or his designee. 

Passed by the City Council on
September 14, 2021

L'-' j - 
DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

ATTEST: 

Reb ca Garza, City Secre

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ryan RGoke, Assistant City Attorney

RES. Special Warranty Deed Rocket Partners

9. 2. 21



Resolution No. 2021- R0351
2021051401 S PGS DEED

1$ - 
bw III ! go, AmM P i U PAIRLMA, h 11111

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY

REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM ANY
INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS
FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR
YOUR DRIVER' S LICENSE NUMBER. 

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

This Special Warranty Deed ( this " Deed") is executed and delivered effective as of the .!,,< I day
of August, 2021 ( the " Effective Date") by Rocket Partners I, LLC, a Texas limited liability company

Grantor'), whose address is P. O. Box 64664, Lubbock, Texas 79464, for the benefit of the CITY OF
LUBBOCK (" Grantee"), whose address is 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas 79401. 

In consideration of Ten Dollars ($ 10. 00) and other good and valuable consideration paid to Grantor, 
Grantor does hereby GRANT, SELL, AND CONVEY unto Grantee the surface estate of that certain real
property situated in Lubbock County, Texas and described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part
hereof for all purposes, together with all improvements and fixtures located thereon, if any ( collectively, 
the " Pro a ") and, without warranty, all right, title and interest of Grantor, if any, in and to the rights, 
privileges, hereditaments, and appurtenances pertaining to the Property. 

This conveyance is made and accepted subject to current real property taxes and all unpaid non - 
delinquent general and special taxes, bonds and assessments; all zoning ordinances and regulations and any
other laws, ordinances or governmental regulations now or hereinafter applicable to and enforceable against
the Property; and matters visible on the ground or that would be shown on a current survey of the Property; 
and any and all conditions and restrictions, outstanding mineral reservations and easements of record, if
any, relating to the Property, to the extent, and only to the extent, that the same may be in full force and
effect and affect the Property ( the foregoing collectively, the " Permitted Exceptions'). 

Grantor, for Grantor and Grantor' s successors and assigns, hereby reserves and does not convey to
Grantee all the oil, gas and other minerals in and under and that may be produced from the Property which
have not been heretofore granted to third parties or reserved by predecessors in title ( the " Mineral

Reservation"). 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property unto Grantee, Grantee' s heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors, and assigns, and Grantor does hereby bind Grantor and Grantor' s successors and assigns to
WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND, all and singular, the Property unto Grantee, Grantee' s heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming, or
to claim the same, or any part thereof, by, through or under Grantor, but not otherwise, subject, however, 
to the Permitted Exceptions and the Mineral Reservation. 

Ad valorem taxes for the current year having been prorated between the parties hereto, Grantee
hereby assumes liability for the payment thereof for the current year and for subsequent years, and for any
rollback taxes for prior years. 

Grantor hereby conveys the Property to Grantee, and by its acceptance hereof Grantee hereby
accepts the Property, in its present condition " AS IS", " WHERE IS", and " WITH ALL FAULTS" and
without any representation or warranty, express or implied ( except for the warranty of title above). Grantor

Special Warranty Deed - Page 1
20033208v. 1



hereby specifically disclaims any representations, warranties, promises, covenants, agreements or

guaranties of any kind or character whatsoever, whether express or implied, oral, written, past, present, or
future, of, as to, concerning, or with respect to ( i) the value, nature, quality, or physical or other condition
of the Property, including, without limitation, the water, soil, and geology, and/ or the environmental
condition of the Property, including hazardous materials; ( ii) the income to be derived from the Property; 
iii) the water, soil, and geology, the suitability thereof and/ or of the Property for any and all activities and

uses which Grantee may elect to conduct; ( iv) the compliance of or by the Property or its operations with
any applicable laws or other laws, rules, ordinances, or regulations of any applicable governmental
authority; ( v) the habitability, merchantability, marketability, suitability, profitability, developability, or
fitness for a particular purpose of the Property; ( vi) the manner or quality of the construction or materials, 
if any, incorporated into the Property; ( vii) the manner, quality or state of repair of the Property. By its
acceptance hereof, Grantee, on its own behalf and on behalf of anyone claiming by, through or under
Grantee, to the maximum extent permitted by applicable laws, irrevocably and unconditionally WAIVES, 
RELEASES, DISCHARGES, AND FOREVER ACQUITS Grantor from any and all claims of any
nature whatsoever known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, fixed or contingent, which Grantee may
now or hereafter have, own, hold or claim to have, own or hold, or at any time heretofore may have had, 
owned, held, or claimed to have, own or hold, against Grantor, relating to the Property, including, without
limitation, the physical condition of the Property, the entitlements for the Property, the environmental
condition of the Property, any hazardous materials that may be on or within the Property and any other
conditions existing, circumstances or events occurring on, in, about or near the Property whether occurring
before, after or on the date hereof. 

SIGNATURE PAGE IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWS] 

Special Warranty Deed - Page 2
20033208v. 1



EXECUTED effective as of the Effective Date. 

GRANTOR: 

Rocket Partners I, LLC, 

a Texa imi d liability company

By:! 
Name: 

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK

BEFORE ME, the undersigned, being a Notary Public in and for the State of Texas, on this day
personally appeared Thomas K. Payne, known to me, or proved to me to be the person whose name is
subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the instrument as the act
of Rocket Partners I, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, and that he executed the instrument on behalf
of the limited liability company for the purposes and consideration expressed, and in the capacity
hereinabove stated. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this 27 day of August, 2021. 

CELIA WEBB —— LdX442i da'a- 
N0WyP^ qW8dTq= Notary Public, State of Texas

NoWyOi 1241WR

My Cowleebn WO00-01. 2071

Special Warranty Deed - Signature Page
20033208v. 1



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

Special Warranty Deed Exhibit A
20033208v. 1



I
@I> 

I

NOTPLATTED

t+ 

R -

A(

UIrIWl101fI., 

it

rmk,

vow/ 

4II

II

TRACT
A" 

Pa/
LT

DEPARTMENT
SOUTH

SUBSTATIM
ADD/
TON

rn>
r

eneawarr/ 

8I
i

41st

STREET
sox .-

ft - 
f

ecouenownrari

NOT

PLATTED
eras: 
sao¢

rASTraoae
ue

femtAatornsc: 

2.

401

Acrc
Tract

1013904R

N66'
02'
16"

W

473.
70' 

naaatreeauaorr
faoa+
e

maarr

S43"
02'
16"
E

14.

14' 

8irlI

21.

21' S465144

PERIMETER
SURVEY
OF
A
2.

401

ACRE
TRACT

OF

LAND

LOCATED
IN

SECTION
1

It

BLOCK
AK

LUBBOCK
COUNTY, 
TEXAS

0z

METES
AND

ROUNDS

DESCRRTION
ofa
2.

401

sax

tea

oflood
lanced
in

Seaton
1. 

Block
Alf, 

Lubbock

County. 
Tour, 

bang
a

portion
often
60.

015
sax

tract
of

had
de,

abd

tmdaCaa
ay

Cidt
File

Number

20170213". 
OBMW
Publw

Records
efL
be
k

County. 
Taus, 
raid

2A01
sac

ua
bolos

6othrde
Td
n

full—. 

BEGINNING
at

a

I/

r

nuts
sad

with
tap

marked •
HUGO
REED
A

ASSOC." 
m
in

the

Easton
botmdny
ofa
20

foe

alk3
as

receded
under

County
Clerk
File
No

ba(

CCFN)

202000gg34, 
COMM! 
Public

Rncadr

ofLabbeck
County. 

Taus(

OPRLCRfartheomat
Sm&

erly

Sourlhweate

afthistractwhicbb=
N.

01'

46W

Eadinecoof

1235.
49

feet
and
S.

U-

0716' 
E. 

a

dinmae
of4gi.
00

fm
fi

m

the

Son&— 

cornaofSectim
1. 

Block
AK, 

Lubbock
County, 

Tam: 

THENCE
N. 

43"

OrW
W., 

along
the

Ramona
botmdwy
of

and
70

feet

alley, 
a

dim

me
of
14.

17

fa
m
a

Ifr
ism
rod

wiN
cap

mmkd •
HUGO
REED
A

ASSOC.* 
m

fm
the

moat

Westerly

Sonhwenearnerofthu
tram
fiam

whence
a

I/

2- 

iron
rod

with
cap

rked'

HUGO
REED
A

ASSOC.' 
fad

atx

u

the

Eastdomra

ySundo

nofsaldTna

A' 

been

N. 
IrUl6' 

W. 
a

dnueoe

o1`
20.

00
fa; 

THENCE

N. 
01.

4600' 

E., 
mntiming

along
the

Fiatcm

bemdny
of- 
20

foe

alimnm
ley, 

a

dof200.
00

Wu

Il•
itm

cud

Mf

npoarkd-
HUGO

REED

A
ASSOC.-
ref
the

Nerne
o
anh— 
fthir

tract, 
gum

whom

1'
I

nets

rod

with

np

markd•
HUGO

REED& 
ASSOC.' 

found
at
the

men
E
swrlyNeNhest

avoaofTra'

A', 
Pohce

Depoo
mew
South

Subata6m
Addition, 
accenting
to

map. 
plat

adlor
di

a

w

doed
dwmfumd
d

under

CCFN

202000SS33, 
OPRLCf, 

been

N

gr=
16' 
W. 
a

dicta

of

20.
o0

fmi

ad
N
01.

4600' 

E
a

dntanee

of
200
on

fee; 
THENCE

S. 
9g'

0r16• E
a

duume

of4S9A2
fa
m

a
1/
2• 
rrm

and

mth

aponaked'

Him
REED

A

ASSOC.• 
m
for
the

moss
Nathaly

Narthex
art-

cfthn

era: 
THENCE
S. 

43rorl6• 
E

a
daame

d
I4.
14

feet
m
a

In• 

Iron
rod
wall

op

m
rk

d'
HUGO

REED

A
ASSOC' 

m
for
fe

mat
Easterly

Nanhmu
mmaofd. 

tree: 

THENCE
S. 
01.
574r• 

W
adutame

of

195.
00

fame11' 
Iron

sad
m1h

cap
marYed'
HUGO

REED
A

ASSOC• 
m
fen
the

rota

Eutaly
Sout6esu

meoerdthis

tram

THENCE
S. 

46.
5T44' 

W. 
a

distance

of
2111
fa

toa
If.- 

mn
td

mtb
cap

mad
od'

HUGO
REM

A
ASSOC' 

actto, 
the
ant

gauntly

Seefcaa_ 
flki, 

Ira; 

THENCE
N. 
99'

02'

16' 
W. 

a

distance
ef473.

70
fm

u
the
Pam

ofBegumng
Contains

Im39e

xleate

fer

Beeinp
am
mla
u

Odd
Notch, 

Texts

Caadmee

Syatan

of
1"

0. 
Nonh.
Crntral
Zone, 

2011(

epoeh

2010A1, 
Daanea—
Surf .

3S

S—

y
Poe. 
TITLE
COMMITMENT

No

abstract

of

ntle
err

tale
cmlmtwmt

wen
provided

to

this
surnym. 

accord
racmh

done

by
this
surveyor
was .
do

Wade

only
for

theparpme
of

determining
the

boundary
of

this
propcny

and
rc

of

the
adjoining

pascals. 

Record

docusecros

other
dm

those

shown
on
this

survey
may
exam

and

cne11n16a
this

property. 
CERTIFICATION

TO: 
City

of

Lubbock
Watco

Title, 
71— 

Paym, 
Reelect
Pumas
L

LLC
1. 
RobM
A. 

Christopher. 

Texts

Registetd
Prof

tonal
Lad

Survc)
w
No. 
5167, 
do

hereby

cmify

that
this

survey
was

rode

on

the
ground

A
elcummineum

as

In
whether

this
property

lie

special
within

a
Rod

haard
wen
net

made

fen

dusts—
y

Survcyod
m

gmmd: 
rum

29.
2021

OF
A
p'$

T6q''

9,

p

P

A.
CIM6TOPIEIt5157

aFeStp+ 

1Dby 

RobertAC6nstopher
RegrgmW

Profexoml
Lad

Surveyor
No. 
5167
Licemed

State
Lad

Stmxya

Sure
ofT— 
SCALE: 

1""

50' 
HEAVYLINES

INDICATE

PLAT

LIMITS
CCFN-

COUNTY
CLERK
FILE

NUMBER

CONTROL
MONUMENTS
AS

FOUND

IN

SHOWN
6 - 

SET. "
x

CUT

ON

CONCRETE
o - 

SET
1&' 

IRON

ROD

w/
CAP

MARKED "
HLIGO
REED

a

ASSOC." 
FO. 
I/
2" 

IRON

ROD /
CAP

MARKED "

K= 
REED

6

ASSOC." 
20211466/

SC(
D.

G.) 



FILED AND RECORDED
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS

t

cam• 

Kelly Pinion County Clark
Lubbock County TEXyS

10/ 05/ 2021 03: 64 PM
FEE: 38. 00

2021 g1401



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

-$                              

Agenda Item  January 25, 2022

Rocket Partners Developer Participation Agreement 264,941                    

Encumbered/Expended To Date 264,941                    

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation

Construction 7,380,059                 

Remaining Appropriation 7,380,059                 

Total Appropriation 7,645,000$               

City of Lubbock

92711

Fire Station 20

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

January 25, 2022



Project Name Fire Station 20 Project Number 92711

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Fire Administration

 Rob Keinast

New Facility

Approved

Construction of a multi-company fire station that will serve south Lubbock area residents.  The fire station will be located east of the 

LPD substation at 141st and Indiana.  The fire station was approved through Certificate of Obligation Bonds in 2021.

Project Justification

Growth and development require the construction of a fire station in the area to allow the current service level of fire protection 

services throughout Lubbock.

Project History

$7,645,000 was appropriated in FY 2020-21, Budget Amendment No. 35, Ord. No. 2020-O0077, July 13, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  7,645,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  7,645,000 

Total Project Appropriation  7,645,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  7,645,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2021 Tax Supported Revenue 

CO's

 7,645,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  7,645,000 

Total Funding Sources  7,645,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  7,645,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



 AI# 10305 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 36. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0010, for Zone Case
2538-X, a request of Tyson Rowin for Derek Cooper and Lee Mazurek, for a zone change from Family
Apartment District (A-1) to Local Retail District (C-2) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility at
6801 4th Street, located south of 4th Street and east of Quincy Avenue on 2.139 acres of unplatted land
out of Block JS, Section 10, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
On January 11, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.
On December 14, 2021, the City Council held a public hearing and postponed the first reading of the
ordinance to January 11, 2022.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto.  As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request.  The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on December 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a vote
of 6-1-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Zone Case 2538-X Ordinance 
Zone Case 2538-X - Report 
Zone Case 2538-X- Documentation 













Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2538-X 
City Council Meeting December 14, 2021 

Applicant Tyson Rowin 

Property Owner  Derek Cooper and Lee Mazurek 

Council District  6 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 27, 1985: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 8660 and zone Transition (T).
• October 10, 1985, Zone Case 2538: This property was rezoned from Transition (T) to Single-Family District 

(R-1) through Ordinance No. 8827.
• January 26, 2021, Zone Case 2538-R: This property was rezoned from Single-Family District (R-1) to 

Family Apartment District (A-1) through Ordinance No. 2021-O0005.
• December 2, 2021: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of Zone Case 2538-X by 

a vote of 6-1-0. 

Notification Summary 

• Notifications Sent: 26
• Received In Favor: 1
• Received In Opposition: 1

Site Conditions and History 
The property was annexed in 1985 and has remained vacant and unsubdivided. 

Adjacent Property Development 
Property to the east, south, and west is zoned Single-Family District (R-1) and is developed with single family 
residences, an electric utility substation, and vacant unsubdivided land. Property to the north is zoned Two-
Family District (R-2) and consists of subdivided vacant land. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located at 6801 4th Street, located south of 4th street and east of Quincy Avenue on 2.139 
acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 10. The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from A-1 
to C-2 Specific Use for a Storage Facility. 

Current zoning: 

Requested zoning: 

Family Apartment District (A-1) 

Local Retail District (C-2) with a Specific Use for a Storage Facility 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current A-1 is “to promote medium-density, multiple-occupancy development. The regulations 
are designed to promote family-oriented development which provides the occupants with the proper 
environmental quality, and compatibility with lower-density development. The purpose of this district is not to 
isolate multi-family units, but to encourage compatible residential land uses through effective planning and 
urban design.” 



Page 2 of 2 

The intent of the Specific Use District is “to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various districts. 
This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided the intent, 
principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location is located south of 4th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the 
Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of 
local and regional traffic.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Residential Low Density”. The 
proposed zone change to C-2 Specific Use is not in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan or Future Land Use 
Map, however, a storage facility would not generate an increase in traffic volume in the area. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is not in conformance with the zoning ordinance but is appropriate adjacent to the 
existing development due to the low density use a storage facility would provide. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses but may require additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the C-2 zoning district due to this property being unplatted. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Aerial Map
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and supporting documents

Staff Contacts 
Aslyn Henry Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2021 806-775-2109
ahenry@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2538-X 

 

Allowable Uses:   Local Retail District (C-2) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Upland Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

4th Street 
Principal Arterial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, four-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

Case 2538-X: Tyson Rowin for Derek Cooper and Lee Mazurek 

Request for a zone change from Family Apartment District (A-1) to Local Retail District (C-2) with a Specific 

Use for a Self-Storage Facility, at: 

 6801 4th Street, located south of 4th street and east of Quincy Avenue on 2.139 acres 

of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 10. 

PLANNER ASLYN HENRY stated there were twenty-six notifications sent out. There has been one (1) returned in 

favor and one (1) returned in opposition. The one returned in opposition is concerned that if the zone change 

passes that it will affect the value of her property. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and 

maps and discussed the surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

BOARDMEMBER JAMES BELL stated they are requesting C-2 with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility, but 

their site plan and elevations make it appear it is an office/warehouse, since they have 1,500 square foot building 

spaces with large overhead doors. 

PLANNING AND ZONING MANAGER KRISTEN SAGER stated that she had a conversation with the applicant this 

afternoon and the units will be used for storage only. They will not be used as an office/warehouse, shop rental, 

etc.   

BOARDMEMBER JAMES BELL stated he has not seen a storage facility with a fourteen-foot door and a personal 

entrance. If approved, how will it be regulated to make sure it is not being used as an office warehouse? 

PLANNING AND ZONING MANAGER KRISTEN SAGER stated the design of the building cannot be regulated. It can 

be regulated by the code setbacks and use. If it is being used for any other use other than a storage facility, the 

Codes Department can issue citations. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523


Zone Case 2538-X 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

APPLICANT TYSON ROWIN 3914 126th Street and LEE MAZUREK 4505 7th Street, stated they are able to answer 

any questions. Mr. James Bell asked the same question to the applicants about the office/warehouse. Mr. Rowin 

stated they will be screening tenants and will not allow for businesses to be run out of the facility. The building is 

to be located next to an electric substation, which they feel is a good use of the land. They find that most of the 

people that will be renting they units have boats and RVs to store. The facility will be a higher end storage unit. 

They are aware that if the facility is used for something other then what is requested, then they are liable. 

No one spoke in favor or opposition to the request 

In matter of Zone Case 2538-X a motion was made by ABEL HERANDEZ and seconded by SUSAN TOMLINSON to 

approve the request as presented and the Commission members voted 6 (in favor) to 1 (in opposition)  to approve 

the motion.  Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

JAMES BELL case the vote in opposition. 

 













2538-X

Subject Property. View East.

Property located west of Subject property. View North.

















 AI# 10381 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 1. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 2016-C, a request of T & D
Real Estate and Rentals, LLC, for a zone change from Family Apartment District (A-1) to Garden Office
District (GO) at 1306 Avenue R, located west of Avenue R and south of 13th Street, Overton Addition,
Block 13, the north 10 feet of Lot 4 and Lot 3, less the west 67.5 feet of the north 10 feet, and consider
an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on January 6, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zoning Case 2016-C Ordinance 
Zone Case 2016-C Staff Report 
Zone Case 2016-C Documentation 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2016-C 
City Council Meeting January 25, 2022 

Applicant T & D Real Estate and Rentals, LLC 

Property Owner  T & D Real Estate and Rentals, LLC 

Council District  1 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends APPROVAL of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• April 22, 1909: The property was included in the initial formation of the City of Lubbock.
• March 13, 1941: The property was zoned Multifamily District (R-3) through Ordinance No. 661.
• October 9, 1975: Ordinance No. 7153; Zone Case 2016. This property was rezoned from Multifamily District 

(R-3) to Family Apartment District (A-1).
• January 6, 2022: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone change from 

Family Apartment District (A-1) to Garden Office District (GO) by a vote of 8-0-0. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 18
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property is currently developed with a home built in 1928. 

Adjacent Property Development  
Properties to the north are developed with offices and zoned Garden Office (GO). To the east and west are 
apartments zoned A-1 and High-Density Apartment District (A-2), and to the south is a parking lot zoned A-1. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 1306 Avenue R, located west of Avenue R and south of 13th Street. The 
applicant requests a zone change from Family Apartment District (A-1) to Garden Office District (GO) on a 
property described as Overton Addition, Block 13, the north 10 feet of Lot 4 and Lot 3, less the west 67.5 feet of 
the north 10 feet. 

Current zoning: Family Apartment District (A-1) 

Requested zoning: Garden Office District (GO) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current A-1 zoning is, “… to promote medium-density, multiple-occupancy development. The 
regulations are designed to promote family-oriented development which provides the occupants with the proper 
environmental quality, and compatibility with lower-density development. The purpose of this district is not to 
isolate multi-family units, but to encourage compatible residential land uses through effective planning and 
urban design.” 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
The intent of the current GO zoning is, “… to provide for quality garden office development through proper 
planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 
compatibility between offices and adjacent uses and promote a stable environment between residential and 
commercial uses.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed zone change location is along Avenue R, which is designated as a Local Street by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local Streets provide access to smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as 
neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts.” 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area, as there is already Garden Office District 
(GO) zoning directly adjacent to the subject property. Garden Office uses are intended to be compatible with 
residential zoning districts.  
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for Medium Density Residential land uses. This zone 
change would not bring the property into conformance with the Future Land Use Plan; however, it is important 
to note that Garden Office zoning exists directly adjacent to the subject property. Additionally, “office 
development is mostly compatible with any adjacent residential area” (2040 Comprehensive Plan p. 61). The 
2040 Comprehensive Plan states that more mixed use development is a goal for the future (2040 Comprehensive 
Plan p. 37). Because of these reasons, the requested zone change is in moderate conformance. 
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The Code of Ordinances states that Garden Office is appropriate adjacent residential and requires that “a six (6) 
foot solid screening fence of wood or masonry construction shall be installed and permanently maintained on the 
development lot along the adjacent property line” (Sec. 40.03.1032(d)). As long as screening requirements are 
met, the proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate in this location.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and is appropriate in this location. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information  
B. Thoroughfare Map 
C. Notification Map       
D. Aerial Map 
E.  Zoning Map 
F.  Future Land Use Map 
G.  Photos 
H. Application and supporting documentation 
I.  Notification Replies 

 
Staff Contacts 
Bailey Shillings    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-3147    806-775-2109 
bshillings@mylubbock.us  ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:bshillings@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2016-C 

 

Allowable Uses:    Garden Office (GO)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Avenue R.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Avenue R 
Local Street, Completed 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.1 Case 2016-C: T & D Real Estate and Rentals, LLC  

 

Request for a zone change from Family Apartment District (A-1) to Garden Office District (GO), 

at:  

 1306 Avenue R, located west of Avenue R and south of 13th Street, Overton Addition, 

Block 13, the north 10 feet of Lot 4 and Lot 3, less the west 67.5 feet of the north 10 

feet. 

 

PLANNER BAILEY SHILLINGS stated there were eighteen (18) notifications sent out with zero returned. Staff 

shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding property. The 

request is in moderate conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map. The applicant 

has been told they will need to provide a 6-foot fence between their property and residential property in the area. 

Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT TAMELA PITTMAN 1306 Avenue R stated they are remodeling the inside of the property to use it for 

an office and will possibly rent out some of the space to another tenant, since they do not need the entire space. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In matter of Zone Case 2016-C a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by ABEL HERNANDEZ to approve 

the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. Item will 

be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001191










2016-C 

 

View North 

 

  

View East 

View South 

 

View West, Subject Property 





 AI# 10386 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 2. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 3455, a request of Hugo
Reed and Associates, Inc. for Red Canyon Development, LLC, for a Specific Use for a commercial
athletic field, park, stadium, or arena on property zoned Transition (T), generally located south of 146th
Street and west of Quaker Avenue on 133.1 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6, and
consider an ordinance. 

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on January 6, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 3455 Ordinance 
Zone Case 3455 Staff Report 
Zone Case 3455 Documentation 















Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3455 
City Council Meeting January 25, 2022 

Applicant 

Property Owner  

Council District  

Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. Red 

Canyon Development, LLC 

4 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• April 28, 2016: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 2016-O0054 and zoned Transition (T).
• January 6, 2022, Zone Case 3455: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended Approval for a

Specific Use for a commercial athletic field, park, stadium, or arena, by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 3
• Received In Favor: 1
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The property was annexed in 2016 and has remained vacant and unsubdivided. 

Adjacent Property Development 
This property is surrounded by Transition zoning on all sides, with additional property to the north zoned Single-
Family District (R-1) and General Retail District (C-3), and Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) and C-3 zoning 
to the east; all of which consist of vacant and unsubdivided land. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is generally located south of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue on 133.1 acres of 
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6. The applicant is requesting a Specific Use for a commercial athletic 
field, park, stadium, or arena. 

Current zoning: Transition (T) 

Requested zoning: Specific Use for a commercial athletic field, park, stadium, or arena 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current T zoning is “to protect existing and future development in newly annexed territory 
until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

The intent of the Specific Use District is “to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various districts. 
This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided the intent, 
principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used.” 



Page 2 of 2 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located south of 146th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial (Modified) and west of 
Quaker Avenue, which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are 
continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of local and regional traffic.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed Specific Use is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing or future development. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed Specific Use request is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the 
proposed location. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses but may require additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of the proposed Specific Uses, due to this property being unplatted. 

Attachments 
A. 
B. 
C. 
D. 
E. 
F. 
G. 
H. 

Case Information 
Thoroughfare Plan Map 
Notification Map 
Aerial Map 
Zoning Map 
Photos 
Application and Supporting Documentation 
Notification Responses 

Staff Contacts 
Aslyn Henry 
Planner  
Planning Department 
806-775-2021 
ahenry@mylubbock.us

Kristen Sager 
Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department 
806-775-2109
ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 3455 

Allowable Uses: 

Transportation: 

Transition District  

Specific Use 

The proposed development has points of access from 146th Street and Quaker Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

146th Street 
Principal Arterial 

(Modified) 

R.O.W. 110 feet, four-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

Quaker Avenue 
Principal Arterial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, four-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.4 Case 3455: Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Red Canyon Development, LLC 

Request for a Specific Use for a commercial athletic field, park, stadium, or arena on property 

zoned Transition (T) at:  

 Generally located south of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue on 133.1 acres of

unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6.

PLANNER ASYLN HENRY stated there were three (3) notifications sent out and one (1) returned in favor. Staff 

shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding property. Staff 

recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT TERRY HOLEMAN, Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc., 1601 Avenue N, stated he is working with a 

developer that wants to build a high-class golf course at this location. Mr. Holeman stated the clubhouse for the 

course would be off 155th Street and the course would be similar to the Rawls Golf Course. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In matter of Zone Case 3455 a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE and seconded by JAMES BELL to approve the 

request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. Item will be 

forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001059
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523










3455

View North. View East.

View South. View West.







 AI# 10387 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 3. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 3456, a request of Hugo
Reed and Associates, Inc. for 146th and Quaker, LLC, for a zone change from Transition District (T) to
General Retail District (C-3), generally located west of Quaker Avenue and south of 146th Street, on
8.00 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6, and consider an ordinance. 

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on January 6, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 3456 Ordinance 
Zone Case 3456 Staff Report 
Zone Case 3456 Documentation 











Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3456 
City Council Meeting January 25, 2022 

Applicant 

Property Owner  

Council District  

Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. 

146th and Quaker LLC 

4

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• April 28, 2016: This property was annexed and zoned Transition District (T) through Ordinance No. 2016-

O0054
• January 6, 2022: Zone Case 3456 The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone

change from T to General Retail District (C-3) by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary  

• Notifications Sent: 3
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
This property was annexed in 2016 and has remained vacant and unsubdivided. 

Adjacent Property Development  
The surrounding properties are vacant. To the north and east is property zoned General Retail District (C-3) and 
Restricted Local Retail (C-2A) and to the south and west is property zoned Transition District. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is generally located west of Quaker Avenue and south of 146th Street, on 8.00 acres of 
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6. The applicant is requesting a zone change from Transition District (T) 
to General Retail District (C-3) 

Current zoning: Transition District (T) 

Requested zoning: General Retail District (C-3) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current T zoning is “…to protect existing and future development in newly annexed territory 
until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

The intent of the proposed C-3 zoning is “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 
centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 
as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 
adjacent residential areas should be considered.” 



Page 2 of 2 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  
The location is along Quaker Avenue and 146th Street. 146th Street is designated a Principal Arterial as is Quaker 
Avenue. Principal Arterials are major thoroughfares which are designed to carry large quantities of traffic at 
relatively high speeds. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and would not change the character of the 
existing development.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for both “Commercial” and “Low-Density Residential” land uses. 
The requested C-3 zoning would be appropriate at this corner because this intersection is designated a 
Commercial/Retail Node. Though the Future Land Use map designation for Commercial use does not completely 
encompass the whole requested area, it is understood that commercial/retail nodes are for these major 
intersections which is what this request entails (Comprehensive Plan 2040 Pg. 60). Furthermore, this request 
does not extend significantly away from the intersection to any location that could be described as midblock. 
Therefore, this request is in complete compliance with the Comprehensive Plan principles and the Future Land 
Use map. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
commercial uses that are already established as there is existing C-3 zoning on the other three corners of this 
intersection adjacent to this request. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses, though additional infrastructure improvements may be necessary 
since the property has not been platted.  

Attachments 
A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  
C. Location Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E. Zoning Map 
F. Future Land Use Map 
G. Photos 
H. Application and supporting documentation 
I. Notification Responses 

Staff Contacts 
Shane Spencer   Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2103  806-775-2109 
sspencer@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3456 

 

Allowable Uses:   General Retail District (C-3)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 146th Street and Quaker 

Avenue.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

146th Street  
Principal Arterial, 

(Modified) 

R.O.W. 110 feet, four-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 7-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Quaker Avenue 
Principal Arterial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, four-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 7-lane, 
undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.5 Case 3456: Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for 146th and Quaker LLC  

Request for a zone change from Transition District (T) to General Retail District (C-3) at: 

 Generally located west of Quaker Avenue and south of 146th Street, on 8.00 acres of 

unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6. 

 

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER stated there were three (3) notifications sent out and zero returned. Staff shared the 

location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding property. This request is in 

complete conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map. Staff recommends approval 

of this request. 

APPLICANT TERRY HOLEMAN, Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc., 1601 Avenue N, stated this is a policy zone case; 

it only makes sense that property be zoned C-3 since is at a corner of two thoroughfares. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In matter of Zone Case 3456 a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by JORDAN WHEATLEY to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272










3456 

 

 

View to the north.  

 

  

View to the east. 

View to the south. Subject Property 

 

View to the west. 





 AI# 10388 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 4. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Consider a request for Zone Case 3457, a request of Delta Land
Surveying for Cotter Ranch, Ltd., for a zone change from Transition District (T) to Local Retail District
(C-2) at 6201 114th Street, located south of 114th Street and east of Milwaukee Avenue, on 1.21 acres of
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 20, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on January 6, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 3457 Ordinance 
Zone Case 3457 Staff Report 
Zone Case 3457 Documentation 













Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3457 
City Council Meeting  January 25, 2022 

 
Applicant Delta Land Surveying LLC 

 

Property Owner  Cotter Ranch Ltd. 

 

Council District   5 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Approval. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 January 14, 1999: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 10117 and zoned Transition (T). 

 January 6, 2022, Zone Case 3457: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 

change from T to Local Retail District (C-2) by a vote of 8-0-0. 
 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 9 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 1999 and has been developed with a commercial building.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The property to the north is zoned T and has been developed with a single-family house. The property to the 

east is zoned High-Density Apartment District (A-2) and is developed with a church. The property to the south is 

zoned T and is vacant. The property to the west is zoned T and has been developed with commercial buildings.  

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 6201 114th Street, and is located south of 114th Street and east of Milwaukee 

Avenue, on 1.21 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 20. The applicant requests to rezone the subject 

property from T to Local Retail District (C-2). 

 

Current zoning:  Transition (T)  

 

Requested zoning:  Local Retail District (C-2)  

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current T zoning is “…to protect existing and future development in newly annexed territory 

until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

 

The intent of the proposed C-2 zoning is “…to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 

serve one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the 

intersections of major thoroughfares.”  

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location is along 114th Street, which is designated as a Minor Arterial (Partial) by the 

Master Thoroughfare Plan. Arterial roads are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of 

local traffic and regional traffic (Comprehensive Plan, page 86).  

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The subject property was developed with a commercial building in 1984 and has been used for pecan shelling 

and retail, which are nonconforming. The proposed use will be for a restaurant and retail boutique. The proposed 

zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing development. 

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designate this area for “Low-Density Residential” land uses. 

Although C-2 zoning is not consistent with this designation, the Comprehensive Plan states that neighborhood 

commercial uses may be appropriate adjacent to residential and are suitable between nodes. Restaurants are 

included as an example of a use within a neighborhood commercial designation (Comprehensive Plan, page 60). 

Therefore, the request will be in moderate conformance with the Comprehensive Plan principles and Future Land 

Use Plan.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

uses that are already established. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses and may need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the C-2 zoning district, since the property has not been platted. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and supporting documents 

I. Notification Letters 

 

Staff Contacts 

Jacob Hawkins    Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2096    806-775-2109 

jhawkins@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:jhawkins@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3457 

 

Allowable Uses:    Local Retail District (C-2) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 114th Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

114th Street 
Minor Arterial, Partial 

R.O.W. 24 feet, two-lane, 
paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-
lane, divided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.6 Case 3457: Delta Land Surveying for Cotter Ranch Ltd.  

Request for a zone change from Transition District (T) to Local Retail District (C-2), at:  

 6201 114th Street, located south of 114th Street and east of Milwaukee Avenue, on 1.21 

acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 20.  

 

PLANNER JACOB HAWKINS stated there were nine (9) notifications sent out and zero returned. Staff shared the 

location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding property. Staff recommends 

approval of this request. 

APPLICANT LACEY COTTER 3520 East Woodrow Road, Slaton, TX, stated she wants to move her meat company 

onto this property and give local food vendors a chance to have a storefront with a small boutique retail area for 

local goods. 

In matter of Zone Case 3457 a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by   JAMES BELL to approve 

the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. Item will 

be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001256










 

 

Subject property. View to the south. 

 

  

View to the west. 

View to the north. 

 

View to the east. 

3457 

 





 AI# 10382 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 5. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 6): Consider a request for Zone Case 3308-E, a request of Delta
Land Surveying and Engineering for BBA Homes Land Company, LLC, for a zone change from
High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to General Retail District (C-3) and Two-Family District
(R-2), generally located south of 19th Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 13.7 acres of unplatted land
out of Block AK, Section 43, and consider an ordinance. 

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on January 6, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a vote of
6-2-0. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 3308-E Ordinance 
Zone Case 3308-E Staff Report 
Zone Case 3308-E Documentation 















Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3308-E 
City Council Meeting January 25, 2022 

Applicant  Delta land Surveying 

Property Owner   BBA Homes Land Company, LLC 

Council District  6 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• December 13, 1984: This property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through Ordinance No. 8688.
• October 10, 1985: Ordinance No. 8827; Zone Case 2538. This property was zoned from (T) to Single-

Family District (R-1).
• April 13, 2017: Ordinance No. 2017-O0038; Zone Case 3308. This property was zoned from (R-1) to (R-1)

Specific Use, Two-Family District (R-2) Specific Use, High-Density Apartment District (A-2) and General
Retail District (C-3).

• September 14, 2021: Ordinance No. 2021-O0121; Zone Case 3308-C. This property was zoned from (R-
1), (R-1) Specific Use, (C-3) and Industrial Park District (IDP) to (A-2).

• January 6, 2022: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone change from
High-Density Apartment (A-2) to General Retail District (C-3) and Two Family District (R-2), by a vote of
6-2-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 15
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1984 and has remained vacant since. 

Adjacent Property Development 
Property to the north was recently re-zoned to General Retail District (C-3) and is currently developed with some 
residential homes. Property to the east is zoned High-Density Apartment District (A-2) developed with 
apartments. Property to the south is zoned (A-2) also and remains vacant. The property to the west is zoned 
Commercial District (C-4) developed with commercial businesses.     

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 7201 19th Street and is located south of 19th Street and east of Upland 
Avenue, on 13.7 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 43. The applicant requests a zone change from 
A-2 to C-3 and R-2.

Current zoning: High-Density Apartment District (A-2)   

Requested zoning: General Retail District (C-3) and Two-Family District (R-2) 



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current A-2 zoning is, “…to promote high-density multi-family developments and compatible 
land uses in harmony with lower-density uses. The regulations are designed to provide the occupants with safe 
and convenient housing within an aesthetically pleasing environment in proper relationship to adjacent land 
uses.” 

The intent of the proposed C-3 zoning is, “… to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 
centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 
as state or federal highways.” 

The intent of the proposed R-2 zoning is, “…to promote stable, quality residential development of slightly 
increased densities and multiple occupancy. This district may include entire neighborhoods or when used in 
accordance with the intent of the comprehensive plan, may provide a “buffer” district between low-density and 
high-density or non-residential districts. 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along 19th Street and Upland Avenue, both of which are designated as 
Principal Arterials by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets provide connectivity across the 
transportation network and are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs to local traffic 
and regional traffic.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the future 
development. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Residential Low Density” and “Commercial” land uses. The 
proposed zone change to C-3 is consistent with this designation and conforms to the principles of the 
Comprehensive Plan, as this intersection is designated as a Commercial/Retail node.  Although the R-2 zoning 
would not conform, it would be in moderate conformance with the R-2 zoning to the south of the property and 
the A-2 zoning to the east.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate for this area. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the R-2 and C-3 zoning district.  

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Notification Map
D. Aerial Map
E. Zoning Map
F. Future Land Use Map
G. Photos
H. Application and supporting documentation
I. Notification Replies 

Staff Contacts 
Ashley Vasquez  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2107 806-775-2109
ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3308-E 

 

Allowable Uses:    General Retail District C-3, Two-Family District R-2 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 19th Street and Upland 

Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

19th Street, 
Principal Arterial, 

Partially Completed  

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

Upland Avenue, 
Principal Arterial 

(Modified), Partially 
Completed  

R.O.W. 70 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

5.2 Case 3308-E: Delta Land Surveying and Engineering for BBA Homes Land Company, LLC  

Request for a zone change from High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to General Retail District 

(C-3) and Two-Family District (R-2), at:  

 Generally located south of 19th Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 13.7 acres of 

unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 43. 

PLANNER ASHLEY VASQUEZ stated there were fifteen (15) notifications sent out and zero returned. Staff shared 

the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding property. The request is 

in moderate conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map.  Staff recommends 

approval of this request. 

APPLICANT was not present. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In matter of Zone Case 3308-E a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by TANNER NOBLE to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted 6 (in favor) to 2 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

RENEE CAGE and JAMES BELL cast the votes in opposition. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001107










3308-E 

 

Subject property. View to the south. 

 

  

View to the east. 

View to the north. 

 

View to the west. 





 AI# 10383 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 6. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 6): Consider a request for Zone Case 3358-B, a request of Hugo
Reed and Associates, Inc. for BBA Homes Land Company, LLC, for a Specific Use for Garden Homes
on property zoned Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) at 901 Inler Avenue, located east of
Inler Avenue and south of 4th Street, on 59.1 acres of unplatted land out of Block D6, Section 2, and
consider an ordinance. 

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on January 6, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Zone Case 3358-B Ordinance 
Zone Case 3358-B Staff Report 
Zone Case 3358-B Documentation 













Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3358-B 
City Council Meeting January 25, 2022 

Applicant Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. 

Property Owner  BBA Homes Land Company, LLC 

Council District  6 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 27, 1984: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 8660 and zoned Transition (T).
• October 10, 1985, Zone Case 2538: This property was rezoned from T to Single-Family District (R-1)

through Ordinance 8827.
• March 13, 2014, Zone Case 3223: A portion of this property was rezoned from R-1 to High Density

Apartment District (A-2) through Ordinance No. 2014-O0024.
• December 6, 2018, Zone Case 3358: The applicant withdrew their application for a zone change to R-1

with a Specific Use for a Mobile Home Subdivision.
• March 12, 2019, Zone Case 3358-A: This property was zoned from R-1 and A-2 to Single-Family District

with Reduced Setbacks (R-1A) through Ordinance 2019-O0028.
• January 6, 2022, Zone Case 3358-B: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended Approval of the

Specific Use for Garden Homes on property zoned R-1A by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 36
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1984 and is vacant. 

Adjacent Property Development  
The property to the east of the subject property is zoned R-1 and is vacant, and the properties to the north, 
west, and south are zoned R-1 and R-1A and have been developed with residences.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 901 Inler Avenue and is located east of Inler Avenue and south of 4th Street, 
on 59.1 acres of unplatted land out of Block D6, Section 2. The applicant is requesting a Specific Use for garden 
homes on property zoned R-1A. 

Current zoning: Single-Family District with Reduced Setbacks (R-1A) 

Requested zoning: Specific Use for Garden Homes  



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current R-1A zoning is “…to promote orderly and proper development of single-family 
residential units, to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious 
and harmful land uses, and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use zoning is “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 
districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided 
the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require 
specific site planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land 
use standards will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance as stated in Section 
1.”  

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is along Inler Avenue, which is designated as a Principal Arterial Partial by the Master Thoroughfare 
Plan. Principal Arterial roads are designed for a higher intensity of traffic (Comprehensive Plan, page 87).  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed Specific Use is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. The proposed use is for garden homes. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed Specific Use is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other uses 
that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and may need additional public improvements since the property 
is not platted. 

Attachments 
A. 
B. 
C. 
D. 
E. 
F. 
G. 
H. 

Case Information 
Thoroughfare Plan Map 
Notification Map 
Aerial Map 
Zoning Map 
Photos 
Application and supporting documents 
Notification Letters 

Staff Contacts 
Jacob Hawkins  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2096 806-775-2109
jhawkins@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:jhawkins@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3358-B 

 

Allowable Uses:    Specific Use for Garden Homes 

    Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Inler Avenue.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Inler Avenue 
Principal Arterial, Partial 

R.O.W. 24 feet, two-lane, 
paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, divided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.3 Case 3358-B: Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for BBA Homes Land Company LLC  

Request for a Specific Use for Garden Homes on property zoned Reduced Setback Single-Family 

District (R-1A), at:  

 901 Inler Avenue, located east of Inler Avenue and south of 4th Street, on 59.1 acres of 

unplatted land out of Block D6, Section 2. 

PLANNER JACOB HAWKINS stated there were thirty-six (36) notifications sent out and zero returned. Staff 

shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding property. Staff 

recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT TERRY HOLEMAN, Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc., 1601 Avenue N, stated this area is the remainder 

of the Hill Valley Development. The completed first phase is to the south. These will all be rear entry garden 

homes. 

No one spoke in favor of the request. 

OPPOSITION ISMAEL ZOROLA 8809 13th Street stated he has property nearby and would like to know what is 

going to be built. 

In matter of Zone Case 3358-B a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by ABEL HERNANDEZ to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001093








 

 

Subject property. View to the east. 

 

  

View to the south. 

View to the west. 

 

View to the north. 

3358-B 

 





 AI# 10392 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 7. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Municipal Services
Agreement, with Ganatra Holdings, LLC, and Ganatra Investments, LLC, for the requested annexation
of an area of land generally described as a 3.18 acre tract, located south of 106th Street and east of
University Avenue.

Item Summary
Ganatra Holdings, LLC and Ganatra Investments, LLC are the owners of the tract of land containing
approximately 3.18 acres in Section 10, Block E, Lubbock County, located south of 106th Street and east
of University Avenue. The owner is requesting consideration of voluntary annexation of the land into
the City limits.

The first step in the voluntary annexation process is to establish a service plan to which both the City and
the property owners agree. The proposed annexation agreement sets forth the plan for services between
the City of Lubbock and Ganatra Holdings, LLC and Ganatra Investments, LLC. If the agreement is
approved by the City Council, staff will schedule a public hearing to consider annexation of the property.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - 106th and University 
Signed Annexation Agreement - 106th and University 
Annexation Metes and Bounds 
Annexation Petition 
Annexation Map 106th and University 















































As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the 
Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, 
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative 
location of property boundaries.

CITY LIMITS (IN)

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500
Feet

±
Proposed Annexation Area (3.18 Ac) Located in

Section 10, Block E, Lubbock County

CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS 
(O

UT
)

CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS 
(IN

)
AV

E P

UN
IVE

RS
ITY

 A
VE

COOPER

MEADOW

COOPER

CREEK

SUNRISE

ESTATES

Proposed Annexation Area
in E-10 (3.18 Ac)

E2-
21 E-1

5
CITY LIMITS (OUT)

CITY OF 
LUBBOCK

98TH ST

114TH ST

FOX RIDGE

CR
 23

00

E2-
20 E-1

1
E-1

0

114TH ST

Digital Orthophotography - May 2021

COOPER

RIDGE

STONEBRIDGE

COMMUNITY

SUN COUNTRY

SUN

COUNTRY

NORTH

110TH ST

106TH ST

109TH ST

AVE U

102ND ST

AV
E U

108TH ST

AK
RO

N 
AV

E

98TH ST



 AI# 10399 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 8. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution approving the Central Business District Tax Increment
Financing Reinvestment Zone Annual Report, for October 1, 2020, through September 30, 2021.

Item Summary
The City Council created the Central Business District Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Reinvestment
Zone and appointed the Central Business District TIF Reinvestment Zone Board on December 3, 2001. 
According to the Texas Tax Increment Finance Act Section 311.016, the City must submit an annual
report to the Chief Executive Officer of each taxing unit that levies taxes on property within a tax
increment finance zone. The report must be provided within 150 days of the end of the City’s fiscal year
and a copy must also be sent to the State Comptrollers Office.
 
The Texas Tax Increment Finance Act specifies that the report must include:

• Amount and source of revenue in the tax increment fund established for the zone;
•Amount and purpose of expenditures from the fund;
•Amount of principal and interest due on outstanding bonded indebtedness;
•Tax increment base and current captured appraised value retained by the zone;
•Captured appraised value shared by the City and other taxing units;
•Total amount of tax increments received;
•Any additional information necessary to demonstrate compliance with the tax increment financing
plan adopted by the City.

Staff prepared the 2021 annual report, which includes all the information required by the above statute,
and submitted it to the Central Business District TIF Board of Directors for approval on January 13,
2022. A summary of the information included in the report is as follows:
 
In FY 2020-21, the Zone received $1,238,743 in property tax revenues and $7,424 in interest earnings.
Any variance in the actual amount from the amount reported in the FY 2019-20 Annual Report can be
attributed to uncollected taxes and/or exemptions. In FY 2020-21, Market Lubbock Inc. transferred
$35,073 to the CBD TIF Capital Project Fund for the Downtown Police Program.
 
Expenses in FY 2020-21 included $713,270 for special projects, $58,000 in administrative costs, $747
for office supplies, $6,629 on professional services, and $4,907 for Lubbock Central Appraisal District
collection charges.  Life-to-date capital expenditures were $12.3 million.

The City of Lubbock has issued bonds for the Central Business District TIF capital projects in the
amount of $12.6 million. The total amount of principal and interest remaining on the bonds issued is
$10.3 million principal and $3.0 million interest.
 
The Central Business District TIF appraised value is $249,695,117 in 2020 with a current captured
appraised value of $143,836,866.  The current captured appraised value is the total value after the base
year value is subtracted. The total tax increment to be received by the Central Business District TIF for



year value is subtracted. The total tax increment to be received by the Central Business District TIF for
Tax Year 2021 is projected to be $1,384,725 from all taxing jurisdictions.
 
The Board of Directors approved the report at their January 13, 2022 meeting, and is submitting it to the
City Council for approval.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Central Business District TIF Board of Directors

Attachments
Resolution 
CBD TIF Annual Report 























 AI# 10398 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 9. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution approving the Lubbock Business Park Tax Increment
Financing Reinvestment Zone Annual Report, for October 1, 2020, through September 30, 2021.

Item Summary
The City Council created the Lubbock Business Park Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Reinvestment
Zone and appointed the Lubbock Business Park TIF Reinvestment Zone Board on December 16, 2009. 
According to the Texas Tax Increment Finance Act Section 311.016, the City must submit an annual
report to the Chief Executive Officer of each taxing unit that levies taxes on property within a tax
increment finance zone. The report must be provided within 150 days of the end of the City’s fiscal year
and a copy must also be sent to the State Comptrollers Office.
 
The Texas Tax Increment Finance Act specifies that the report must include:

• Amount and source of revenue in the tax increment fund established for the zone;
• Amount and purpose of expenditures from the fund;
• Amount of principal and interest due on outstanding bonded indebtedness;
• Tax increment base and current captured appraised value retained by the zone;
• Captured appraised value shared by the City and other taxing units;
• Total amount of tax increments received;
• Any additional information necessary to demonstrate compliance with the tax increment financing
plan adopted by the City.

 
Staff prepared the 2021 annual report, which includes all information required by the above statute, and
submitted it to the Lubbock Business Park TIF Board of Directors for approval on January 12, 2022. A
summary of the information included in the report is as follows:
 
For the year ended September 30, 2021, the Lubbock Business Park TIF received $616,259 in revenues
for value earned in 2020, and $3,410 in interest earned.  Any variance to the actual amount from the
amount reported in the FY 2019-20 Annual Report can be attributed to uncollected taxes and/or
exemptions
 
Expenses in FY 2020-21 included $10,184 in administrative costs, $3,583 for professional services, $657
for Office Supplies, and $69 in Lubbock Central Appraisal District collection costs.  Life-to-date capital
expenditures were $3,042,765.

The Lubbock Business Park TIF appraised value is $64,918,276 in 2021 with a current captured
appraised value of $64,507,790. The current captured appraised value is the total value after the base
year value is subtracted. The total tax increment to be received by the Lubbock Business Park TIF for
Tax Year 2021 is projected to be $639,584 from all taxing jurisdictions.
 
The Board of Directors approved the report at their January 12, 2022 meeting, and is submitting it to the
City Council for approval.



City Council for approval.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Lubbock Business Park TIF Board of Directors
 

Attachments
Resolution 
LBP TIF Annual Report 





















 AI# 10423 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 10. 
01/25/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Council: Consider a resolution forming a Citizen Advisory Committee to study and
make recommendations regarding the street and roadway construction and repair needs of the City of
Lubbock, and for a possible future bond election in connection therewith.

Item Summary
This item is a follow-up to ongoing discussions by the Lubbock City Council regarding the recent Street
Bond proposal.  The resolution will be discussed by the City Council during Work Session, and should
the Council choose to do so, a Citizen Advisory Committee can be established under this item.
 
The Committee’s charge will be related to review, evaluation and possible recommendation to the City
Council, of future action related to street and roadway construction and repair.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
City Council

Attachments
Resolution - Citizens Advisory Committee 






	Agenda
	6.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_12.14.2021
	7.01.__Budget Amendment #4
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 4
	7.02.__Budget Amendment #5
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 5
	7.03.__Budget Amendment #7
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 7
	7.04.__Budget Amendment #8
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 8
	7.05.__Budget Amendment #9
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 9
	       ATT_EUB Resolution
	7.06.__Budget Amendment #10
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 10
	7.07.__Budget Amendment #6
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 6
	7.08.__Budget Ordinance Amendment 11
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 11
	7.09.__LP&L Property Ins
	       ATT_Resolution - LPL Prop Ratification
	       ATT_LPandL Property
	7.10.__ROW - 13th Street and Vernon Ave, Blk 72 Overton 
	       ATT_Ord - ROW, 13th Street and Vernon Ave.
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Abandon and Close two Streets - Blk 72 Overton
	       ATT_Map - Abandon and Close two Streets - Blk 72 Overton
	7.11.__Resolution - 2021 Lease Amendment - Hub City Main Street Investments, LLC
	       ATT_Resolution - 2021 Lease Amendment - Hub City
	       ATT_2021 Lease Amendment - Hub City Main Street Investments, LLC
	7.12.__Professional Service Agreement Contract 16363 for the design of Unpaved Roads Improvements with Freese and Nichols
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Professional Services Agreement
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet 
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	7.13.__Construction contract 16267 with Horseshoe Construction associated with the North University Sewer Line Relocation Project.
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Construction Contract
	       ATT_Location Exhibit 
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary Report
	7.14.__Cost Sharing & Pymt Agmt - Ash Avenue Paving
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_EUB Signed Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement
	       ATT_Location Exhibit 
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet 
	       ATT_CIP Detail - 92484
	       ATT_CIP Detail - 92712
	7.15.__Annual Pricing for Raw Materials - Green Dream International
	       ATT_Resolution - Green Dream Contract 16221
	       ATT_Contract 16221 - Green Dreamal pricing 2021_Copntract 16221
	       ATT_10391_Bid_Tab_Form (r)_-_ITB_22-16221-SB,_Green_Dream (4)
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet - ITB 22-16221-SB
	7.16.__Annual Pricing for raw materials
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract 16221 - Vulcan Contruction
	       ATT_Bid Tab - Contract 16221, Vulcan Contruction
	       ATT_10389_Bid_Tab_Form (r)_-_Item_4 (1)
	       ATT_Project Summary - Contract 16221
	7.17.__Annual Pricing for Asphalt Materials
	       ATT_Resolution - Contract 16215, ITB 22-16215-YB
	       ATT_Contract 16215 - ITB 22-16215-YBicing 2021
	       ATT_Project Summary - ITB 22-16215-YB
	7.18.__2022 Concrete Patching and Repair 
	       ATT_Resolution - Ti-Zack Concrete
	       ATT_Bid Form - Ti-Zack Concrete
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary ITB 16300-YB Concrete Patching
	7.19.__Asphalt Patching and Repair
	       ATT_Resolution - Lone Start Dirt and Paving
	       ATT_Bid Form - Lone Start Dirt and Paving
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary ITB 22-16298-YB Asphalt Patching
	7.20.__SPAG Solid Waste Grant to Conduct an Electronics Recycling Event
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Proposal
	7.21.__SPAG Solid Waste Grant Application for Houshold Hazardous Waste Collection Event
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Proposal
	7.22.__SPAG Solid Waste Grant Application
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Proposal
	7.23.__Substance Use Disorder Treatment Co-Occurring Disorders
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_COPSD Contract
	7.24.__HOME ARP 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_HOME ARP HUD to City Agreement
	7.25.__Fire Admin
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary
	7.26.__Groves
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary
	7.27.__LMMI Lease Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Lease Agreement
	7.28.__Purchase of one Rosenbauer 101’ Platform custom cab and two Rosenbauer 1250 GPM custom pumpers
	       ATT_Resolution - DACO Fire Safety Equipment, Rosenbauer 101-Ft Platform
	       ATT_PO 31064089 - Daco 101-ft. Platform Custom Cab
	       ATT_Resolution - PO 31064092  DACO, Rosenbauer 1250 GMP Custom Pumper
	       ATT_PO 31064092 - DACO Rosenbauer 1250 GPM Custom Pumpers
	       ATT_PO 31064089 - Proposal Documents
	       ATT_PO 31064092 - Proposal Documents
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	7.29.__Purchase of 2 John Deere Backhoes for Water Department 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	7.30.__Mobile Car Wash Services 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Bid Tabulation Sheet - ITB 22-6183-SB
	       ATT_Project Summary
	7.31.__Resolution
	       ATT_Resolution - SPS, Amended Partial Power Service Agreement
	       ATT_SPS Agreement
	       ATT_EUB Resolution - SPS Amended Partial Power Service Agmt.
	7.32.__Municipal Election - May 2022
	       ATT_Election Ordinance
	       ATT_Ex. A - Election Day Locations and Judges and Alternates
	       ATT_Ex. B - Early Voting Locations
	       ATT_Exhibit C - Notice of Election
	7.33.__Ordinance - Voting Precincts 
	       ATT_Ord.- Precincts
	       ATT_Precinct Map
	7.34.__Resolution
	       ATT_Resolution - Bickerstaff Contract
	       ATT_Article II Section B
	7.35.__Cost Sharing Agreement for Fire Station No. 20 Public Infrastructure
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement
	       ATT_Deed from Rocket Partners I, LLC
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	7.36.__Zone Case 2538-X
	       ATT_Zone Case 2538-X Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 2538-X - Report
	Slide Pics for 2538-X.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3


	       ATT_Zone Case 2538-X- Documentation
	Slide Pics for 2538-X.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3


	8.01.__ZC 2016-C
	       ATT_Zoning Case 2016-C Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 2016-C Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 2016-C Documentation
	5.1 Case 2016-C.pdf
	Zone Case 2016-C - Case Information.pdf
	2016c_1locator
	2016c_2imag
	2016c_3zoning
	2016c_4flup
	Zone Case 2016-C - Photos
	2016-C Application


	8.02.__ZC 3455
	       ATT_Zone Case 3455 Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 3455 Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 3455 Documentation
	8.03.__ZC 3456
	       ATT_Zone Case 3456 Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 3456 Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 3456 Documentation
	3456 Staff report - Shane- BI edits
	Zone Case 3456- Case Information
	3456_1locator
	3456_2imag
	3456_3zoning
	3456_4flup
	3456 Photos
	signed application 3456
	Zoning exhibit 3456
	Metes and bounds 3456

	8.04.__ZC 3457
	       ATT_Zone Case 3457 Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 3457 Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 3457 Documentation
	8.05.__ZC 3308-E
	       ATT_Zone Case 3308-E Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 3308-E Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 3308-E Documentation
	Case Information 3308-E.pdf
	3308e_1locator
	3308e_2imag
	3308e_3zoning
	3308e_4flup
	Photo's 3308-E
	Application
	Metes and Bounds C-3
	Metes and Bounds R-2
	New Site Plan

	8.06.__ZC 3358-B
	       ATT_Zone Case 3358-B Ordinance
	       ATT_Zone Case 3358-B Staff Report
	       ATT_Zone Case 3358-B Documentation
	8.07.__106th & University 
	       ATT_Resolution - 106th and University
	       ATT_Signed Annexation Agreement - 106th and University
	       ATT_Annexation Metes and Bounds
	       ATT_Annexation Petition
	       ATT_Annexation Map 106th and University
	8.08.__Central Business District TIF Annual Report
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_CBD TIF Annual Report
	8.09._10398
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_LBP TIF Annual Report
	8.10.__Citizen Advisory Committee
	       ATT_Resolution - Citizens Advisory Committee

